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IN THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, ALLAHABAD BENCH 

CA (CAA) No. 09/ALD of 2021 

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

AND 

IN THE MATTER OF THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED, EAST 

DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED WITH GULSHAN POLYOLS LIMITED  

AND  

Gulshan Holdings Private Limited, a company incorporated 

under the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identity 

Number: U74899UP1985PTC128005 and its registered office at 

9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, Uttar Pradesh, 

India. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

… Transferor Company No. 1 

East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited, a company 

incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate 

Identity Number: U60231UP1997PTC129363 and its registered 

office at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, Uttar 

Pradesh, India. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

… Transferor Company No. 2 

Gulshan Polyols Limited, a company incorporated under the 

Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identity Number: 

L24231UP2000PLC034918 and its registered office at 9th K.M., 

Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

… Company/Transferee Company 

 

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF SECURED CREDITORS  

To,  

All the Secured Creditors of  

Gulshan Polyols Limited 

 

1. NOTICE is hereby given that, in accordance with the Order dated July 14, 2021 in the above-mentioned 

Company Scheme Application, passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench 

(“Tribunal”) (“Tribunal Order”), a meeting of the secured creditors of the Transferee Company, will be held 

for the purpose of their considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the 

proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited (“Transferor Company No. 1”) and 

East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited (“Transferor Company No. 2”) with Gulshan Polyols Limited 

(“Transferee Company” or “Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) at 

Solitaire INN Hotel, 6 Mile Stone, Meerut Road, National Highway 58, Muzaffarnagar, Uttar Pradesh-251002 

on Saturday, September 18, 2021 at 2.00 p.m. (IST), being the venue, date and time as decided by the Hon’ble 

Tribunal in the Tribunal Order. 

 

2. Pursuant to the said Tribunal Order and as directed therein, the meeting of the secured creditors of the 

Transferee Company (“Meeting”) will be held at aforementioned venue, date and time in compliance with the 
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applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) to consider, and if 

thought fit, pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution for approval of the Scheme by 

requisite majority as prescribed under Section 230 (1) and (6) read with Section 232(1) of the Act and SEBI 

Circular CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 and SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 

dated December 22, 2020, as amended: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 read with section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules, circulars, and notifications made thereunder (including any 

statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) as may be applicable, the Securities Exchange Board of India 

Circular No CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, the observation letters issued by BSE Limited vide 

letter dated February 01, 2021 and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited vide letter dated January 29, 

2021 respectively and subject to provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company 

and subject to approval of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (‘NCLT’) and subject 

to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other authorities, as may be necessary 

and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by the Hon’ble NCLT or by 

any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such consents, approvals and permissions which may be 

agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’, which term shall 

deemed to mean and include one or more Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any 

other person authorized by it to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution), the 

arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited and East Delhi 

Importers & Exporters Private Limited with Gulshan Polyols Limited and their respective Shareholders and 

creditors (‘Scheme’), be and is hereby approved. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 

things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect 

to this resolution and effectively implement the amalgamation embodied in the Scheme and to accept such 

modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by 

the Hon’ble NCLT while sanctioning the arrangement embodied in the Scheme or by any authorities under 

law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any doubts or difficulties that may arise in giving 

effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper.” 

 

3. Due to difficulty in dispatch of the Notice along with the explanatory statement by post or courier, on account 

of threat posed by COVID-19 pandemic situation and as permitted under by the Hon’ble Tribunal, the 

Company is sending the Notice in electronic form only. The secured creditors can vote on resolution through 

physical voting during the meeting. Assent or dissent of the secured creditors, in person or by proxy on the 

resolution mentioned in the Notice would only be taken through ballot / polling paper in the Meeting. 

 

4. A person, whose name is recorded in the Books of the Transferee Company as on the cut-off date, i.e., 

Wednesday, March 31, 2021 only shall be entitled to exercise his/her/its voting rights on the resolution 

proposed in the Notice and attend the Meeting. A person who is not a secured creditor as on the cut-off date, 

should treat the Notice for information purpose only. 

 

5. A copy of the said Scheme, statement under Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other applicable 

provisions of the Act and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 

2016 (“CAA Rules”) along with all annexures to such statement are enclosed herewith. A copy of this Notice 
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and the accompanying documents are also placed on the website of the Company viz. 

www.gulshanindia.com; and the website of the Stock Exchanges, i.e., BSE Limited and National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com.  

 

6. Copies of the said Scheme and of the statement under Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 

6(3) of the CAA Rules can be obtained free of charge on any day (except Saturday, Sunday and public 

holidays) at the registered office of the Transferee Company at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 

251001. Persons entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting may vote in person, by proxy, provided that all 

proxies in the prescribed form, duly completed and signed or authenticated by the concerned person, are 

deposited at the registered office of the Transferee Company as mentioned above not later than 48 hours 

before the scheduled time of the Meeting. Forms of Proxy can be obtained free of charge on any day (except 

Saturday, Sunday and public holidays) at the registered office of the Transferee Company at 9th K.M., Jansath 

Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001.  

 

7. The Hon'ble Tribunal has appointed Mr. Rajeev K Goel, as the Chairperson of the Meeting, including for any 

adjournment(s) thereof. The Tribunal has also appointed Mr. Anadi Krishna Narayan, as the Alternate 

Chairperson for the meeting including for any adjournment(s) thereof and appointed Mr. Shashi Kant Gupta 

as the Scrutinizer for the Meeting, including for any adjournment(s) thereof. The Scheme, if approved by the 

Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the Hon'ble Tribunal. 

 

8. The above-mentioned Scheme, if approved at the aforesaid Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent 

sanction of the Tribunal and such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory or other 

authorities, as may be necessary. 

 

Sd/-  

Rajeev K Goel 

Chairperson appointed by 

Tribunal for the Meeting 

 

Uttar Pradesh, August 14, 2021 

  

Registered Office:  

9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, 

Uttar Pradesh, India. 

Phone: +91 11 49999200 

Fax: +91 11 49999202 

E-mail: cs@gulshanindia.com 

Website: www.gulshanindia.com 

  

http://www.gulshanindia.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
mailto:cs@gulshanindia.com
http://www.gulshanindia.com/
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Notes:  

 

1. A SECURED CREDITOR OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY IS ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE 

TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING OF THE SECURED CREDITORS ("MEETING"), EITHER IN PERSON OR BY 

PROXY OR THROUGH AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE, AS THE CASE MAY BE. WHERE A BODY 

CORPORATE WHICH IS AN SECURED CREDITOR AUTHORIZES ANY PERSON TO ACT AS ITS 

REPRESENTATIVE AT THE MEETING, A COPY OF THE RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OR 

OTHER GOVERNING BODY OF SUCH BODY CORPORATE AUTHORIZING SUCH PERSON TO ACT AS ITS 

REPRESENTATIVE AT THE MEETING, AND CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY BY A DIRECTOR, THE 

MANAGER, THE SECRETARY, OR OTHER AUTHORIZED OFFICER OF SUCH BODY CORPORATE SHALL BE 

LODGED WITH THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS 

BEFORE THE SCHEDULED TIME OF THE MEETING. 

 

2. A SECURED CREDITOR ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 

PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF ITSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A SECURED CREDITOR 

OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY AT ITS 

REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. NO 

PERSON SHALL BE APPOINTED AS PROXY WHO IS MINOR.  

 

3. A secured creditor/its proxy, attending the Meeting, is requested to bring the Attendance Slip duly 

completed and signed or authenticated by the concerned person along with a copy of the deposited Form 

of Proxy (in case of a proxy). 

 

4. A secured creditor (in case such secured creditor is an individual) or the authorized representative of the 

secured creditor (in case such secured creditor is a body corporate) or the proxy, as the case may be 

should carry their valid and legible identity proof (i.e. a PAN Card/ Aadhaar Card/ Passport/ Driving 

License/ Voter ID Card). Additionally, a secured creditor (in case such secured creditor is a sole 

proprietorship) or the proxy, as the case may be should carry a valid document evidencing the individual 

as the proprietor of the sole proprietorship. 

 

5. The statement pursuant to Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and 

Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 in respect of the business set out in the Notice of the Meeting is annexed 

hereto.  

 

6. The Notice of the Meeting and the accompanying documents mentioned in the Index are being sent 

through electronic mode to those secured creditors whose email addresses are registered with the 

Company and by way of publication of notice in Newspapers (as mentioned below) for the secured 

creditors whose email addresses are not registered with the Company. 

 

7. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Transferee Company as on the cut-off date, i.e., 

Wednesday, March 31, 2021 only shall be entitled to exercise his/her/its voting rights on the resolution 

proposed in the Notice and attend the Meeting. A person who is not a secured creditor as on the cut-off 

date, should treat the Notice for information purpose only. 

 

8. The secured creditors may note that the aforesaid documents are also available on the website of the 

Company and can be accessed / downloaded using the below given link: 
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http://www.gulshanindia.com/scheme_of_amalgamation.html and on the website of the Stock 

Exchanges, i.e., BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and 

www.nseindia.com, respectively.   

 

If so desired, secured creditors may obtain a physical copy of the Notice and the accompanying 

documents, i.e., Scheme and the Statement under Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other 

applicable provisions of the Act and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and 

Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 etc., free of charge. A written request in this regard, along with details of 

your debt in the Company, may be addressed to the Company Secretary at cs@gulshanindia.com.   

 

9. The notice, Explanatory Statement together with the documents accompanying the same, are being sent 

through by email to those secured creditors who have registered their email Ids with the Transferee 

Company.  

 

10. In terms of the directions contained in the Order, the quorum for the Meeting shall be 2 in number 

present in person or proxies or authorized representative. Further, in case the aforesaid quorum for the 

Meeting is not present within the time appointed for the meeting, then the meeting shall be adjourned 

for half an hour, and thereafter the secured creditors, present and voting (provided there is at least one 

secured creditor present), shall be deemed to constitute the quorum. For the purposes of computing the 

quorum, the valid proxies/authorized representatives shall also be considered. 

 

11. In terms of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be considered approved by the secured 

creditors of the Transferee Company if the resolution mentioned in the notice has been approved at the 

Meeting by a majority in number representing three-fourths in value of the secured creditors of the 

Transferee Company, voting in person or by proxy.  

 

12. In terms of the directions contained in the Order, the advertisement of the Meeting will be published in 

the "Financial Express" (in English) and "Jansatta" (Hindi) indicating the day, date, place and time of the 

Meeting and stating that the copies of the Scheme, Explanatory Statement and the Form of Proxy can be 

obtained free of charge on any day (except Saturday, Sunday and public holidays) from the registered 

office of the Transferee Company at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001.  

 

13. It may be noted that the ballot / polling paper will be provided at the Meeting venue. 

 

14. The scrutinizer will submit his report to the chairperson after completion of the scrutiny of the ballot / 

polling paper submitted by the secured creditors. The scrutinizer's decision on the validity of the votes 

shall be final. The results of the voting along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be displayed at the 

registered office of the Transferee Company situated at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001 

and its website(www.gulshanindia.com) besides being communicated to the stock exchanges where the 

equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed, namely, the National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

and BSE Limited (collectively, the "Stock Exchanges"). 

 
15. Any queries/grievances in relation to notice may be addressed to the company secretary of the 

Transferee Company through e-mail: cs@gulshanindia.com. The company secretary of the Transferee 

Company can also be contacted at +91 11 49999200. 

  

http://www.gulshanindia.com/scheme_of_amalgamation.html
mailto:cs@gulshanindia.com
http://www.gulshanindia.com/
mailto:cs@gulshanindia.com
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IN THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, ALLAHABAD BENCH 

CA (CAA) No. 09/ALD of 2021 

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

AND 

IN THE MATTER OF THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED, EAST 

DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED WITH GULSHAN POLYOLS LIMITED  

AND  

Gulshan Holdings Private Limited, a company incorporated 

under the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identity 

Number: U74899UP1985PTC128005 and its registered office at 

9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, Uttar Pradesh, 

India. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

… Transferor Company No. 1 

East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited, a company 

incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate 

Identity Number: U60231UP1997PTC129363 and its registered 

office at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, Uttar 

Pradesh, India. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

… Transferor Company No. 2 

Gulshan Polyols Limited, a company incorporated under the 

Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identity Number: 

L24231UP2000PLC034918 and its registered office at 9th K.M., 

Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

… Company/Transferee Company 

STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230 AND 232 READ WITH SECTION 102 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“ACT”) AND RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND 

AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 (“CAA RULES”) TO THE NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF SECURED CREDITORS OF 

GULSHAN POLYOLS LIMITED, TRANSFEREE COMPANY, CONVENED PURSUANT TO ORDER OF THE HON’BLE 

NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, ALLAHABAD BENCH (“TRIBUNAL”) DATED JULY 14, 2021 (“TRIBUNAL 

ORDER”) 

I. Meeting for the Scheme  

This is an Explanatory Statement accompanying the Notice convening the meeting of secured creditors of 

Gulshan Polyols Limited (“Company” or “Transferee Company”), for the purpose of their considering and 

if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation 

between Gulshan Holdings Private Limited (“Transferor Company No. 1”) and East Delhi Importers & 

Exporters Private Limited (“Transferor Company No. 2”) (collectively referred to as the “Transferor 

Companies”) with Gulshan Polyols Limited (“Transferee Company” or “Company”) and their respective 

shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”). The Scheme provides for: (a) Amalgamation (merger by 

absorption) of Transferor Company No. 1 into and with the Transferee Company and consequent 

dissolution of the Transferor Company No. 1 without winding up; and (b) Amalgamation (merger by 

absorption) of Transferor Company No.  2 into and with Transferee Company and consequent dissolution 

of the Transferor Company No. 2 without winding up, under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable 

provisions of the Act. 
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Capital terms not defined herein and used in the Notice and this Statement shall have the same meaning 

as ascribed to them in the Scheme. 

 

II. Rationale and Benefits of the Scheme  

The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company would inter alia have the 

following benefits: 

 

a) Help in achieving improved operational efficiency and optimum advantages and also to achieve 

greater efficiency and synergy in operations by combining the activities of the Transferor Companies 

with the Transferee Company. Accordingly, the Scheme would strengthen and complement the 

businesses of the Companies; 

 

b) The amalgamated entity will benefit from optimum utilization of manpower through improved 

organizational capacity and leadership, arising from the combination of people from the Transferor 

Companies and Transferee Company which have diverse skills, talent, management expertise, 

enlarged knowledge base and vast experience to compete successfully in an increased competitive 

industry; 

 

c) The amalgamated entity shall reduce fixed costs by removing duplicate departments, operations and 

lower the cost of the Company relative to the same revenue stream and shall thus increase the profit 

margins; 

 

d) The amalgamation will offer a simplified corporate structure to the amalgamated entity;  

 

e) Under a liberalised, fast changing and highly competitive environment, this amalgamation shall 

strengthen the business of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company by pooling up the 

resources, business expertise, business processes and assets for common purpose and hence 

optimum utilization; 

 

f) The synergies that exist between the entities in terms of services and resources can be put to the best 

advantage of all stakeholders; 

 

g) The amalgamation will result in better economic control, increased financial strength and flexibility 

and enhance the ability of the amalgamated entity to undertake large projects, thereby contributing 

to enhancement of future business potential; 

 

h) Cost savings are expected to flow from more focused operational efforts, rationalisation, 

standardisation and simplification of business processes, productivity and improvements, improved 

procurement and the elimination of duplication and rationalization of administrative expenses; 

 

i) The consolidation of the companies engaged in similar & complementary line of business in one 

entity, under a single centralized system of management, will result in the management being able to 

exercise greater control over the operations of the companies and which will help in synchronising 

the operations. This will also result in the management being enabled to undertake any re-structuring 

/re-organization of the various business undertakings of the companies for the purposes of achieving 

optimum efficiency /and or to attract investments in the individual business undertakings of the 

Companies. 
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III. Background of the Companies  

 

1. Particulars of the Transferor Company No. 1 

a. Gulshan Holdings Private Limited is a private limited Company within the meaning of the 

Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffarnagar - 

251001, Uttar Pradesh, India and Corporate Identity Number (CIN) U74899UP1985PTC128005. The 

Transferor Company No. 1 was originally incorporated as a Company limited by shares on 20th 

November, 1985 under Companies Act, 1956 under the name of “Gulshan Marketing Private 

Limited”. Thereafter, pursuant to Section 23 of the Companies Act, 1956 and under the order of the 

Central Government, the name of the Transferor Company No. 1 was changed to Gulshan Holdings 

Private Limited and a fresh certificate of change of name was issued to the Company on February 

14, 2002. The Transferor Company No. 1 by a special resolution shifted its registered office from 

the State of Delhi to the State of Uttar Pradesh from the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, NCT 

of Delhi & Haryana to the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur, and the same was confirmed by the 

order of the Regional Director, Northern Region, Delhi dated February 25, 2020. A certificate of 

registration issued by Registrar of Companies for the change of state was issued to the Transferor 

Company No. 1 on March 19, 2020. The Permanent Account Number (PAN) of the Transferor 

Company No. 1 is AAACG5688F. The Equity Shares of the Transferor Company No. 1 are not listed 

on any of the Stock Exchanges. The Transferor Company No. 1 is the holding Company of 

Transferee Company and holds 56.22% equity shareholding in the Transferee Company. The email 

address of the Transferor Company No. 1 is cs@gulshanindia.com.   

 

b. Main Objects of the Transferor Company No. 1 have been summarized as below for the perusal of 

the shareholders: 

 

“1. To take or otherwise acquire, and hold shares in any other company having objects altogether or 

in part similar to those of this company or carrying on any business capable of being conducted so 

as to directly or indirectly benefit this company.  

 

2. To guarantee the payment of money unsecured or secured by or payable under or in respect of 

promissory notes bonds, debentures, debenture stocks, contracts mortgages, charges, obligations, 

instants and securities of any company or of any authority, supreme, municipal local or otherwise or 

of any person whomsoever whether incorporated or not incorporated, and generally to guarantee 

or become sureties for the performance of any contracts and obligations.  

 

3. To invest in other than investment in Company’s own shares and deal with the moneys in the 

company, not immediately required upon, in such securities and in such manner as may from time 

to time be determined.  

 

4. To buy or sell or trade in any goods on behalf of its principal or otherwise.” 

 

c. The share capital of the Transferor Company No. 1 as on date of this Notice is as follows: 

 

Particulars Amount in INR  

Authorized Share Capital  

55,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 1000/- each.  5,55,00,000 

mailto:cs@gulshanindia.com
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Total  5,55,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital  

707 Equity Shares of Rs. 1000/- each. 7,07,000 

Total 7,07,000 

 

The latest annual financial statements of the Transferor Company No. 1 have been audited for the 

financial year ended on March 31, 2021. Consolidated and standalone audited financial results of 

the Transferor Company No. 1 for the year ended March 31, 2021 are attached collectively hereto 

as Annexure “XV”. 

 

d. The details of Directors and Promoters of the Transferor Company No. 1 (as on the date of the 

Notice) along with their addresses are mentioned herein below: 

 

Sr. No. Name Category Address 

Directors 

1.  Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain Non-Executive 

Director 

N-142, Panchsheel Park, 

Malviya Nagar, Hauz Khas, 

South Delhi, Delhi-110017 

2.  Mrs. Mridula Jain  Non-Executive 

Director 

N-142, Panchsheel Park, 

Malviya Nagar, Hauz Khas, 

South Delhi, Delhi-110017 

3.  Mrs. Arushi Jain Non-Executive 

Director 

S-237, 2nd Floor, Panchsheel 

Park, Delhi-110017 

Sr. No. Name Address 

Promoters 

1.   Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain  N-142, Panchsheel Park, Malviya Nagar, Hauz 

Khas, South Delhi, Delhi-110017 

2.  Mrs. Mridula Jain  N-142, Panchsheel Park, Malviya Nagar, Hauz 

Khas, South Delhi, Delhi-110017 

3.  Ms. Arushi Jain  S-237, 2nd Floor, Panchsheel Park, Delhi-110017 

4.  Ms. Aditi Pasari  S-319, Greater Kailash, Part-II, Greater Kailash 

S.O., South Delhi, Delhi-110048 

5.  Ms. Anubha Gupta A-5 Block-A, Kalindi Colony, East of Kailash, South 

Delhi, Delhi-110065  

 

2. Particulars of the Transferor Company No. 2 

a. East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited is a private limited Company within the 

meaning of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, 

Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India and Corporate Identity Number (CIN) 

U60231UP1997PTC129363. The Transferor Company No. 2 was originally incorporated as a 

Company limited by shares on 23rd July, 1997 under Companies Act, 1956 under the name of 

“Atul Transport Private Limited”. Thereafter, pursuant to Section 23 of the Companies Act, 1956 

and under the order of the Central Government, the name of the Transferor Company No. 2 was 

changed to East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private Limited and a fresh certificate of change of 

name was issued to the Company on June 23, 2007.The Transferor Company No. 2 by a special 

resolution shifted its registered office from the State of Delhi to the State of Uttar Pradesh from 
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the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana to the Registrar of Companies, 

Kanpur, and the same was confirmed by the order of the Regional Director, Northern Region, 

Delhi  dated February 25, 2020. A certificate of registration issued by Registrar of Companies, 

Kanpur for the change of state was issued to the company on June 10, 2020. The Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) of the Transferor Company No. 2 is AABCA3294L. The Equity Shares of the 

Transferor Company No. 2 are not listed on any of the Stock Exchanges. The email address of the 

Transferor Company No. 2 is akg@gulshanindia.com.     

 

b. Main Objects of the Transferor Company No. 2 have been summarized as below for the perusal of 

the shareholders: 

“1. To carry on the business as exporters, importers, buyers, sellers, distributors, agents, brokers, 

factors, stockiest, commission agents and dealers, of Textile, cotton, fabric, silk, jute, woolen, and 

synthetics, leather wear , Organic and inorganic chemicals, domestic and industrial acids, sugar, 

sugar products, alcohol, rubber, plastic and all kinds of plastics products, tannery products, 

Engineering goods, machine tools, small tools, metals, alloys, iron pipe fitting, nuts and bolts, 

bicycles and accessories, automobile parts and steel, stainless steel and iron products, ores and 

scraps, metallurgical residues hides, skins, leather goods, furs, bristles, tobacco (raw and 

manufactured) hemp, seeds, edible and non-edible oils bones crushed and uncrushed, industrial 

diamonds, coal and charcoal, glue, gums and resine, ivory, lac, shellac, manures, paper and paper 

products, food and food products, pulp or rags, rubber, tanning, substances, wax, qulartz, crystal, 

chemicals and chemical preparations, plastic and lineoleum articles, glass and glassware, 

handicrafts, handloom, toys, liquid gold, precious stones, ornaments, jewelleries, pearls, drugs and 

medicines, soaps, paints, paper and stationery, spot goods textile such as decorative, hand and 

machine made, readymade garments, carpets, rugs, artificial silk fabrics, cotton, woolen cloth and 

apparels, dressing materials, cosmetics, wigs, belts, belting, cinematograph, films, exposed, 

gramophone, records, stardh, umbrellas, crown corks, batteries, surgical and musical instruments, 

marble and hardware items, books and manuscripts, electric and electronic products, sanitary 

wares and fittings, cellulosic and cellulosic products, fibre yarn, hosiery bran, fruits, dry foods, 

grains and pulses, flour, confectionary, alcohol, beverages, perfumed spirits, spices, tea, coffee, 

sugar and molasses, vegetables and its products, processed foods and packed foods, fish and sea 

foods/products. 

 

2. To buy, procure, sell, import, export or otherwise deal in the computer software, programmes, 

packages, computer hardware and computer peripheral. 

 

3. To carry in India or abroad business of importers and exporters, merchants, general order 

suppliers, commission, agents, representatives, distributors, royalty, owners, contractors, 

auctioneers, guarantee brokers, indent agents, mercantile agents, passage agents, principals, 

factors, organizers, concessionaires, sale agents, sub-agents, insurance agents, enquiry agents, 

patent agents, advertisement agents, transport contractors, shipping agents, surveyors, valuers, 

trasurers, furnishers, decorators, general representatives agents in all its branches in respect of 

items stated (1& 2 above). 

 

4. To carry on business as general carriers, transporters and freight forwarders and to provide 

carrier freight transport, courier, taxi, truck, light or heavy haulage and delivery services by land, 

road, railway, sea, river, canal, water or air for and in connection with any containers, packages, 

parcels, mails, goods or bulk commodities.  

mailto:akg@gulshanindia.com
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5. To carry passengers by air, road, rail, land, sea, or water, to operate any taxi service and to 

construct, equip, maintain, work, purchase, sell, export, import, lease, hire, let on hire, repair, 

refurbish, or otherwise deal in any aircraft, ship, car, bus or any kind of vehicle or mode of 

transport.  

 

6. To carry, collect, receive, load, unload, store, consign, distribute, transfer and deliver goods, 

wares, merchandise, parcels, packages, baggage, freight, animals, livestock, timber, coal, oil, ores 

and other property of every description by any mode of transportation, and generally for such 

purposes to acquire, manage and operate warehouses, and bounded warehouses, act as agents 

for shippers and consigners, and to issue warehouse warrants and receipts and bills of loading.  

 

7. To carry on the business as manufactures in respect of various items mentioned in object Clause 

III (A) 1 and to develop the computer software, programmes, packages, computer hardware and 

computer peripheral.” 

 

c. The share capital of the Transferor Company No. 2 as on date of this Notice is as follows: 

 

Particulars Amount in INR  

Authorized Share Capital  

10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 1,00,000 

Total  1,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital  

10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 1,00,000 

Total 1,00,000 

 

The latest annual financial statements of the Transferor Company No. 2 have been audited for the 

financial year ended on March 31, 2021. The audited financial results of the Transferor Company 

No. 2 for the year ended March 31, 2021 is attached hereto as Annexure “XVI”. 

 

e. The details of Directors and Promoters of the Transferor Company No. 2 (as on the date of the 

Notice) along with their addresses are mentioned herein below: 

 

Sr. No. Name Category Address 

Directors 

1.  Mr. Avdhesh Kumar 

Garg  

Non-Executive 

Director 

SF-1, Plot No. 147, Sector 4, 

Vaishali, Ghaziabad, Uttar 

Pradesh- 201010 

2.  Ms. Aditi Pasari Non-Executive 

Director 

S-319, Greater Kailash, Part-II, 

Greater Kailash S.O., South 

Delhi, Delhi-110048, India 

Sr. No. Name Address 

Promoters 

1.   Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain  N-142, Panchsheel Park, Malviya Nagar, Hauz 

Khas, South Delhi, Delhi-110017 

2.  Mrs. Mridula Jain  N-142, Panchsheel Park, Malviya Nagar, Hauz 
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Khas, South Delhi, Delhi-110017 

3.  Ms. Arushi Jain  S-237, 2nd Floor, Panchsheel Park, Delhi-110017 

 

 

3. Particulars of the Transferee Company 

a. Gulshan Polyols Limited is a public limited company within the meaning of the Companies Act, 

2013 having its registered office at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar 

Pradesh, India and Corporate Identity Number (CIN) L24231UP2000PLC034918. The equity shares 

of the Transferee Company are listed at BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited (“NSE”). The Transferee Company was originally incorporated on 20th October 2000 as a 

limited Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Permanent Account 

Number (PAN) of the Transferee Company is AABCG3954F. The email address of the Transferee 

Company is cs@gulshanindia.com.   

 

b. Main Objects of the Transferee Company have been summarized as below for the perusal of the 

shareholders: 

 

“1. To carry on the business as manufacturer, dealer, importer, exporter, and generally to deal in 

Starch made from all type of grains and toppaico, Starch Derivatives like sorbitol, DMH, Mannitol, 

Maltodextrin, Dextrose, Lysine, Fructose, Liquid Glucose and allallied products and by products 

thereof. 

 

2. To carry on the business as manufacturer, mining, dealer, exporter, importer in all type of 

inorganic chemicals and minerals such as activated and precipitated Calcium Carbonate of all 

grades and specifications, Chalk, Industrial chalk, Calcite, soap stones, all varieties of stones 

including lime, marbles, granite and all allied products and by products thereof. 

 

3. To carry on the business as manufacturer, bottler, dearer, exporter, importer in all type of 

alcohol made from molasses & grains including IMFL, ENA, ATA, Country Liquor, Wine, and all 

allied products and by products thereof.  

 

4. To carry on the business as manufacturer, dealer, exporter, importer in all type of paper, paper 

products, Sugar, Sugar beets, sugar cane, Gur, cab, Khandsari, jaggery, molasses, yeast, syrups 

Fertilizers, manures, medicines of all kinds including Calcium Carbide, Sodium Hydrosulphate, 

acids, alkaliessalts, Dyes, caustic soda, soda ash, glass etc., pharmaceuticals, petroleum and other 

oils andtheir byproducts, derivatives, compounds, mixtures, formulations and all kinds of 

commodities having chemical properties, industrial greases and lubricants, Glycerin, Distilled 

water, water soluble, water for injection, and / or otherwise deal in such commodities.  

 

5. To design, invent, assemble, manufacture, generate, buy, sell, lease, import, export, conduct, 

research, impart training, develop, maintain, repair, hire, rent on hire, to let out the land & 

building, alter design, distribute, provide services including consultancy and / or otherwise deal in 

wind power, Hydro power, Thermal power, Solar power, power equipments, power transmission, 

power transformer, power infrastructure, electric cables or otherwise deal in power sector. 

 

6. To carry on the business as manufacturers, producers, growers, exporters, buyers, sellers, 

agents, merchant and dealers in all kinds of Agro products including caster seed processing, 

mailto:cs@gulshanindia.com
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processed /canned mushrooms, fruits, vegetables, flowers, herbs and forest products, their stems, 

roots, leaves and seeds etc. and their various products and by products like squashes, 

concentrates, juices, ready to serve beverages, crushes, jams, slices pickles, chutnies, ketchups, 

peel oils, pomace, peel, cattle feed, seeds synthetic sweetened aerated waters, canned and 

dehydrated vegetables, purees, soups, pastes, chips and wafers. 

 

7. To carry on the business in all their respective forms and branches and to grow, produce 

manufacture, process, prepare, refine, extract, manipulate, hydrolyze, deodorise, grind, bleach, 

hydrogenate, buy, sell or otherwise deal in all kind of agricultural, horticultural, milk and milk 

products, maltery and brewery, dairy and dairy products, poultry and farm product and products 

including food grains, edible oils, meat, fish, eggs, food and food products and preparations of any 

nature and description whatsoever. 

 

8. To carry on the business in India or abroad of Information Technology (IT), Information 

Technology Enabled services (ITES), providing, taking or otherwise dealing, training, educating, 

imparting knowledge, consultancy in computer software, hardware including the business of data 

entry, programming, processing, developing, Importing/ Exporting/ initiating of software data 

records, information, developing the module whether technical or otherwise, to carry on the 

business or the services of call centers, back office processing, Embedded software business, Smart 

Card, ASP, Outsourcing including Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) and Knowledge Process 

Outsourcing (KPO), Communication & Networking, Media & Entertainment (including TV 

Channels) TV serial development, distribution or otherwise dealing in entertainment and media 

business, Web Development Services,  purchase or sell of websites, website developments & 

designing including development, distribution or otherwise dealing in entertainment and media 

business, Web Development Services, purchase, or sell of websites, website developments & 

designing including development of dot com business, chat shows, Medical Transcription, On-site 

services etc. or any other related or allied business, services etc. directly or indirectly.  

 

9.  To purchase, acquire, build, construct, alter, enlarge, remove, pull down, replace, maintain, 

improve, develop, work control, manage and let out on hire any land, building, houses, offices, 

apartments, colonies, factories, go-downs, mills, sheds, ships, machinery, engines, water-works, 

gasworks, bridges, wharves, reservoirs, roads, tramways, railways, branches or sidings, hotels, 

clubs, restaurants, shopping complexes, shopping malls, multiplexes, places of worship, places of 

amusements, pleasure grounds, park, gardens, reading rooms, stores, shops, dairies, and other 

works and conveniences and infrastructures or otherwise deal in real estate sector. 

 

10. To design, invent, assemble, manufacture, buy, sell, lease, import, export, conduct research, 

impart training, develop, maintain, repair, hire, let on hire, to let out the land & building, alter 

design, distribute, provide services including consultancy or otherwise deal in telecom hardware, 

telecom software, telecommunications equipments and their components including valves, 

transistors, micro-motors, resistors, condensers, coils magnetic, heads, with their parts, 

accessories and fittings. 

 

11. To carry on the business as engineers, consultant, developers, manufacturers, importer, 

exporter, buy, sale, agent, distributor or otherwise deal in all kinds of electronic goods, electronic 

equipment and equipments operated electronically. 
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12. To plan, augment, establish, develop, erect, commission, set up, operate, maintain and supply 

all types of Plants, in India or elsewhere, to manufacture Calcium Carbonate of all grades and 

specifications (including Percipated Calcium Carbonate, Dry Ground Calcium Carbonate and Wet 

Grind/Ground Calcium Carbonate), Starch or Starch derivatives and to provide or acquire technical 

know-how, technical information, process engineering, design and drawings, layouts, blue prints 

useful for designing, erection, construction, commissioning, operation and maintenance of plant 

and equipment required for any of the business of the company. 

 

13.To carry on the business as manufacturer, producer, trader, seller, buyers, exporters, 

distributor, commission agents, brokers, stockiest, consignment and indenting agents in all kind of 

cosmetics & toiletries including skin care, beauty care, health care, body care products and 

Ayurvedic, Herbal, Allopathic, unani, siddha, Homeopathic, Bio-chemic Medicines, Aroma therapy 

products, their derivatives, by-products, residue, deodorants, all kinds of perfumery & other 

compounds, disinfecting and cleansing compounds, aerosol and pump- spray products, baby 

products, skin creams and other cosmetics creams, soaps & shampoos and other bath products, 

pre-shave shaving and after-shave shaving preparations, oils, greases, ointments, pomades, 

health tonics, general medicines, and other allied goods and cosmetics.” 

 

c. The share capital of the Transferee Company as on date of this Notice is as follows: 

 

Particulars Amount in INR  

Authorized Share Capital  

22,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each. 

2,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (0%) of Rs. 10/- each. 

14,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (0-10%) of Rs. 100/- 

each. 

22,50,00,000 

25,00,000 

14,50,00,000 

Total  37,25,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital  

4,69,17,020 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each 

9,75,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (8%) of Rs. 100/- each 

4,69,17,020 

9,75,00,000 

Total 14,44,17,020 

 

The latest annual financial statements of the Transferee Company have been audited for the 

financial year ended on March 31, 2021. The audited financial results of the Transferee Company 

for the year ended March 31, 2021 and unaudited financial results (limited reviewed) of the 

Transferee Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 are attached collectively hereto as 

Annexure XIV. 

 

d. The details of Directors and Promoters of the Transferee Company (as on the date of the Notice) 

along with their addresses are mentioned herein below: 

 

Sr. No. Name Category Address 

Directors 

1.  Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain Chairman and 

Managing Director  

N-142, Panchsheel Park, 

Malviya Nagar, Hauz Khas, 

South Delhi, Delhi-110017 
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2.  Mr. Jeewan Jyoti 

Bhagat  

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

E-372, 3rd Floor Greater 

Kailash - 2 New Delhi 110048  

3.  Mr. Ashwani Kumar 

Vats  

Whole Time Director 

and CEO  

A-10, Surajmal Vihar, Delhi -

110092 

4.  Mr. Akhilesh Kumar 

Maheshwari  

Non-Executive 

Independent Director  

D-149, Second Floor, D-Block 

Preet Vihar New Delhi 

110092 DL IN 

5.  Ms. Aditi Pasari  Whole Time Director S-319, Greater Kailash, Part-

II, Greater Kailash S.O., South 

Delhi, Delhi-110048, India 

6.  Ms. Arushi Jain  Whole Time Director S-237, 2nd Floor, Panchsheel 

Park, Delhi-110017 

7.  Mr. Rakesh Kumar 

Gupta  

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

2B-358, Vasundhara 

Ghaziabad 201012 UP IN 

8.  Ms. Archana Jain Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

F- 13, Kirti Nagar, Ramesh 

Nagar. H O West Delhi, New 

Delhi -110015 

Sr. No. Name Address 

Promoters 

1.   Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain  N-142, Panchsheel Park, Malviya Nagar, Hauz 

Khas, South Delhi, Delhi-110017 

2.  Mrs. Mridula Jain  N-142, Panchsheel Park, Malviya Nagar, Hauz 

Khas, South Delhi, Delhi-110017 

3.  Ms. Arushi Jain  S-237, 2nd Floor, Panchsheel Park, Delhi-110017 

4.  Ms. Aditi Pasari  S-319, Greater Kailash, Part-II, Greater Kailash 

S.O., South Delhi, Delhi-110048 

5.  Ms. Anubha Gupta A-5 Block-A, Kalindi Colony, East of Kailash, 

South Delhi, Delhi-110065  

 

IV. Salient Features of the Scheme 

 

The salient features of the Scheme, inter alia, are as stated below. The capitalized terms used herein shall 

have the same meaning as ascribed to them in the Scheme: 

 

a. The Scheme provides for: (a) Amalgamation (merger by absorption) of Transferor Company No. 1 

into and with the Transferee Company and consequent dissolution of the Transferor Company No. 

1 without winding up; and (b) Amalgamation (merger by absorption) of Transferor Company No.  2 

into and with Transferee Company and consequent dissolution of the Transferor Company No. 2 

without winding up, under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act. 

 

b. In consideration for the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies and Transferee Company in 

terms of the Scheme and based on the Valuation Report and Fairness Opinion, Gulshan Polyols 

Limited will issue and allot 2,99,82,536 (Two Crore Ninety-Nine Lakh Eighty-Two Thousands Five 

Hundred and Thirty Six) fully paid-up equity shares of the face value of INR 1/- (Rupee One) each, in 

the following manner:  
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i. 39,848 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Polyols Limited for every 1 

Equity Share of Rs.1000/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited. 

 

ii. 181 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Polyols Limited for every 1 Equity 

Share of Rs.10/- each fully paid up of East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private Limited 

 

c. The Scheme would not only lead to simplification of the shareholding structure and reduction of 

the shareholding tiers, but also demonstrate the promoter group direct commitment to and 

engagement with the Transferee Company. Also, it would lead to infusion of investments in forms 

of bank deposits, bank balance, securities, immoveable properties etc. into the Transferee 

Company which will enhance the capability of the Transferee Company to undertake operations at 

an enhanced business potential. 

 

d. The Appointed Date of the Scheme shall be the opening business hours of 1st April, 2020 or such 

other date as may be fixed or approved by the Appropriate Authority. 

 

e. The Scheme shall become effective from the Appointed Date but shall be operative from the 

Effective Date. 

 

f. The equity shares of the Transferee Company shall continue to be listed on the Stock Exchanges. 

 

Note: The above are the salient features of the Scheme. The shareholders are requested to read the 

entire text of the Scheme annexed hereto to get fully acquainted with the provisions thereto.  

 

V. Relationship subsisting between Parties to the Scheme  

 

The Transferee Company is a subsidiary of the Transferor Company No. 1. The Transferor Company No. 2 

is the entity owned and controlled by the promoter group of the Transferee Company and Transferor 

Company No. 1. All the companies are under the common management and control. 

 

VI. Board approvals  

1. The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company at its Board Meeting held on August 06, 2020 

unanimously approved the Scheme, as detailed below: 

 

Name of Director Voted in favour / against / did not participate or vote 

Mr. Jeewan Jyoti Bhagat In Favour 

Mr. Ashwani Kumar Vats In Favour 

Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Maheshwari In Favour 

Mr. Kailash Chandra Gupta In Favour 

Mr. Rakesh Kumar Gupta In Favour 

Mr. Ajay Jain  In Favour 

Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain  Not Participated for this particular resolution  
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Ms. Arushi Jain  Not Participated for this particular resolution 

Ms. Aditi Pasari Not Participated for this particular resolution 

 

2. The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company No. 1 at its Board Meeting held on August 06, 2020 

unanimously approved the Scheme, as detailed below: 

 

Name of Director  Voted in favour / against / did not participate or vote  

Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain  In Favour  

Mrs. Mridula Jain   In Favour 

Ms. Arushi Jain  In Favour 

 

3. The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company No. 2 at its Board Meeting held on August 06, 2020 

unanimously approved the Scheme, as detailed below: 

 

Name of Director  Voted in favour / against / did not participate or vote  

Mr. Avdhesh Kumar Garg  In Favour  

Ms. Aditi Pasari In Favour 

 

VII. Interest of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs), their relatives and Debenture Trustee.  

1. None of the Directors, KMPs (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) of the 

Transferee Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the Act and rules framed 

thereunder) has any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in the 

Company, if any. Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the KMPs or their respective 

relatives has any material interest in the Scheme. The Transferee Company has not issued any 

debentures and hence, does not have Debenture Trustee. 

 

2. None of the Directors, KMPs (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder), as applicable, of 

the Transferor Companies and their respective relatives (as defined under the Act and rules framed 

thereunder), has any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in the 

Transferor Companies. Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the KMPs, as applicable, or 

their respective relatives has any material interest in the Scheme. The Transferor Companies have not 

issued any debentures and hence, does not have Debenture Trustee. 

 

Shareholding of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 

 

A. Detail of present Shareholding of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Transferee 

Company in the Transferor Companies, either singly or jointly or as nominee, is as under: 

 

Sl. No.  Name of Directors & KMP and 

their Designation 

Number of Shares held on March 31, 2021 

Transferee Transferor Transferor 
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Company Company No. 1 Company No. 2 

1.  Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain - 

Chairman & Managing Director  

35,46,990 182 6,000 

2.  Mr. Jeewan Jyoti Bhagat - Non-

Executive Independent Director 

25,000 - - 

3.  Mr. Ashwani Kumar Vats - Whole 

Time Director and CEO 

- - - 

4.  Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Maheshwari - 

Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

2,350 - - 

5.  Ms. Aditi Pasari - Whole Time 

Director 

72,599 124 - 

6.  Ms. Arushi Jain – Whole Time 

Director 

3,80,545 108 2,000 

7.  Mr. Rakesh Kumar Gupta - Non-

Executive Independent Director 

- - - 

8.  Ms. Archana Jain - Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

- - - 

9.  Mr. Rajiv Gupta- Chief Financial 

Officer  

- - - 

10.  Ms. Asha Mittal- Company 

Secretary 

- - - 

 

B. Detail of present Shareholding of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Transferor 

Company No. 1 in the Transferee Company, either singly or jointly or a nominee, is as under: 

Sl. No.  Name of Directors & KMP and their 

Designation 

Number of Shares held on March 31, 2021 

Transferor 

Company No. 1 

Transferee Company 

1.  Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain - Non-

Executive Director  

182 35,46,990 

2.  Mrs. Mridula Jain - Non-Executive 

Director 

173 4,60,105 

3.  Ms. Arushi Jain – Non-Executive 

Director 

108 3,80,545 

  

C. Detail of present Shareholding of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Transferor 

Company No. 2 in the Transferee Company, either singly or jointly or a nominee, is as under: 

 

Sl. No.  Name of Directors & KMP and 

their Designation 

Number of Shares held on March 31, 2021 

Transferor Company No. 2 Transferee Company 

1.  Mr. Avdhesh Kumar Garg- Non- 

Executive Director 

- - 

2.  Ms. Aditi Pasari – Non- - 72,599 
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Executive Director 

 

 

VIII. Effect of Scheme on stakeholders 

 

(a)  Equity Shareholders 

(Promoters and Non-

Promoters)  

Upon the coming into the effect of the Scheme and in 

consideration of the transfer and vesting of the 

Transferor Companies, the Transferee Company shall 

issue and allot to the equity shareholders of the 

Transferor Companies, New Equity Shares of the 

Transferee Company in the ratio as enumerated in Clause 

14 of Part III of the Scheme. Further, the authorized share 

capital of the Transferor Companies shall stand 

transferred to and be amalgamated / combined with the 

authorized share capital of the Transferee Company in 

the manner as stipulated in Clause 17 of Part III of the 

Scheme.  

 

(b)  Preference Shareholders No Impact.  

(c)  Key Managerial Personnel 

(KMP) 

The Transferee Company is not expecting any change in 

the KMPs of the Transferee Company in pursuance of the 

Scheme becoming effective.   

(d)  Directors  The Scheme will have no effect on the office of the 

existing Directors of the Transferee Company. It is 

pertinent to mention that since the Transferor Companies 

will be dissolved upon the Scheme becoming effective, 

Mr. Avdhesh Kumar Garg (Director of Transferor 

Company No. 2) and Mrs. Mridula Jain (Director of 

Transferor Company No. 1) will not hold office of 

directorship in the Transferee Company. All other 

common directors will continue to hold office of 

directorship in the Transferee Company.  

 

Further, no change in the Board of Directors of the 

Transferee Company is envisaged on account of the 

Scheme. It is clarified that, the composition of the Board 

of Directors of the Transferee Company may change by 

appointments, retirements or resignations in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations 

and Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 

Transferee Company.  

(e)  Creditors The liability of the creditors of the Transferee Company, 

under the Scheme, is neither being reduced nor being 

extinguished. The creditors of the Transferee Company 

would in no way be affected by the Scheme. They shall be 

paid as and when their debt becomes due.  
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Further, the creditors of the Transferor Companies will 

become business creditors of the Transferee Company 

pursuant to the Scheme. They shall be paid as and when 

their debt becomes due.    

 

There will be no adverse impact on the rights and interest 

of the creditor(s) of the Transferee Company or 

Transferor Companies.   

(f)  Employees The Transferee Company is not expecting any change in 

the Employees of the Transferee Company in pursuance 

of the Scheme becoming effective. Moreover, all in-scope 

employees forming part of Transferor Company shall be 

transferred to the Transferee Company on the same 

terms and conditions on which they are engaged by the 

Transferor Companies. 

 

Thus, the Scheme will have no adverse effect on the 

employees of the Companies involved in the Scheme. 

(g)  Debenture holders, Bond 

holders, Depositors and 

Debenture Trustees  

The Transferee Company and Transferor Company have 

not issued debentures, bonds and doesn’t have 

debenture trustee. Further, the Companies have not 

accepted deposit.     

 

IX. Amount due to Unsecured Creditors  

The amount due to unsecured creditors of the Transferee Company, as on March 31, 2021 is INR 

62,40,09,543/-. The amount due to unsecured creditors of the Transferor Company No. 1, as on March 

31, 2021 is INR 47,000/-. The amount due to unsecured creditors of the Transferor Company No.2, as on 

March 31, 2021 is Nil/-. 

 

X. Capital / Debt Restructuring  

There is no debt restructuring envisaged in the Scheme. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the 

existing equity share capital of the Transferee Company held by Transferor Companies shall stand 

cancelled and in consideration of the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies in the Transferee 

Company, the Transferee Company shall, without any further application, act or deed, issue and allot to 

the shareholders of the Transferor Companies,  2,99,82,536 (Two Crore Ninety Nine Lakh Eighty Two 

Thousands Five Hundred and Thirty Six) fully paid-up equity shares of the face value of INR 1/- (Rupee 

One) each, in the following manner:  

i. 39,848 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Polyols Limited for every 1 Equity 

Share of Rs.1000/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited. 

ii. 181 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Polyols Limited for every 1 Equity Share 

of Rs.10/- each fully paid up of East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private Limited.” 

 

The Pre-Scheme and Post-Scheme Shareholding Pattern Capital Structure of the Transferee Company and 

Transferor Companies are given below: 
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PRE-SCHEME CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY 

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 

 

Particulars Amount (Rs.) 

Authorised Share Capital  

22,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each. 

2,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (0%) of Rs. 10/- each. 

14,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (0-10%) of Rs. 100/- 

each. 

Rs. 22,50,00,000 

Rs. 25,00,000 

Rs. 14,50,00,000 

Total Rs. 37,25,00,000  

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 

4,69,17,020 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each 

9,75,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (8%) of Rs. 100/- each 

Rs. 4,69,17,020 

Rs. 9,75,00,000 

Total Rs. 14,44,17,020 

 

POST-SCHEME CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY 

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 

 

Particulars Amount (Rs.) 

Authorised Share Capital  

28,06,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 1/- each.  

2,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (0%) of Rs. 10/- each. 

14,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (0-10%) of Rs. 100/- 

each. 

Rs. 28,06,00,000 

Rs. 25,00,000 

Rs. 14,50,00,000 

Total Rs. 42,81,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 

4,95,59,489 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each.  

9,75,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (8%) of Rs. 100/- each. 

Rs. 4,95,59,489 

Rs. 9,75,00,000 

Total Rs. 14,70,59,489 

 

PRE-SCHEME CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY NO. 1 

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 

 

Particulars Amount (Rs.) 

Authorised Share Capital  

55,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 1000/- each. Rs. 5,55,00,000  

Total Rs. 5,55,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 

707 Equity Shares of Rs. 1000/- each. Rs. 7,07,000  

Total Rs. 7,07,000 

 

POST-SCHEME CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY NO. 1 

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 
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Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Companies will get dissolved and the authorized 

capital of the Transferor Companies as on the Appointed Date shall stand merged with the authorized 

capital of the Transferee Company.  

 

PRE-SCHEME CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY NO. 2 

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 

 

Particulars Amount (Rs.) 

Authorised Share Capital  

10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. Rs.1,00,000  

Total Rs. 1,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 

10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. Rs.1,00,000  

Total Rs. 1,00,000 

 

POST-SCHEME CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY NO. 2 

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 

 

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Companies will get dissolved and the authorized 

capital of the Transferor Companies as on the Appointed Date shall stand merged with the authorized 

capital of the Transferee Company. 

 

PRE-SCHEME AND POST SCHEME SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY 

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 

 

Sr. 

No

. 

Name & Category of 

Shareholders 

Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme 

  Total nos. 

shares held 

Shareholdin

g as a % of 

total no. of 

shares 

Total nos. 

shares held 

Shareholdi

ng as a % of 

total no. of 

shares 

(A) Shareholding of Promoter & 

Promoter Group 

    

1. Indian 

Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain  

Mrs. Mridula Jain  

Ms. Arushi Jain  

Ms. Aditi Pasari  

Mr. Anubha Gupta  

Gulshan Holdings Private Limited  

East Delhi Importers & Exporters 

Private Limited 

 

35,46,990 

4,60,105 

3,80,545 

72,599 

1,98,132 

2,63,75,047 

9,65,020 

 

7.56% 

0.98% 

0.81% 

0.15% 

0.42% 

56.22% 

2.06% 

 

1,18,85,326 

77,15,809 

50,46,129 

50,13,751 

49,79,892 

- 

- 

 

23.98% 

15.57% 

10.18% 

10.12% 

10.05% 

- 

- 

2. Foreign - - - - 

 Total Shareholding of Promoter 3,19,98,438 68.20% 3,46,40,907 69.90% 
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and Promoter Group 

(B)  Public Shareholding     

1. Institutions - - - - 

2. Non-Institutions  1,46,29,542 31.18% 1,46,29,542 29.52% 

 Total Public Shareholding  1,46,29,542 31.18% 1,46,29,542 29.52% 

(C)  Non-Promoter Non-Public 

Shareholding  

    

1. Shares held by Custodians and 

against which DRs have been 

issued 

- - - - 

2.  Employee Benefit Trust (under 

SEBI (Share based Employee 

Benefit) Regulations 2014) 

2,89,040 0.62% 2,89,040 0.58% 

 Total Non-Promoter Non-Public 

Shareholding 

2,89,040 0.62% 2,89,040 0.58% 

 Total- (A) + (B) + (C)  4,69,17,020

  

100% 4,95,59,489 100% 

 

PRE-SCHEME AND POST SCHEME SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY NO. 1 

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 

 

Sr. 

No

. 

Name & Category of 

Shareholders 

Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme 

  Total nos. 

shares held 

Shareholdin

g as a % of 

total no. of 

shares 

Total nos. 

shares held 

Shareholdi

ng as a % of 

total no. of 

shares 

(A) Shareholding of Promoter & 

Promoter Group 

    

1. Indian 

Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain  

Mrs. Mridula Jain  

Ms. Arushi Jain  

Ms. Aditi Pasari  

Mr. Anubha Gupta  

 

 

182 

173 

108 

124 

120 

 

25.74%  

24.47%  

15.28% 

17.54% 

16.97% 

 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

2. Foreign - - - - 

 Total Shareholding of Promoter 

and Promoter Group 

707 100% - - 

(B)  Public Shareholding     
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1. Institutions - - - - 

2. Non-Institutions  - - - - 

 Total Public Shareholding  - - - - 

(C)  Non-Promoter Non-Public 

Shareholding  

    

1. Shares held by Custodians and 

against which DRs have been 

issued 

- - - - 

2.  Employee Benefit Trust (under 

SEBI (Share based Employee 

Benefit) Regulations 2014) 

- - - - 

 Total Non-Promoter Non-Public 

Shareholding 

- - - - 

 Total- (A) + (B) + (C)  707  100% - - 

 

PRE-SCHEME AND POST SCHEME SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY NO. 2 

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 

 

Sr. 

No

. 

Name & Category of 

Shareholders 

Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme 

  Total nos. 

shares held 

Shareholdin

g as a % of 

total no. of 

shares 

Total nos. 

shares held 

Shareholdi

ng as a % of 

total no. of 

shares 

(A) Shareholding of Promoter & 

Promoter Group 

    

1. Indian 

Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain  

Mrs. Mridula Jain  

Ms. Arushi Jain  

 

6,000 

2,000 

2,000 

 

60% 

20% 

20% 

 

- 

- 

- 

 

- 

- 

- 

2. Foreign - - - - 

 Total Shareholding of Promoter 

and Promoter Group 

10,000 100% - - 

(B)  Public Shareholding     

1. Institutions - - - - 

2. Non-Institutions  - - - - 

 Total Public Shareholding  - - - - 

(C)  Non-Promoter Non-Public     



A-28 
 

Shareholding  

1. Shares held by Custodians and 

against which DRs have been 

issued 

- - - - 

2.  Employee Benefit Trust (under 

SEBI (Share based Employee 

Benefit) Regulations 2014) 

- - - - 

 Total Non-Promoter Non-Public 

Shareholding 

- - - - 

 Total- (A) + (B) + (C)  10,000 100% - - 

 

XI. Auditors’ Certificate on conformity of accounting treatment in the Scheme with Accounting Standards 

The Auditors of the Transferee Company and of the Transferor Companies have confirmed that the 

accounting treatment specified in the Scheme is in conformity with the accounting standards prescribed 

under Section 133 of the Act. 

 

XII. Approvals and intimations in relation to the Scheme 

 

i. In terms of Regulation 37 of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with SEBI Circular 

CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange 

of India Limited (“NSE”), by their respective letters, dated February 01, 2021 and January 29, 2021 

have issued their observations on the Scheme to the Company. Copies of the said observation 

letters issued by NSE and BSE to the Company are attached hereto as Annexure “VII” and 

Annexure “VIII” respectively. Further, in terms of the said SEBI Circular the Company has not 

received any complaint relating to the Scheme and “NIL” complaint reports were led by the 

Company with NSE and BSE, copies of which are attached hereto as Annexure “V” and Annexure 

“VI” respectively. 

 

ii. In addition to the approval of the Tribunal, the Transferee Company and / or the Transferor 

Companies will obtain such necessary approvals/sanctions/no objection(s) from the regulatory or 

other governmental authorities in respect of the Scheme in accordance with law, as may be 

required. 

 

iii. Information pertaining to the Transferor Companies involved in the Scheme in the format 

prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in Part E of Schedule VI of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 along 

with the compliance report issued by D & A Financial Services (P) Limited, a Category I Merchant 

Banker are attached hereto as Annexure “XII” and Annexure “XIII” respectively. 

 

iv. No investigation proceedings have been instituted and/or are pending against the Transferee 

Company and the Transferor Companies under the Act. 

 

v. The Companies have filed a copy of the Scheme with the Registrar of Companies pursuant to 

Section 232(2)(b) of the Act.  

 

XIII. Valuation Report and Fairness Opinion 
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The Valuation Report dated 6th August, 2020 issued by Mr. Vardhman Doogar, Chartered Accountant, 

Registered Valuer recommended below share entitlement ratio for the Scheme:  

 

“In consideration for the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies and Transferee Company in terms of 

the Scheme and based on the Valuation Report and Fairness Opinion, Gulshan Polyols Limited will issue 

and allot 2,99,82,536 (Two Crore Ninety-Nine Lakh Eighty-Two Thousand Five Hundred and Thirty-Six) fully 

paid-up equity shares of the face value of INR 1/- (Rupee One) each, in the following manner:  

i. 39,848 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Polyols Limited for every 1 Equity 

Share of Rs.1000/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited. 

 

ii. 181 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Polyols Limited for every 1 Equity Share 

of Rs.10/- each fully paid up of East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private Limited” 

 

The Fairness Opinion Report dated 6th August, 2020 issued by M/s. Navigant Corporate Advisors Limited, a 

Category I Merchant Banker, has been issued in respect of the Valuation Report wherein it has been stated 

that the proposed share entitlement ratio as recommended by the valuers, which forms the basis of the 

proposed Scheme, is fair. 

The valuation methods used by the Mr. Vardhman Doogar, Chartered Accountant (Registered Valuer) for 

reckoning the aforesaid share entitlement ratio and the weights assigned to each method in reckoning the 

value per share are given below: 

[Values in INR/Rs.] 

Valuation Approach Gulshan Polyols 

Limited 

Gulshan Holdings Private 

Limited 

East Delhi Importers and 

Exporters Private Limited 

 

Value per 

Share 

Weight Value per 

Share 

Weight Value per 

Share 

Weight 

Adjusted Net Asset 

Value Method 

NA NA 1,913,284.67 1 8,686.72 1 

Discounted Cash Flow 

Method 

57.34 0.5 NA NA NA NA 

Market Price Method 38.69 0.5 NA NA NA NA 

Fair Value per share 48.01  1,913,284.67  8,686.72  

Share Exchange Ratio 

(Rounded off) 

  39,848  181  

NA: Not Applicable  

Please refer to the Valuation Reports and the Fairness Opinion that are enclosed as Annexure “III” and 

Annexure “IV” respectively.  

XIV. Inspection of Documents 

In addition to the documents annexed hereto, the electronic copy of following documents will be available 

for inspection in the “Investor Relations-Scheme of Amalgamation” section of the website of the Company: 

http://www.gulshanindia.com/scheme_of_amalgamation.html. Furthermore, copies of the following 

documents will be open for inspection to the secured creditors of the Transferee Company at its registered 

http://www.gulshanindia.com/scheme_of_amalgamation.html
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office at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001 on all days except Saturday, Sunday and public 

holidays up to the date of the Meeting:   

a. Order dated July 14, 2021 passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench 

in Company Application No. (CAA) No. 09/ALD of 2021  

b. Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferee Company and Transferor Companies;  

c. Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Transferor Company No. 1 for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2021; 

d. Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Transferor Company No. 2 for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2021; 

e. Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Transferee Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2021 and unaudited financial results (limited reviewed) of the Transferee Company for 

the quarter ended June 30, 2021;  

f. Copy of the Scheme; 

g. Certificates of the Statutory Auditors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Companies 

confirming that the accounting treatment prescribed under the Scheme is in compliance with 

Section 133 of the Act and applicable accounting standards; 

h. The Valuation Report dated 6th August, 2020 issued by Mr. Vardhman Doogar, Chartered 

Accountant, Registered Valuer and the Fairness Opinion Report dated 6th August, 2020 issued by 

M/s. Navigant Corporate Advisors Limited, a Category I Merchant Banker; 

i. Complaint report submitted by the Transferee Company to the NSE on November 03, 2020; 

j. Complaint report submitted by the Transferee Company to BSE on September 29, 2020 and 

November 03, 2020; 

k. Observation letter dated January 29, 2021 issued by the NSE to the Transferee Company; 

l. Observation letter dated February 01, 2021 issued by BSE to the Transferee Company;  

m. Report of the Audit Committee of the Transferee Company recommending the Scheme;  

n. Reports adopted by the respective Boards' of each of the Companies pursuant to Section 232(2)(c) 

of the Act; 

o. Extracts of the resolutions dated August 06, 2020 passed by the Boards' of the Transferee 

Company, Transferor Company No. 1 and Transferor Company No. 2, inter alia, approving the 

Scheme and the filing thereof with the Tribunal; 

p. Information in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus pertaining to the unlisted entity i.e., 

Transferor Company No. 1 involved in the Scheme as specified in Part E of Schedule VI of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018 along with the compliance report issued by D & A Financial Services (P) Limited, a Category I 

Merchant Banker; and  

q. Information in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus pertaining to the unlisted entity i.e., 

Transferor Company No. 2 involved in the Scheme as specified in Part E of Schedule VI of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018 along with the compliance report issued by D & A Financial Services (P) Limited, a Category I 

Merchant Banker.  

Based on the above and considering the rationale and benefits, in the opinion of the Board, the Scheme will 

be of advantage to, beneficial and in the interest of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee 

Company, their shareholders, creditors and other stakeholders and the terms thereof are fair and 

reasonable. The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company recommend the Scheme for approval of the 

shareholders. 
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The Directors and KMPs, as applicable, of the Transferee Company and of the Transferor Companies, and 

their relatives do not have any concern or interest, financially or otherwise, in the Scheme except as to the 

extent of their shareholding in the Companies as mentioned above in the pre-scheme and post-scheme 

shareholding pattern. 

Sd/-  

Rajeev K Goel 

Chairperson appointed by 

Tribunal for the Meeting 

 

Uttar Pradesh, August 14, 2021 

  

Registered Office:  

9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, 

Uttar Pradesh, India. 

Phone: +91 11 49999200  

Fax: +91 11 49999202 

E-mail: cs@gulshanindia.com 

Website: www.gulshanindia.com 

mailto:cs@gulshanindia.com
http://www.gulshanindia.com/
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SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION 

UNDER SECTION 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE  

PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

AMONGST 

GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED  

(TRANSFEOR COMPNAY 1) 

 

AND 

 

EAST DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

 (TRANSFEROR COMPANY 2) 

 

AND 

 

GULSHAN POLYOLS LIMITED 

(TRANSFEREE COMPANY) 

 

 AND  

 

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS 
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PREAMBLE 

A. This Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme”) provides for the amalgamation of 

Gulshan Holdings Private Limited (“Transferor Company 1”) and East Delhi 

Importers & Exporters Private Limited (“Transferor Company 2”) with 

Gulshan Polyols Limited (“Transferee Company”) on a going concern basis 

pursuant to  the provisions of Section 230 to 232 read with Companies 

(Compromise, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

B. Gulshan Holdings Private Limited (“Transferor Company 1”) having CIN : 

U74899UP1985PTC128005 and PAN : AAACG5688F was incorporated on 20th 

November, 1985 with Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana as a Private 

Company, Limited by Shares, and presently having its registered  office at 9th 

K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India.  

 

C. East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited (“Transferor Company 

2”) having CIN: U60231UP1997PTC129363 and PAN AABCA3294L was 

incorporated on 23rd July 1997 with Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana as a 

Private Company, Limited by Shares, and presently having its registered office at 

9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India.  

 

D. Gulshan Polyols Limited (“Transferee Company”) having CIN 

L24231UP2000PLC034918 and PAN AABCG3954F was incorporated on 20th 

October 2000 with Registrar of Companies, Kanpur as a Public Company, 

Limited by Shares, and presently having its registered office at 9th K.M., Jansath 

Road, Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India.  

 

E. The Scheme of Amalgamation is in the interest of the Transferor Company 1 and 

Transferor Company 2 and Transferee Company, their respective shareholders 

and creditors.  

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

1. This Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme”) is presented pursuant to the 

provisions of Sections 230-232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act") as may be applicable, and in compliance with the applicable 

Section(s) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961 for the following: 

 

1.1 Amalgamation (merger by absorption) of Gulshan Holdings Private 

Limited (“Transferor Company 1”) into and with Gulshan Polyols Limited 
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(“Transferee Company”) and consequent dissolution of the Transferor 

Company 1 without winding up; and  

 

1.2 Amalgamation (merger by absorption) of East Delhi Importers & 

Exporters Private Limited (“Transferor Company 2”) into and with 

Gulshan Polyols Limited (“Transferee Company”) and consequent 

dissolution of the Transferor Company 2 without winding up. 

 

1.3 The Scheme of divided into the following parts: 

Part Particulars 

I. Background, Rationale, Definitions, Effective Date and 

Share Capital 

II. Amalgamation, transfer and vesting of Undertaking of the 

Transferor Company 1 and Transferor Company 2 into and 

with the Transferee Company and the matters incidental 

thereto. 

III. Consideration by the Transferee Company 

IV. Accounting Treatment 

V. Dissolution of Transferor Companies and matters incidental 

thereto 

  

The Transferor Company 1 and Transferor Company 2 are collectively referred to 

herein as the Transferor Companies. 

 

PART I: BACKGROUND, RATIONALE, DEFINITIONS, EFFECTIVE 

DATE AND SHARE CAPITAL 

 

1. BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANIES 

  

1.1 GULSHAN POLYOLS LIMITED (hereinafter referred as “GPL” or 

“Transferee Company”), is a public limited Company within the meaning of the 

Companies Act, 2013 having its registered office at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, 

Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India and Corporate Identity Number 

(CIN)  L24231UP2000PLC034918. The equity shares of GPL are listed at BSE 

Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). GPL 

was originally incorporated on 20th October 2000 as a limited Company under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Permanent Account Number (PAN) 

of the Company is AABCG3954F. The Transferee Company is the subsidiary of 

the Transferor Company 1.    
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Transferee Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing multi-products 

such as starch sugar, high fructose rice syrup, brown rice syrup, rice syrup solids, 

calcium carbonate, agro based animal feed and alcohol. Further, the Transferee 

Company is engaged in installing onsite PCC plants.  

 

1.2 GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as 

“GHPL” or “Transferor Company 1”), is a private limited Company within the 

meaning of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at 9th K.M., 

Jansath Road, Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India and Corporate 

Identity Number (CIN) U74899UP1985PTC128005. GHPL was originally 

incorporated as a Company limited by shares on 20th November, 1985 under 

Companies Act, 1956 under the name of “Gulshan Marketing Private Limited”. 

Thereafter, pursuant to Section 23 of the Companies Act, 1956 and under the 

order of the Central Government, the name of the Company was changed to 

Gulshan Holdings Private Limited and a fresh certificate of change of name was 

issued to the Company on February 14, 2002. The Company by a special 

resolution shifted its registered office from the State of Delhi to the State of Uttar 

Pradesh from the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & 

Haryana to the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur, and the same was confirmed by 

the order of the Regional Director, Northern Region, Delhi dated February 25, 

2020. A certificate of registration issued by Registrar of Companies for the change 

of state was issued to the Company on March 19, 2020. The Permanent Account 

Number (PAN) of the Company is AAACG5688F. The Equity Shares of the 

Transferor Company 1 are not listed on any of the Stock Exchanges. The 

Transferor Company 1 is the holding Company of Transferee Company.   

 

Transferor Company 1 is engaged in the business of acquiring, investing and 

holding shares in companies having similar objects or companies providing value 

benefit, and guaranteeing the payment of money unsecured or secured by or 

payable under or in respect of contractual obligations. Also, The Transferor 

Company 1 is engaged in the business of trading goods.  

 

1.3 EAST DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

(hereinafter referred to as “EDIEPL” or ”“Transferor Company 2”) is a 

private limited Company within the meaning of the Companies Act, 2013, having 

its registered office at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar 

Pradesh, India and Corporate Identity Number (CIN) 

U60231UP1997PTC129363. EDIEPL was originally incorporated as a Company 

limited by shares on 23rd July, 1997 under Companies Act, 1956 under the name 

of “Atul Transport Private Limited”. Thereafter, pursuant to Section 23 of the 

Companies Act, 1956 and under the order of the Central Government, the name 
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of the Company was changed to East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private 

Limited and a fresh certificate of change of name was issued to the Company on 

June 23, 2007.The Company by a special resolution shifted its registered office 

from the State of Delhi to the State of Uttar Pradesh from the jurisdiction of 

Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana to the Registrar of Companies, 

Kanpur, and the same was confirmed by the order of the Regional Director, 

Northern Region, Delhi  dated February 25, 2020. A certificate of registration 

issued by Registrar of Companies, Kanpur for the change of state was issued to 

the company on June 10, 2020. The Permanent Account Number (PAN) of the 

Company is AABCA3294L. The Equity Shares of the Transferor Company 2 are 

not listed on any of the Stock Exchanges.  

 

Transferor Company 2 is engaged in the business of importing, exporting, dealing 

and trading multi-products which includes but not limited to textile products, 

chemicals, sugar and related products, engineering goods, molasses, grains, 

glassware, alcohol, oils, paper and related products, wood and timber etc. Further, 

the Company is engaged in the business as general carriers, transporters and 

freight forwarders, and exporting, importing, trading and dealing in the computer 

software, programmes, computer hardware and peripherals. 

 

2. RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME  

With a view to consolidate complementary and similar businesses under a single 

entity and to achieve a streamlined corporate structure by way of group 

reorganisation, the management has envisaged to undertake the amalgamation of 

the Transferor Companies in the Transferee Company under this Scheme. 

 

The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company 

would inter alia have the following benefits: 

 

a) Ensuring a streamlined group structure by reducing the number of legal 

entities;  

 

b) Reducing the multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances required at 

present; 

 

c) Eliminating duplicative communication and coordination efforts across 

multiple entities;  

 

d) Rationalising cost by eliminating multiple record keeping and administrative 

functions;  
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e) Help in achieving improved operational efficiency and optimum advantages 

and synergy in operations by combining the activities of the Transferor 

Companies with the Transferee Company. Accordingly, the Scheme would 

strengthen and complement the businesses of the Companies; 

 

f) The amalgamated entity will benefit from optimum utilization of manpower 

through improved organizational capacity and leadership, arising from the 

combination of people from the Transferor Companies and Transferee 

Company which have diverse skills, talent, management expertise, enlarged 

knowledge base and vast experience to compete successfully in an increased 

competitive industry; 

 

g) The amalgamated entity shall reduce fixed costs by removing duplicate 

departments, operations and lower the cost of the Company relative to the 

same revenue stream and shall thus increase the profit margins; 

 

h) Under a liberalised, fast changing and highly competitive environment, this 

amalgamation shall strengthen the business of the Transferor Companies 

and the Transferee Company by pooling up the resources, land, investment 

and assets for common purpose and hence optimum utilization; 

 

i) The amalgamation will result in better economic control, increased financial 

strength and flexibility and enhance the ability of the amalgamated entity to 

undertake large projects, thereby contributing to enhancement of future 

business potential; 

 

j) The amalgamation would not only lead to simplification of the shareholding 

structure and reduction of the shareholding tiers, but also demonstrate the 

promoter group direct commitment to and engagement with the Transferee 

Company; 

 

k) The amalgamation would lead to infusion of investments in forms of bank 

deposits, bank balance, securities etc. into the Transferee Company which 

will enhance the capability of the Transferee Company to undertake 

operations at an enhanced business potential.   

In view of the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of the Transferor Companies as 

well as the Transferee Company have considered and proposed the amalgamation 

of the entire undertakings and businesses of the Transferor Companies with the 

Transferee Company in order to benefit the stakeholders of both Transferor 

Companies and Transferee Company. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of all 

the companies have formulated this Scheme of Amalgamation for the transfer and 
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vesting of the entire undertakings and businesses of the Transferor Companies to 

the Transferee Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to Section 232 

of the Companies Act, 2013, read with applicable Rules made thereunder and 

other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  

The Scheme is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors and employees of the 

Transferor and Transferee Companies and their stakeholders and would enable 

the Transferee Company to adopt a focused business approach for the 

maximization of benefits to the stakeholders. The Scheme shall not in any manner 

be prejudicial to the general public at large. 

3. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS  

DEFINITIONS 

In this Scheme (as defined hereafter), unless repugnant to the meaning or context 

thereof, the following expressions shall have the following: 

 

i. “Act” or “the Act”  means the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent 

notified) and shall include any statutory modifications, re-enactment or 

amendments thereof for the time being in force and includes any rules, 

regulations, circulars or guidelines issued thereunder, as amended from 

time to time and shall include the Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent still 

in force); 

 

ii. "Appointed Date" means 1st April, 2020 or such other date as may be 

fixed or approved by the Appropriate Authority; 

 

iii. "Appropriate Authority" means any government, statutory, regulatory, 

departmental or public body or authority having jurisdiction over the 

Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company, including the Central 

Government, Regional Director, Registrar of Companies, the National 

Company Law Tribunal, NSE, BSE and SEBI; 

 

iv. "Assets" in relation to Transferor Companies means Fixed Assets, Loans 

and Advances, Investments, Current Assets, debit balance in Profit and 

Loss account and any other assets as per the books of the Transferor 

Companies as at March 31, 2020; 

 

v. "Board of Directors" or "Board" shall mean the Board of Directors of 

Transferor Companies and/or Transferee Company as the case may be and 

may include a duly constituted committee thereof for implementation of 

the Scheme; 
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vi. "BSE" means BSE Limited; 

 

vii. "Companies" means collectively, the Transferor Companies and the 

Transferee Company; 

 

viii. "Effective Date" means the date on which the final order of the NCLT 

has been passed approving the Scheme either on the terms as originally 

approved by the Parties to the Scheme, or subject to such modifications as 

may be approved by the NCLT, as shall in the form and substance be 

acceptable to the Transferee and Transferor Companies and also read with 

conditions set out in Clause 5 and Clause 16.2.  

References in this Scheme to "upon this Scheme becoming effective" or 

"effectiveness of this Scheme" or "Coming into Effect of this Scheme" 

shall mean the Effective Date; 

 

ix. "Liabilities" in relation to the Transferor Companies means Loan Funds, 

Current Liabilities, Reserves and Surpluses (including balance in Profit and 

Loss Account), provisions and all other liabilities of the Transferor 

Companies as per the books of the Transferor Companies as at March 31, 

2020; 

 

x. “National Company Law Tribunal” or "NCLT" means the Hon’ble 

National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench; 

 

xi. "NSE" means National Stock Exchange of India Limited; 

 

xii. “IT Act” means the Income Tax Act, 1961 and shall include any statutory 

modifications, re-enactments or amendments thereof (including Income 

Tax Rules) for the time being in force; 

 

xiii. "Proceedings" include any suit, appeal or any legal proceeding of 

whatsoever nature in any Court of law, or tribunal or any judicial or quasi-

judicial body or any assessment proceeding before any Statutory/ 

Regulatory Authority under any law and also includes arbitration 

proceeding;   

 

xiv. "Record Date" means the date, after the Effective Date fixed by the 

Board of the Transferee Company for the purpose of determining the 

shareholders of the Transferor Companies to whom shares of the 

Transferee Company shall be issued and allotted pursuant to amalgamation 

under this Scheme; 
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xv. "Registrar of Companies" or "ROC" means the relevant Registrar of 

Companies having territorial jurisdiction in the state(s) in which the 

respective registered offices of the Companies are located; 

 

xvi. “SAST Regulations” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as 

amended from time to time;  

 

xvii. "Scheme" or "this Scheme" or "the Scheme of Amalgamation" 

means this Scheme of Amalgamation in its present form as submitted to 

the NCLT or this Scheme with any amendment(s) or modification(s) if any, 

made by the shareholders of the respective Companies and accepted by the 

Board of the respective Companies or such modification(s) as may be 

imposed by any Appropriate Authority and / or directed to be made by the 

NCLT while sanctioning the Scheme and accepted by the Boards of the 

respective Companies; 

 

xviii. "SEBI" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India, established 

under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992; 

 

xix. "SEBI Circulars" means (i) Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 

dated March 10 2017, (ii) Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/26 dated 

March 23, 2017, (iii) SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/105 dated 

September 21, 2017, (iv) SEBI Circular No CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 

dated January 03, 2018, (v) SEBI Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2019/192 dated September 12, 2019 

issued by SEBI or any other circulars issued by SEBI applicable to scheme 

of arrangement from time to time; 

 

xx. "Stock Exchanges" means BSE and NSE collectively; 

 

xxi. "Transferor Companies" means Gulshan Holdings Private Limited and 

East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited; 

 

xxii. "Transferee Company" means Gulshan Polyols Limited; 

 

xxiii. "Undertaking" or "Undertaking of the Transferor Companies" shall 

mean and include the whole of the assets, properties, liabilities and the 

undertaking(s) and entire business(es) of the Transferor Companies as a 

going concern and specifically include the following (without limitation): 
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(a) All the assets and properties (whether movable or immovable, if any, 

tangible or intangible, real or personal, corporeal or incorporeal, 

present, future or contingent of whatsoever nature and wherever 

situated) of the Transferor Companies, including, without being limited 

to all their lands (freehold or leasehold), buildings, factory, work shop, 

all plant and machinery, fixed assets, godown, guest house, tenancy 

right, work in progress, show room, office equipment, accessories, 

power lines, power station, substation, railway tracks, vehicles, 

furniture and fixtures, deposits, assets, current assets, premises, 

investments of all kinds (including shares, scripts, stocks, bonds, 

debenture stocks, units), cash balances including with banks, loans 

(including working capital loan), advances, contingent rights or 

benefits, receivables, refunds, claims, earnest moneys, advances or 

deposits paid by the Transferor Companies, their goodwill, financial 

assets, lease and hire purchase contracts, lending contracts, rights and 

benefits under any agreement, benefit of any security arrangements or 

under any guarantee, reversions, powers, municipal permissions, 

authorities, allotments, approvals, consents, licences, registrations, 

contracts, engagements, arrangements, customer contracts, customer 

approvals, rights, titles, interests, benefits and advantages of 

whatsoever nature and wheresoever situate belonging to or in the 

ownership, power or possession and in the control of or vested in or 

granted in favour of, or enjoyed by the Transferor Companies 

including licenses, fixed and other assets, trade and service names 

liberties, patents, brand, trademarks, logo, designs, copyrights and 

other intellectual property rights of any nature whatsoever, import 

licences, quotas, permits, concessions, subsidies, approvals, 

authorisations, right to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile 

connections, LAN installations, utilities, electricity and other services, 

reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of assets and properties and all 

agreements and all other interests held in trust, registrations, contracts, 

engagements, arrangements of all kinds, privileges and all other rights, 

benefits of all agreements, subsidies, grants, incentives, tax and other 

credits [including but not limited to credits in respect of Tax, income-

tax, minimum alternate tax i.e. tax on book profits, (whether recorded 

or not in the financial statements), tax deducted at source, tax collected 

at source, advance tax, goods and service tax, value added tax, central 

sales tax, sales tax, CENVAT, MODVAT, excise duty, service tax, 

custom duty, octroy, entry tax etc.), tax losses (including unabsorbed 

depreciation), brought forward tax losses, book losses for minimum 

B-10



 

Page 11 of 44 
 

alternate tax purposes, tax benefits and other claims and powers, all 

books of accounts, documents and records of whatsoever nature and 

wheresoever situated, easements, arrangements of all kind, privileges, 

liberties and advantages of whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated 

belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession and in the 

control of or vested or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the 

Transferor Companies or in connection with or relating to that of the 

Transferor Companies and all other interests of whatsoever nature 

belonging to or in the ownership, power, possession or the control of 

or vested in or granted in favour of or held for the benefit of or 

enjoyed by the Transferor Companies 

 

(b) all intellectual property rights including patents designs, copyrights, 

trademarks, brands (whether registered or otherwise), logo, 

advertisement banner, goodwill, records, files, papers, computer 

programs, manuals, data, catalogues, sales material, lists of customers 

and suppliers, other customer information and all other records and 

documents relating to the business, activities and operations of the 

Transferor Companies; 

 

(c) all letters of intent, request for proposal, prequalification, bid 

acceptances (including benefit arising out of or in relation to any bank 

guarantees submitted to any authority in respect thereof by the 

Transferor Companies), tenders, contracts, deeds, memorandum of 

understanding, bonds, agreements, arrangements, track-record, 

technical know-how, technical experience (including experience in 

executing projects), experience, goodwill and all other rights, claims 

and powers and any other instrument of whatsoever nature and 

wheresoever situated belonging to or in the possession of or granted in 

favour of or enjoyed by the Transferor Companies for all intents and 

purposes and specifically including but not limited to, the turnover, the 

profitability, performance, and market share, prequalification, net 

worth and reserves of the Transferor Companies; 

 

(d) right to any claim not preferred or made by the Transferor Companies 

in respect of any refund of tax, duty, cess or other charge, including 

any erroneous or excess payment thereof made by the Transferor 

Company and any interest thereon, with regard to any law, act or rule 

or Scheme made by the Government, and in respect of set-off, carry 

forward of unabsorbed losses and/or unabsorbed depreciation, 

deferred revenue expenditure, deduction, exemption, rebate, allowance, 
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amortization benefit, etc. under the Income-tax Act, 1961, or taxation 

laws of other countries, or any other or like benefits under the said 

statute(s) or under and in accordance with any law or statute, whether 

in India or anywhere outside India; 

 

(e) all debts (secured and unsecured), liabilities including contingent 

liabilities, duties, leases of the Transferor Companies and all other 

obligations of whatsoever kind, nature and description. Provided that, 

any reference in the security documents or arrangements entered into 

by the Transferor Companies and under which, the assets of the 

Transferor Companies stand offered as a security, for any financial 

assistance or obligation, the said reference shall be construed as a 

reference to the assets pertaining to that Undertakings of the 

Transferor Companies only as are vested in Transferee Company by 

virtue of the Scheme and the Scheme shall not operate to enlarge 

security for any loan, deposit or facility created by the Transferor 

Companies which shall vest in Transferee Company by virtue of the 

amalgamation and Transferee Company shall not be obliged to create 

any further or additional security thereof after the amalgamation has 

become effective;  

 

(f) all other obligations of whatsoever nature, including liabilities of the 

Transferor Companies with regard to their employees with respect to 

the payment of gratuity, pension benefits and the provident fund or 

compensation, if any, in the event of resignation, death, voluntary 

retirement or retrenchment; 

 

(g) all staff, workmen, and employees engaged in or relating to the 

business activities and operations of the Transferor Companies; 

 

(h) all balances with government, quasi-government authorities, municipal, 

local and other authorities and bodies, customers and any other 

persons, earnest moneys and/or security deposits paid or received by 

the Transferor Companies; and 

 

(i) all books, records, files, papers, product specifications and process 

information, records of standard operating procedures, computer 

programs along with their licenses, manuals and backup copies, 

drawings, other manuals, data catalogues, emails, presentation, 

correspondences /communications with third parties/authorities, 

quotations, sales and advertising materials, lists of present and former 
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customers and suppliers, customer credit information, customer 

pricing information, and other records whether in physical or 

electronic form. 

 

It is intended that the definition of Undertakings of the Transferor 

Companies under this clause will enable the transfer of all property, assets, 

rights, duties, obligations, entitlements, benefits, employees and liabilities 

of Transferor Companies with Transferee Company pursuant to this 

Scheme becoming effective. 

INTERPRETATION  

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:  

(a) references to persons shall include individuals, bodies corporate (wherever 

incorporated), unincorporated associations and partnerships; 

(b) the headings are inserted for ease of reference only and shall not affect the 

construction or interpretation of this Scheme; 

(c) words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;  

(d) references to a clause or paragraph or schedule, as applicable, shall be deemed 

to be a reference to a clause or paragraph or schedule of this Scheme; 

(e) reference to the words ‘hereof’, ‘herein’ and ‘hereby’ and derivatives or similar 

words refer to this entire Scheme; 

(f) references to the words ‘including’, ‘inter-alia’ or any similar expression, shall 

be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words 

preceding those terms; and 

(g) all the expressions which are used in this Scheme and not defined in this 

Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning hereof, 

have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act, the Securities 

Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (including the regulations made thereunder), the Depositories Act, 

1996, the IT Actor any other applicable laws, rules, regulations, bye laws, as 

the case may be, including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof 

from time to time. 

(h) Any reference to any statute or statutory provision shall include: 

i. all subordinate legislations made from time to time under that 

provision (whether or not amended, modified, re-enacted or 

consolidated from time to time) and any retrospective amendment; and  

ii. such provision as from time to time amended, modified, re-enacted or 

consolidated (whether before or after the filing of this Scheme) to the 

extent such amendment, modification, re-enactment or consolidation 

applies or is capable of applying to the matters contemplated under 
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this Scheme and (to the extent liability thereunder may exist or can 

arise) shall include any past statutory provision (as amended, modified, 

re-enacted or consolidated from time to time) which the provision 

referred to has directly or indirectly replaced. 

 

4. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANIES 

4.1 The Share Capital of Transferee Company as on 31st March, 2020 is as under:  

4.1.1 Authorised Capital is Rs. 37,25,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Seven Crores and 

Twenty Five Lacs Only) divided into: 

i. Equity Share Capital of Rs. 22,50,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Two 

Crores and Fifty Lacs Only) consisting of 22,50,00,000 (Twenty 

Two Crore and Fifty Lacs) Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each; 

ii. Preference Share Capital Rs. 25, 00, 000/- (Rupees Twenty Five 

Lacs only) consisting of 2,50,000 (Two Lacs and Fifty Thousand) 

0% (Zero Percent) Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each; 

iii. Preference Share Capital Rs. 14,50,00,000/- (Rupees Fourteen 

Crores and Fifty Lacs Only) consisting of 14,50,000 (Fourteen Lacs 

and Fifty Thousand) 0% -10% (Zero Percent to Ten Percent) 

Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each. 

 

4.1.2 The issued, subscribed and paid up capital as at 31st March, 2020 was Rs. 

14,44,17,020 (Rupees Fourteen Crores Forty Four Lacs Seventeen 

Thousand and Twenty Only) given as under: 

i. Equity Share Capital of Rs. 4,69,17,020/- (Rupees Four Crores Sixty 

Nine Lacs Seventeen Thousands and Twenty Only) consisting of 

4,69,17,020 (Four Crores Sixty Nine Lacs Seventeen Thousands and 

Twenty) Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each; 

ii. Preference Share Capital of Rs. 9,75,00,000 (Rupees Nine Crore and 

Seventy Five Lacs Only) consisting of 9,75,000 (Nine Lacs and 

Seventy Five Thousands) 8% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 

100/- each.    

 

4.2 The Share Capital of Transferor Company 1 as on 31st March, 2020 is as under: 

4.2.1 Authorised Capital is Rs. 5,55,00,000 (Rupees Five Crores and Fifty Five 

Lacs Only) divided into 55,500 (Fifty Five Thousands and Five Hundreds) 

Equity Shares of Rs. 1000/- each.  

 

4.2.2 The issued, subscribed and paid up share capital is Rs. 7,07,000 (Rupees 

Seven Lacs and Seven Thousands Only) divided into 707 (Seven Hundreds 

and Seven) Equity Shares of Rs. 1000/- each.  
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4.3 The Share Capital of Transferor Company 2 as on 31st March, 2020 is as under: 

4.3.1 Authorised Capital is Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees One Lac Only) divided into 

10,000 (Ten Thousands) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

 

4.3.2 The issued, subscribed and paid up share capital is Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees 

One Lac Only) divided into 10,000 (Ten Thousands) Equity Shares of Rs. 

10/- each.  

 

5. DATE WHEN THE SCHEME COMES INTO OPERATION  

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) 

approved or imposed or directed by NCLT, unless otherwise specified in the 

Scheme, operative from the Appointed Date as specified herein, shall become 

effective on the date on which certified copies of the final order of the Hon'ble 

NCLT sanctioning the Scheme as issued to the Transferor Companies and the 

Transferee Company and the same has been filed with the Registrar of 

Companies.  

 

PART II 

 

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING OF TRANSFEROR 

COMPANIES 

 

6. TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKING OF TRANSFEROR COMPANIES 

6.1 General  

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed 

Date, the Undertakings of the Transferor Companies shall, pursuant to the 

sanction of this Scheme by the NCLT and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 

230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, be and stand 

transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested 

in the Transferee Company, as a going concern without any further act, 

instrument, deed, matter or thing so as to become, and as and from the Appointed 

Date, the properties, estates, assets, titles and interests of the Transferee Company 

by virtue of and in the manner provided in the Scheme subject to all charges, liens, 

mortgages, lis-pendens, if any, then affecting the same or any part thereof and all 

the creditors of the Transferor Companies shall become the creditors of the 

Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions. 

 

6.2 Transfer of Assets  

6.2.1 Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 6.1 above, upon coming into 

effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date: 
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(a) All assets and properties comprised in the Undertakings of the 

Transferor Companies of whatsoever nature and wheresoever 

situated, shall, under the provisions of Section 230 to 232 and all 

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further act 

or deed be and stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee 

Company or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the 

Transferee Company as a going concern so as to become, as and 

from the Appointed Date, the assets and properties of the Transferee 

Company. 

Provided that Board of Directors of the Transferee Company shall be 

entitled, at its discretion and as may be advised or considered fit, 

expedient or necessary, to determine the classification/ 

reclassification and treatment of any or all of the assets and/or 

employees or any other rights, interests, obligations or anything else 

transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company pursuant to this 

Scheme. 

 

(b) Without prejudice to the provisions of sub-clause (a) above in respect 

of such of the assets and properties of the Transferor Companies, as 

are movable in nature or incorporeal property or are otherwise 

capable of transfer by manual delivery or by endorsement and/or 

delivery, the same shall be so transferred by the Transferor 

Companies and shall, upon such transfer, become the assets and 

properties of the Transferee Company as an integral part of its 

Undertakings without requiring any deed or instrument or 

conveyance for the same. 

 

(c) In respect of the movables other than those dealt with in sub-clause 

(b) above including sundry debtors, receivables, bills, loans and 

advances, if any, whether recoverable in cash or in kind or for value 

to be recovered, bank balances, investments, earnest money and 

deposits with any Government, quasi-government authorities, local 

or other authority or body or with any company or other person, the 

same shall on and from the Appointed Date stand transferred to and 

vested in the transferee Company without any notice or other 

intimation to the debtors (although the Transferee company may if it 

so deems appropriate, give notice in such form as it may deem fit and 

proper, to each person, debtors or depositees, as the case may be, 

that the said debt, loan, advance, balance or deposit stand transferred 

and vested in the Transferee Company). 
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(d) The mutation of the ownership title, or interest in the immovable 

properties (whether freehold or leasehold of whatsoever nature and 

wherever so situated) related to the Transferor Companies in favour 

of the Transferee Company shall be made and duly recorded by the 

appropriate authorities pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme and it 

becoming effective without any other deed or act required therefor in 

accordance with the terms thereof.  

 

(e) All the licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, permissions, registrations, 

incentives, sales tax deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, 

grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights, customer registrations, 

customer approvals, liberties, special status and other benefits or 

privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed of by the 

Transferor Companies and all rights and benefits that have accrued 

or which may accrue to the Transferor Companies, whether before or 

after the Appointed Date, shall under the provisions of Section 230 

to 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions, if any, without 

any further act, instrument or deed, cost or charge be and stand 

transferred to and vest in or deemed to be transferred to and vested 

in or be available to the Transferee Company so as to become as and 

from the Appointed Date, licences, permits, quotas, approvals, 

permissions, registrations, incentives, sales tax deferrals and benefits, 

subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights, 

customer registrations, customer approvals, liberties, special status 

and other benefits or privileges of the Transferee Company and shall 

remain valid, effective and enforceable on the same terms and 

conditions. 

 

(f) In so far as the various incentives, subsidies, special status and other 

benefits or privileges enjoyed (including minimum alternate tax, input 

tax credit, goods and services tax, sales tax, excise duty, custom duty, 

service tax, value added tax and other incentives), granted by any 

Government body, local authority or by any other person and availed 

of by the Transferor Companies is concerned, the same shall vest 

with and be available to the Transferee Company on the same terms 

and conditions as presently available to the Transferor Companies. 

 

(g) With effect from the Appointed Date all permits, quotas, rights, 

entitlements, tenancies and licenses relating to brands, trademarks, 

patents, copy rights, privileges, powers, facilities of every kind and 

description of whatsoever nature in relation to the Undertakings of 
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the Transferor Companies and which are subsisting or having effect 

immediately before the Appointed Date, shall be and remain in full 

force and effect in favour of the Transferee Company and may be 

enforced fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor 

Companies, the Transferee Company had been a beneficiary or 

obligee thereto. 

 

(h) With effect from the Appointed Date any statutory licenses, 

permissions, quotas, permits, approvals, consents, registrations, 

eligibility certificates, pre-qualification criteria, technical experience, 

fiscal incentives and no-objection certificates obtained and/or held 

by the Transferor Companies for their operations and/or to which 

the Transferor Companies are entitled to in terms of the various 

Statutes and / or Schemes of Union and State Governments, shall be 

available to and vest in, and/or be transferred to, the Transferee 

Company without any further act or deed and shall be appropriately 

mutated by the statutory authorities or any other person concerned 

therewith in favour of the Transferee Company. Since the 

Undertakings of the Transferor Companies will be transferred to and 

vested in the Transferee Company as going concerns without any 

break or interruption in the operations thereof, the Transferee 

Company shall be entitled to the benefit of all statutory and 

regulatory permissions, licenses, environmental approvals and 

consents including the statutory licenses, permissions or approvals or 

consents required to carry on the operations of the Transferor 

Companies shall vest in, and become available to, the Transferee 

Company upon the Scheme coming into effect. 

 

(i) The Transferor Companies shall, if so required, also give notice in 

such form as it may deem fit and proper to the debtors, that pursuant 

to the sanction of this Scheme by Appropriate Authority under and 

in accordance with Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Act, the said debtors shall pay to the 

Transferee Company the debt, loan or advance or make payment of 

the same on account of the Transferor Companies and the right of 

the Transferor Companies to recover or realize the same stands 

extinguished. 

 

6.2.2 All assets and properties of the Transferor Companies as on the Appointed 

Date, whether or not included in the books of the respective Transferor 

Companies, and all assets and properties, which are acquired by the 
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Transferor Companies on or after the Appointed Date but prior to the 

Effective Date, shall be deemed to be and shall become the assets and 

properties of the Transferee Company and shall under the provisions of 

Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable provisions if any of the Act, 

without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and 

vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the 

Transferee Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme pursuant 

to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the  Act, provided however that 

no onerous asset shall have been acquired by the Transferor Companies 

after the Appointed Date without the prior written consent of the 

Transferee Company. 

 

6.3 From the Effective Date and till such time that the names of the bank accounts of 

the Transferor Companies are replaced with that of the Transferee Company, the 

Transferee Company shall be entitled to operate the bank accounts of the 

Transferor Companies, in its name, in so far as may be necessary. 

 

6.4 In relation to the assets, properties and rights including rights arising from 

contracts, deeds, instruments and agreements, if any, which require separate 

documents of transfer including documents for attornment or endorsement, as 

the case may be, the Transferee Company will execute the necessary documents of 

transfer including documents for attornment or endorsement, as the case may be, 

as and when required or will enter into a novation agreement. 

 

6.5 Transfer of Liabilities  

6.5.1 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed 

Date, all Liabilities relating to and comprised in the respective Undertakings 

of the Transferor Companies shall, pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme 

by the Appropriate Authority and under the provisions of Sections 230 to 

232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further 

act, instrument, deed, matter or thing, be transferred to and vested in or be 

deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company, 

and the same shall be assumed by the Transferee Company to the extent 

they are outstanding on the Effective Date so as to become as from the 

Appointed Date the Liabilities of the Transferee Company on the same 

terms and conditions as were applicable to the respective Transferor 

Companies and the Transferee Company shall meet, discharge and satisfy 

the same and further it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any 

third party or other person who is party to any contract or arrangement by 

virtue of which such Liabilities have arisen in order to give effect to the 

provisions of this clause. 
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6.5.2 All debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of all the Transferor Companies 

shall, as on the Appointed Date, whether or not provided in the books of 

the respective Transferor Companies, and all debts and loans raised and 

used, and duties, liabilities and obligations incurred or which arise or accrue 

to the respective Transferor Companies on or after the Appointed Date till 

the Effective Date shall be deemed to be and shall become the debts, loans 

raised and used, duties, liabilities and obligations incurred by the Transferee 

Company by virtue of this Scheme. 

 

6.5.3 Where any such debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the respective 

Transferor Companies as on the Appointed Date have been discharged by 

the Transferor Companies after the Appointed Date and prior to the 

Effective Date, such discharge shall be deemed to be for and on account of 

the Transferee Company. 

 

6.5.4 All loans raised and utilized and all liabilities, duties and obligations incurred 

or undertaken by the respective Transferor Companies after the Appointed 

Date and prior to the Effective Date shall be deemed to have been raised, 

used, incurred or undertaken for and on behalf of the Transferee Company 

and to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall, upon the 

coming into effect of this Scheme and under the provisions of Sections 230 

to 232 of the Act, without any further act, instrument or deed be and stand 

transferred to or vested in or deemed to have been transferred to and vested 

in the Transferee Company and shall become the loans and liabilities, duties 

and obligations of the Transferee Company which shall meet, discharge and 

satisfy the same. 

 

6.5.5 Loans, advances and other obligations (including any guarantees, letters of 

credit, letters of comfort or any other instrument or arrangement which may 

give rise to a contingent liability in whatever form), if any, due or which may 

at any time in future become due between the respective Transferor 

Companies and the Transferee Company shall, ipso facto, stand discharged 

and come to an end and there shall be no liability in that behalf on any party 

and appropriate effect shall be given in the books of accounts and records of 

the Transferee Company. It is hereby clarified that there will be no accrual of 

interest or other charges in respect of any such inter-company loans, 

advances and other obligations with effect from the Appointed Date.  

 

6.5.6 The Transferee Company may, at any time, after the coming into effect of 

this Scheme in accordance hereof, if so required, under any law or otherwise, 

execute deeds of confirmation in favour of the creditors, or lenders, as the 

case may be, or in favour of any other party to the contract or arrangement 

to which the Transferor Companies are party or any writing, as may be 

necessary, in order to give formal effect to the provisions mentioned herein. 
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The Transferee Company shall under the provisions of the Scheme be 

deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of the 

Transferor Companies as well as to implement and carry out all such 

formalities and compliances referred to above. 

 

6.5.7 The Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit or 

facility created by or available to the Transferor Companies which shall vest 

in the Transferee Company by virtue of the amalgamation and the 

Transferee Company shall not be obliged to create any further, or additional 

security therefor after the amalgamation has become effective or otherwise. 

 

6.5.8 Without prejudice to the foregoing provisions of this Clause 6.5.1: 

 

i. All debentures, bonds, notes or other debt securities, if any, of the 

Transferor Companies relating to the Liabilities comprised in their 

respective Undertakings (hereinafter referred to as the "Debt 

Securities") shall, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and 

other relevant provisions of the Act, without any further act, 

instrument or deed, become the Debt Securities of the Transferee 

Company on the same terms and conditions and all rights, powers, 

duties and obligations in relation thereto shall be and stand 

transferred to and vested in and shall be exercised by or against the 

Transferee Company to the same extent as if it were the respective 

Transferor Companies in respect of the Debt Securities so 

transferred and vested. 

ii. Any Debt Securities issued by the Transferor Companies and held by 

the Transferee Company shall, unless sold or transferred by the 

Transferee Company at any time prior to the Effective Date, stand 

cancelled as on the Effective Date and be of no effect and the 

Transferor Company shall have no further obligation in that behalf. 

 

6.5.9 Any loans or other obligations, if any, due inter-se i.e. between the 

Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company as on the Appointed 

Date, and thereafter till the Effective Date, shall stand automatically 

extinguished. 

 

6.6 Encumbrances  

6.6.1 The transfer and vesting of the assets comprised in the respective 

Undertakings of the Transferor Companies to and in the Transferee 

Company under Clause 6.1 and Clause 6.2 of this Scheme shall be subject to 

the mortgage and charges, if any, affecting the same as hereinafter provided. 
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6.6.2 All the existing securities, charges, encumbrances or liens (the 

"Encumbrances"), if any, created by the Transferor Companies after the 

Appointed Date, in terms of the Scheme, over the assets comprised in their 

respective Undertakings or any part thereof transferred to the Transferee 

Company by virtue of this Scheme and in so far as such Encumbrances 

secure or relate to Liabilities of the Transferor Companies, the same shall, 

after the Effective Date, continue to relate and attach to such assets or any 

part thereof to which they are related or attached prior to the Effective Date 

and as are transferred to the Transferee Company and such Encumbrances 

shall not relate or attach to any of the other assets of the Transferee 

Company. 

 

6.6.3 The transfer and vesting of the Undertakings of the Transferor Companies 

as aforesaid shall be subject to the existing securities, encumbrances, charges 

and mortgages, if any, subsisting, over or in respect of the property and 

assets or any part thereof of the Transferor Companies. 

 

Provided however, that any reference in any security documents or 

arrangements (to which the Transferor Companies, is a party) pertaining to 

the assets of Transferor Companies offered or agreed to be offered as 

security for any financial assistance or obligations, shall be construed as 

reference only to such assets, as are offered or agreed to be offered as 

security, pertaining to the Transferor Companies as are vested in the 

Transferee Company by virtue of the aforesaid clauses, to the end and intent 

that such security, charge and mortgage shall not extend or be deemed to 

extend, to any of the other assets of the Transferor Companies or any of the 

assets of the Transferee  Company. Further, the Transferee Company shall 

not be required to create any additional security over assets acquired by it 

under the Scheme for any loans, deposits or other financial assistance availed 

/to be availed by the Transferor Companies. 

 

6.6.4 The existing Encumbrances over the assets and properties of the Transferee 

Company or any part thereof which relate to the liabilities and obligations of 

the Transferee Company prior to the Effective Date shall continue to relate 

to such assets and properties and shall not extend or attach to any of the 

assets and properties of the Transferor Companies transferred to and vested 

in the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme. 

 

6.6.5 Any reference in any security documents or arrangements (to which a 

Transferor Company is a party) to the respective Transferor Company and 

in assets and properties, shall be construed as a reference to the Transferee 
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Company and the assets and properties of the Transferor Company 

transferred to the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme. Without 

prejudice to the foregoing provisions, the respective Transferor Company 

and the Transferee Company may execute any instruments or documents or 

do all acts and deeds as may be considered appropriate, including the filing 

of necessary particulars and/or modification(s) of charge, with the Registrar 

of Companies to give formal effect to the above provisions, if required. 

 

6.6.6 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company alone 

shall be liable to perform all obligations in respect of the liabilities, which 

have been transferred to it in terms of the Scheme. 

 

6.6.7 It is expressly provided that, save as herein provided, no other term or 

condition of the liabilities transferred to the Transferee Company is 

modified by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that such amendment 

is required statutorily or by necessary implication. 

 

6.6.8 The provisions of this Clause 6.6.8 shall operate in accordance with the 

terms of the Scheme, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in 

any instrument, deed or writing or the terms of sanction or issue or any 

security documents; all of which instruments, deeds or writing shall stand 

modified and/or superseded by the foregoing provisions. 

 

6.6.9 The Transferee Company may, at any time after the coming into effect of 

this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under 

any law or otherwise, execute Deeds of Confirmation in favour of the 

secured creditors of the Transferor Companies or in favour of any other 

party to any contract or arrangement to which the respective Transferor 

Companies is a party or any writings as may be necessary to be executed in 

order to give formal effect to the above provisions. The Transferee 

Company shall, under the provisions of the Scheme, be deemed to be 

authorised to execute any such writings on behalf of the respective 

Transferor Companies and to implement or carry out all such formalities or 

compliance referred to above on the part of the respective Transferor 

Companies, required to be carried out or performed. 

 

6.7 Taxes  

All taxes (including but not limited to advance tax, self-assessment tax, regular tax, 

tax deducted at source, minimum alternate tax credits, dividend distribution tax, 

securities transaction tax, taxes withheld / paid in foreign country, value added 

tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax etc.) paid / payable by or refunded 
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/ refundable to the Transferor Companies with effect from the Appointed Date, 

including all or any refunds or claims shall be treated as the tax liability or refunds 

/ claims etc. as the case may be, of the Transferee Company, and any tax 

incentives, advantages, privileges, exemptions, credits, holidays, remissions, 

reductions, service tax input credits, GST input credits etc., as would have been 

available to the Transferor Companies, shall pursuant to this Scheme becoming 

effective be available to the Transferee Company. This clause is to be read along 

with Clause 24 of this Scheme. 

 

6.8 Inter-Se Transactions 

Without prejudice to the provisions of Clauses 6.1 to 6.4, with effect from the 

Appointed Date, all inter-party transactions between the Transferor Companies 

and the Transferee Company shall be considered as intra-party transactions for all 

purposes from the Appointed Date. For the removal of doubt, it is clarified that 

upon the Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Appointed Date, to 

the extent there are inter-corporate loans, deposits, obligation, balances or other 

outstanding as between the Transferor Companies and/or the Transferee 

Company, the obligations in respect thereof shall come to an end and there shall 

be no liability in that behalf and corresponding effect shall be given in the books 

of account and records of the Transferee Company for the reduction of such 

assets or liabilities as the case may be. 

 

7. CONTRACTS, DEEDS ETC.  

(a) Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to the provisions 

hereof, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements, 

assurances and other instruments of whatsoever nature to which any 

Transferor Companies is a party or to the benefit of which the respective 

Transferor Companies may be eligible and which are subsisting or have effect 

immediately before the Effective Date, shall continue in full force and effect 

on or against or in favour of, as the case may be, and be enforced as fully and 

effectually as if, instead of the respective Transferor Company, the Transferee 

Company had been party or beneficiary or obligee thereto or thereunder. 

 

(b) Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding 

the fact that vesting of the Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, 

the Transferee Company may, at any time after the coming into effect of this 

Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any law 

or otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (deeds of adherence), 

confirmations or other writings or arrangements with any party to any 

contract or arrangement to which any of the respective Transferor Company 

is a party or any writings may be necessary in order to give formal effect to the 
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provisions of this Scheme. The Transferee Company shall, under the 

provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorised to execute any such 

writings on behalf of the respective Transferor Company and to carry out or 

perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of 

the respective Transferor Company to be carried out or performed. 

 

(c) For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the 

foregoing, it is clarified that upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all 

consents, permissions, statutory licences, certificates, clearances, authorities, 

powers of attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of any of the 

respective Transferor Company shall stand transferred to the Transferee 

Company, as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in 

favour of the Transferee Company, and the Transferee Company shall be 

bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder and the 

rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the Transferee 

Company. The Transferee Company shall receive relevant approvals from the 

concerned Government Authorities as may be necessary in this behalf. 

 

8. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS  

On and from the Appointed Date, all suits, actions and legal proceedings by or 

against any of the respective Transferor Company pending and/or arising on or 

before the Effective Date shall be continued and/or enforced as desired by the 

Transferee Company and on and from the Effective Date, shall be continued 

and/or enforced by or against the Transferee Company as effectually and in the 

same manner and to the same extent as if the same had been instituted and/or 

pending and/or arising by or against the Transferee Company. The Transferee 

Company undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement/settlement, if any, 

entered into by the respective Transferor Company with any union/employee of 

the respective Transferor Company. 

 

9. TRANSFER OF PROFITS/LOSSES AND RESERVES 

With effect from the Appointed Date, all profits (including losses), reserves, 

income accruing to or losses and expenditure, if any (including payment of 

penalty, damages or costs of litigation) arising to or incurred by the Undertaking 

of the Transferor Companies shall for all purposes, be treated as the profits or 

reserves or income or losses or expenditure, as the case may be of the Transferee 

Company. 

 

10. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS  

10.1 With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective 

Date:  
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(a) The Transferor Companies shall carry on and shall be deemed to 

have carried on all their business and activities as hitherto and shall 

hold and stand possessed of their respective Undertakings on account 

of, and for the benefit of and in trust for, the Transferee Company. 

 

(b) All profits or incomes accruing or arising to the Transferor 

Companies, and all expenditure or losses arising or incurred 

(including all taxes, if any, paid or accruing in respect of any profit 

and income) by the Transferor Companies shall, for all purposes, be 

treated and be deemed to be and accrued as the profits or incomes or 

as the case may be, expenditure or losses (including taxes) of the 

Transferee Company. 

 

(c) All assets howsoever acquired by the Transferor Companies for 

carrying on their businesses, operations or activities and the liabilities 

relating thereto shall be deemed to have been acquired and are also 

contracted for and on behalf of the Transferee Company. 

 

(d) All taxes (including income tax, goods and services tax, sales tax, 

excise duty, customs duty, service tax, VAT etc.) paid or payable by 

the Transferor Companies in respect of the operations and/or the 

profits of their respective businesses/Undertaking before the 

Appointed Date, or after the Appointed Date, but before the 

Effective Date, shall be on account of the Transferee Company and, 

in so far as it relates to tax payment (including, without limitation, 

income tax, minimum alternate tax, sales tax, goods and services tax, 

excise duty, custom duty, service tax, VAT etc.), whether by way of 

deduction at source, advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by the 

Transferor Companies in respect of the profits or activities or 

operation of their respective businesses after the Appointed Date, or 

during the period between the Appointed Date and Effective Date, 

the same shall be deemed to be the corresponding amount paid by 

the Transferee Company and shall, in all proceedings be dealt 

accordingly. 

 

(e) Any of the rights, powers, authorities and privileges attached or 

related or pertaining to and exercised by or available to the Transferor 

Companies shall be deemed to have been exercised by the Transferor 

Companies for and on behalf of and as agent for the Transferee 

Company. Similarly, any of the obligations, duties and commitments 

attached, related or pertaining to their Undertaking that has been 
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undertaken or discharged by the Transferor Companies shall be 

deemed to have been undertaken or discharged for and on behalf of 

and as agent of the transferee Company. 

 

10.2 With effect from the first of the dates of filing of this Scheme with the 

NCLT and up to and including the Effective Date: 

(a) The Transferor Companies shall preserve and carry on their 

businesses and activities with reasonable diligence and business 

prudence and shall not undertake any financial commitments of any 

nature whatsoever, borrow any amounts nor incur any liabilities or 

expenditure, issue any additional guarantees, indemnities, letters of 

comfort or commitments either for themselves or on behalf of its 

subsidiaries or group companies or any third party or sell, transfer, 

alienate, charge, mortgage or encumber or deal with their respective 

Undertakings or any part thereof save and except in each case in the 

following circumstances: 

i. if the same is in their ordinary course of businesses as carried 

on by it as on date of filing this Scheme with the NCLT; or 

ii. if the same is permitted by this Scheme; or 

iii. if written consent of the Transferee Company have been 

obtained. 

 

(b) The Transferor Companies shall not take, enter into, perform or 

undertake, as applicable (i) any material decision in relation to their 

businesses and affairs and operations (ii) any agreement or transaction 

(other than an agreement or transaction in ordinary course of the 

respective Transferor Company's business); and (iii) such other 

matters as the Transferee Company may notify from time to time; 

without the prior written consent of the Transferee Company. 

 

10.3 Without prejudice to the above, the Transferor Companies from the date 

of filing this Scheme with the NCLT shall not make any change in their 

respective capital structures whether by way of increase (by issue of equity 

shares on a rights basis, bonus shares or otherwise), decrease, reduction, 

reclassification, subdivision or consolidation, reorganization, or in any 

other manner which may, in any way, affect the Share Exchange Ratio 

except under any of the following circumstances: 

(a) By mutual consent of the respective Board of Directors of the 

Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company; or 

(b) By way of any obligation already subsisting as on the date of filing 

this Scheme with the Appropriate Authority. 
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10.4 The Transferee Company shall also be entitled, pending sanction of the 

Scheme, to apply to the Central Government, State Government, and all 

other agencies, departments and statutory authorities concerned, wherever 

necessary, for such consents, approvals and sanctions which the Transferee 

Company may require including the registration, approvals, exemptions, 

relieves, etc., as may be required / granted under any law for the time being 

in force for carrying on businesses of the Transferor Companies. 

 

11. EMPLOYEES  

11.1 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme: 

(a) All the employees of the Transferor Companies who are in employment as 

on the Effective Date shall become the employees of the Transferee 

Company with effect from the Effective Date without any break or 

interruption in service and on terms and conditions as to employment and 

remuneration not less favourable than those on which they are engaged or 

employed by the Transferor Companies. It is clarified that the employees 

of the Transferor Companies who become employees of the Transferee 

Company by virtue of this Scheme, shall not be entitled to the employment 

policies and shall not be entitled to avail of any schemes and benefits that 

may be applicable and available to any of the employees of the Transferee 

Company (including the benefits of or under any Employee Stock Option 

Schemes applicable to or covering all or any of the employees of the 

Transferee Company), unless otherwise determined by the Transferee 

Company. The Transferee Company undertakes to continue to abide by 

any agreement/settlement, if any, entered into by the Transferor 

Companies with any union/employee of the Transferor Companies. 

 

(b) The existing provident fund, gratuity fund and pension and/or 

superannuation fund or trusts or retirement funds or benefits created by 

the Transferor Companies or any other special funds created or existing for 

the benefit of the concerned employees of the Transferor Companies 

(collectively referred to as "Funds") and the investment made out of such 

Funds shall, at an appropriate stage, be transferred to the Transferee 

Company to be held for the benefit of the concerned employees. The 

Funds shall, subject to the necessary approvals and permission and at the 

discretion of the Transferee Company, either be continued as separate 

funds of the Transferee Company for the benefit of the employees of the 

Transferor Companies or be transferred to and merged with other similar 

funds of the Transferee Company. In the event that the Transferee 

Company does not have its own fund with respect to any such Funds, the 
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Transferee Company may, subject to necessary approvals and permissions, 

continue to maintain the existing Funds separately and contribute therein, 

until such time as the Transferee Company creates its own funds into 

which the Funds and the investments and contributions pertaining to the 

employees of the Transferor Companies shall be transferred to such funds 

of the Transferee Company. 

 

11.2 With effect from the first of the dates of filing of this Scheme with the 

Appropriate Authority and up to and including the Effective Date the Transferor 

Companies shall not vary or modify the terms and conditions of employment of 

any of its employees, except with the written consent of the Transferee Company. 

 

11.3 It is clarified that the services of all transferred staff, workmen and employees of 

the Transferor Companies to the Transferee Company will be treated as having 

been continuous for the purpose of the aforesaid employee benefits and / or 

liabilities. For the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, 

gratuity, and / or other terminal benefits, and / or any other liability pertaining to 

staff, workmen and employees, the past services of such staff, workmen and 

employees with the Transferor Companies shall also be taken into account by the 

Transferee Company, who shall pay the same as and when payable.  

 

12. SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS 

Subject to the terms of this Scheme, the transfer and the vesting of the 

Undertakings of the Transferor Companies under Clause 6 of this Scheme shall 

not affect any transaction or proceeding already concluded by the Transferor 

Companies on or before the Appointed Date or after the Appointed Date till the 

Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts and 

adopts all acts, deeds and things made, done and executed by the Transferor 

Companies as acts, deeds and things made, done and executed by or on behalf of 

the Transferee Company. 

 

13. OTHERS  

13.1 The Scheme does not involve any compromise or composition with the creditors 

of the Transferor Companies or the Transferee Company and the rights of the 

creditors of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company are not 

affected in any manner. 

 

13.2 The charge and/or security of the secured creditors of the Transferor Companies 

and the transferee Company shall remain unaffected by this Scheme. 
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13.3 On and from the Effective Date, and thereafter, the Transferee Company shall be 

entitled to operate all bank accounts of the Transferor Companies and realise all 

monies and complete and enforce all pending contracts and transactions and to 

issue credit notes in respect of the Transferor Companies in the name of the 

Transferee Company in so far as may be necessary until the transfer of rights and 

obligations of the Transferor Companies to the Transferee Company under this 

Scheme have been formally given effect to under such contracts and transactions. 

 

13.4 Since each of the permissions, approvals, consents, sanctions, remissions, special 

reservations, holidays, incentives, concessions and other authorisations in relation 

to the Transferor Companies, shall stand transferred by the order of the 

Appropriate Authority to the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall 

file the relevant intimations, for the record of the statutory authorities who shall 

take them on file, pursuant to the vesting orders of the Appropriate Authority. 

 

PART III 

ISSUE OF CONSIDERATIONS BY TRANSFEREE COMPANY 

 

14. CONSIDERATION 

 

14.1 On Merger of Transferor Company 1 with the Transferee Company (i.e. 

GHPL with GPL) 

(a) New Shares: Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the Transferee 

Company shall without any further act or deed, issue and allot 39,848 

(Thirty Nine Thousands Eight Hundred and Forty Eight) Equity Shares of 

Rs.1/- each fully paid up for every 1 (One) Equity Share of Rs.1000/- each 

fully paid up held by the shareholders of the Transferor Company 1 whose 

names appear in the register of members as on the Record Date (as defined 

in the Scheme) or to their respective heirs, executors, administrators, or 

other legal representatives or successor-in-title as the case may be. 

 

(b) Cancellation of Shares: Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, 

2,63,75,047 (Two Crores Sixty Three Lacs Seventy Five Thousands and 

Forty Seven) Equity Shares of the Transferee Company held by the 

Transferor Company 1 or such other class of shares of Transferee 

Company held by Transferor Company 1 as on the Effective Date shall be 

extinguished or shall be deemed to be extinguished and all such equity 

shares and preference shares held by the Transferor Company 1 in the 

Transferee Company shall be cancelled and shall be deemed to be 

cancelled without any further application, act or deed. Further, the 

investment in the equity shares and preference shares of the Transferee 
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Company, appearing in the books of Transferor Company 1 shall, without 

any further act or deed stand cancelled. 

 

14.2 On Merger of Transferor Company 2 with the Transferee Company (i.e. 

EDIEPL with GPL)  

(a) New Shares: Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the Transferee 

Company shall without any further act or deed, issue and allot 181 (One 

Hundred and Eighty One) Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up for 

every 1 (One) Equity Share of Rs.10/- each fully paid up held by the 

shareholders of the Transferor Company 2 whose names appear in the 

register of members as on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme) or to 

their respective heirs, executors, administrators, or other legal representatives 

or successor-in-title as the case may be. 

 

(b) Cancellation of Shares: Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, 9,65,020 

(Nine Lacs Sixty Five Thousands and Twenty Only) Equity Shares of the 

Transferee Company held by the Transferor Company 2 or such other class 

of shares of Transferee Company held by Transferor Company 2 as on the 

Effective Date shall be extinguished or shall be deemed to be extinguished 

and all such shares held by the Transferor Company 2 in the Transferee 

Company shall be cancelled and shall be deemed to be cancelled without any 

further application, act or deed. Further, the investment in the equity shares 

and preference shares of the Transferee Company, appearing in the books of 

Transferor Company 2 shall, without any further act or deed stand cancelled. 

 

14.3 The new shares to be issued by Transferee Company on merger of Transferor 

Companies with Transferee Company shall be subject to the provisions of the 

Memorandum and Articles of Association of Transferee Company. 

 

14.4 At the time of issue and allotment of the equity shares, the Board of Directors of 

the Transferee Company shall consolidate all fractional entitlement and allot all 

equity shares in lieu thereof to a corporate trustee or such other authorised 

representative(s) as the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company shall 

appoint in this behalf, who shall hold the equity shares issued in the Transferee 

Company in trust on behalf of the equity shareholders entitled to fractional 

entitlements with the express understanding that such corporate trustee or other 

authorised representative(s) shall sell the same in the market at such time or times 

and at such price or prices or to such person or persons as it/he /she /they may 

deem fit and pay to the Transferee Company the net sale proceeds thereof 

whereupon the Transferee Company shall distribute such net proceeds (after 

deduction of applicable taxes, if any), to the equity shareholders in proportion to 
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their respective fractional entitlements. The Board of Directors of the Transferee 

Company, if it deems necessary, in the interest of allottees, approve such other 

method in this behalf as it may, in its absolute discretion deem fit. 

 

14.5 The equity shares issued and allotted by the Transferee Company in terms of the 

Scheme shall rank pari-passu in all respect with the existing equity shares of the 

Transferee Company. Further, Transferee Company, if required, take all necessary 

steps to increase its authorised share capital for issue of equity shares pursuant to 

the Scheme. 

 

14.6 In the event that the Transferor Companies and Transferee Company restructure 

its equity share capital by way of share split/consolidation/ issue of bonus shares 

during the pendency of the Scheme, the Share Exchange ratio shall be adjusted 

accordingly to take into account effect of such corporate actions. 

 

14.7 The equity shares to be issued pursuant to this Scheme shall be issued to the 

shareholders of the Transferor Company 1 dematerialised form as permitted 

under Applicable Law. Pursuant to the issuance of shares in dematerialised form, 

there will not be any requirement to pay the stamp duty on such issuance.   

 

14.8 In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or 

outstanding of any shareholders of Transferor Companies, the Board of Directors 

of Transferor Companies shall be empowered prior to the Record Date, to 

effectuate such transfers in the Transferor Companies as if such changes in 

registered holders were operative as on the Record Date, in order to remove any 

difficulties arising to the transferors of the shares in relation to the equity shares 

issued by the Transferee Company after the Scheme is effected. The Board of 

Directors of the Transferee Company shall be empowered to remove such 

difficulties as may arise in the course of implementation of this Scheme and 

registration of new members in the Transferee Company on account of difficulties 

faced in the transition period. 

 

14.9 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the issued, subscribed and paid up share 

capital of the Transferee Company shall stand suitably increased/ modified 

consequent upon the issuance of equity shares in accordance with the Scheme. It 

is clarified that no special resolution under Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act 

read with the applicable Rules thereunder or any other applicable provisions of the 

Act shall be required to be passed by the Transferee Company separately in a 

general meeting for issue of equity shares to the members of the Transferor 

Companies under this Scheme and on the shareholders of the Transferee 

Company approving this Scheme, it shall be deemed that they have given their 
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consent to the issue of equity shares of the Transferee Company to the members 

of Transferor Companies.  

 

14.10 It is clarified that upon the approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the 

Transferor Companies and Transferee Company under Sections 230 and 232 of 

the Act, the shareholders shall be deemed to have approved this Scheme under 

Sections 13, 14, 42, 62, 186, 188 and any other applicable provisions under the 

Act, and that no separate approval from the shareholders or others if so applicable 

to that extent shall be required to be sought by the parties for the matters 

specified in this Scheme. 

 

15. LISTING OF NEW EQUITY SHARES  

 

15.1 After the Effective Date of this Scheme, the new equity shares to be issued and 

allotted by the Transferee Company in terms of clause 14 above shall be listed and 

shall be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges by virtue of this Scheme and 

in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Circulars. Transferee Company shall 

make all requisite applications and shall otherwise comply with the provisions of 

the aforesaid circulars and Applicable Laws and take all steps to get its share 

capital including the new equity shares issued by it in pursuance to this Scheme 

listed on the Stock Exchanges. 

 

15.2 The new equity shares allotted by the Transferee Company pursuant to the 

Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories system till listing/trading 

permission is given by the designated Stock Exchanges. 

 

15.3 There shall be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Transferee Company 

between the Record Date and the listing which may affect the basis on which 

approval is received from the Stock Exchanges. 

 

16. APPROVALS  

 

16.1 The Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending 

the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to any Governmental Authority, if required, 

under any law for such consents and approvals which the Transferee Company 

may require to own the respective undertakings intended to be amalgamated unto 

it as hereinabove and to carry on the respective businesses. 

 

16.2 This Scheme is specifically conditional upon and subject to: 
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(a) The approval of and agreement to the Scheme by requisite majority of the 

members and Creditors of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee 

Company as may be directed by the National Company Law Tribunal on 

the applications made for directions under Section 230 of the said Act; 

 

(b) The sanction of the NCLT being obtained under Sections 230 to 232 of 

the said Act in favour of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee 

Company and to the necessary order or orders under Section 232 of the 

said Act, being obtained; 

 

(c) Receipt of approval of observation letter in relation to the Scheme from 

the relevant Stock Exchanges and SEBI in terms of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

 

(d) The approval of the public shareholders of the Transferee Company in 

accordance with the provisions of the SEBI Circulars issued in this behalf. 

Such approval of public shareholders will be obtained through postal ballot 

and e-voting, after disclosure of all material facts in the explanatory 

statement sent to the shareholders in relation to such resolution. The 

scheme is conditional upon scheme being approved by the public 

shareholders through e-voting in terms of para 9 (a) of part I of Annexure 

I of SEBI circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 

and the scheme shall be acted upon only if vote cast by the public 

shareholders in favour of the proposal are more than the number of votes 

cast by the public shareholders against it; and  

 

(e) Any other sanction or approval of the appropriate authorities concerned, 

as may be considered necessary and appropriate by the respective Boards 

of Directors of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company 

being obtained and granted in respect of any of the matters for which such 

sanction or approval is required.   

 

17. CONSOLIDATION OF AUTHORISED CAPITAL  

17.1 The Clause V of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferee 

Company (relating to Authorised Share Capital) shall without any further act, 

instrument or deed, be and stand altered, modified and amended, and the consent 

of the shareholders to the Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for the 

purpose of effecting this amendment, and no further resolution(s) under any other 

applicable provisions of the Act would be required to be separately passed, as the 

case may be and be replaced by the following clause: 
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"The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 42,81,00,000/- (Rupees 

Forty Two Crores and Eighty One Lacs only) divided into 28,06,00,000 (Twenty 

Eight Crores and Six Lacs only) Equity Shares of Rs 1/- (Rupees One only) each, 

2,50,000 (Two Lacs and Fifty Thousand) 0% (Zero Percent) Redeemable 

Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, 14,50,000 (Fourteen Lacs 

and Fifty Thousand) 0%-10% (Zero Percent to Ten Percent) Redeemable 

Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred only) each, all or any part 

of the Share Capital shall be capable of being increased or reduced, classified or 

reclassified or re organized in accordance with the Company's Regulations and 

legislative provisions for the time being in force in that behalf, with power to 

divide the Shares in the Capital for the time being into Equity Share Capital and 

Preference Share Capital, to attach thereto respectively any preferential, qualified, 

deferred or special rights, privileges or conditions and to vary, modify or abrogate 

any such rights, privileges or conditions".  

 

17.2 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and the Transferor Companies being 

dissolved, the authorized capitals of the Transferor Companies as on the 

Appointed Date shall stand merged with the authorized capital of the Transferee 

Company, and the fee, if any, paid by Transferor Companies on its authorized 

capital before merger shall be set-off against any fees payable by the Transferee 

Company on its authorized share capital subsequent to the amalgamation. 

 

17.3 For the purpose of increase in authorized share capital of the Transferee 

Company, the stamp duty and fees paid on the authorised capitals of the 

Transferor Companies shall be utilised and applied to the increased authorised 

share capital of the Transferee Company. 

 

17.4 It is clarified that the approval of the members of the Transferee Company to the 

Scheme shall be deemed to be their consent/approval also to the alteration of the 

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferee Company, as may be 

required under the Act, and Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the 

Transferee Company.  

 

PART IV 

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

 

18. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT  

18.1 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any other Clause in the 

Scheme, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the amalgamation of Transferor 

Companies into Transferee Company, shall be accounted as per "Pooling of 

Interest Method" in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 103), 
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Business Combinations and other accounting principles prescribed under the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as notified under section 

133 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

 

18.2 The pooling of interest method is considered to involve the following: 

(a) The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their 

carrying amount  

(b) No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new asset 

or liabilities. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonise the 

accounting policies   

 

18.3 Comparative accounting period presented in the financial statements of the 

Transferee Company shall be restated for the accounting impact of merger, as 

stated above, as if the merger had occurred from the beginning of the comparative 

period in the financial statements. 

 

PART V 

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANIES AND 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

19. DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANIES  

On the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferor Companies shall stand 

dissolved without winding up and without any further act or deed under Section 

232 of the Act. 

 

20. VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS ETC. 

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, resolutions, if any, of any of the 

Transferor Companies, which are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date, shall 

continue to be valid and subsisting and be considered as resolutions of the 

Transferee Company and if any such resolution has any monetary limits approved 

under the provisions of the Act, or any other applicable statutory provisions, then 

the said limits shall be added to the limits, if any, under like resolutions passed by 

the Transferee Company and shall constitute the aggregate of the said limits in the 

Transferee Company. 

 

21. PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE APPROPRIATE AUTHORITY  

(a) The Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company shall file in the 

Appropriate Authority a joint application for convening and holding of 

meetings of their respective shareholders and creditors to be called, held and 

conducted in such manner or for their dispensation, as the Appropriate 
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Authority may direct and to consider and if thought fit to approve, with or 

without modification, this Scheme.  

 

(b) On this Scheme being agreed by the requisite majority of members/creditors 

of the Transferor Companies and the requisite majority of members/creditors 

of the Transferee Company, the Transferor Companies and the Transferee 

Company shall apply to the Appropriate Authority for sanctioning the 

Scheme of Amalgamation under Sections 230 and 232 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and for such other order, or orders, as the Appropriate Authority may 

deem fit for carrying this Scheme into effect and for dissolution of the 

Transferor Companies without winding up.  

 

(c) It is hereby clarified that submissions of the Scheme to the Appropriate 

Authority and to any authorities for their respective approvals is without 

prejudice to all rights, interest, titles and defences that the Transferor 

Companies and the Transferee Company has or may have under or pursuant 

to all applicable laws.  

 

(d) The Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company shall also take such 

other steps as may be necessary or expedient to give full and formal effect to 

the provisions of this Scheme.  

 

22. MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO SCHEME 

22.1 The Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company by their respective 

Boards of Directors or any Committee thereof or any Director/ executive 

authorised in that behalf (hereinafter referred to as the "Delegate") may assent 

to, or make, from time to time, any modification(s) or addition(s) to this Scheme 

which may deem fit or which the NCLT or Appropriate Authority or any 

authorities under law may deem fit to approve or which the Appropriate 

Authority or any authorities under law may impose/suggest and which the 

Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company may in their absolute 

discretion accept or such modification(s) or addition(s) as the Transferor 

Companies and the Transferee Company or as the case may be, their respective 

Delegate may deem fit, or required for the purpose of resolving any doubts or 

difficulties that may arise in carrying out this Scheme, and the Transferor 

Companies and the Transferee Company by their respective Boards of  Directors 

or delegates are authorised to do and execute all acts, deeds, matters and things 

necessary for bringing this Scheme into effect, or review the position relating to 

the satisfaction of the conditions of this Scheme and if necessary, waive any of 

such conditions (to the extent permissible under law) for bringing this Scheme 

into effect, and/or give such consents as may be required in terms of this Scheme.  
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22.2 In the event that any conditions are imposed by the Appropriate Authority or any 

Governmental Authorities, which any of the Transferor Companies or the 

Transferee Company finds unacceptable for any reason, then the respective 

Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be at liberty to withdraw 

the Scheme.  

 

22.3 It is however, clarified that any amendment or modification to this Scheme after 

sanction thereof shall be made in accordance with the provisions contained in 

Section 231 of the Act or any statutory medication thereof. 

 

22.4 For the purposes of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modification(s) thereof 

or addition(s) thereto, the Delegates of the Transferor Companies and the 

Transferee Company may give and are authorised to determine and give all such 

directions as are necessary for settling or removing any question of doubt or 

difficulty that may arise under this Scheme or in regard to the meaning or 

interpretation of any provision of this Scheme or implementation thereof or in 

any manner whatsoever connected therewith or to review the position relating to 

the satisfaction of various conditions of this Scheme and if necessary to waive any 

such conditions (to the extent permissible in law) and such determination or 

directions or waiver, as the case may be shall be binding on all the parties, in the 

same manner as if the same were specifically incorporated in this Scheme. 

 

22.5 For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modifications/ 

amendments thereof, the Directors of the Transferor Companies (prior to its 

dissolution in pursuance to Scheme) and of the Transferee Company may give and 

are authorised to give all such directions as are necessary including directions for 

resolving any question of doubt or difficulty that may arise. 

 

22.6 Further, post approval of the Scheme by NCLT, if there is any confusion in 

interpreting any clause of this Scheme, or otherwise, the Board of Directors of the 

respective Companies shall jointly have complete power to take the most sensible 

interpretation so as to render the Scheme operational. 

 

23. WITHDRAWAL OF THE SCHEME  

The Companies shall be at liberty to withdraw this Scheme at any time as may be 

mutually agreed by the Board of Directors of the respective Companies prior to 

the Effective Date. In such a case, the Companies shall respectively bear their own 

cost or as may be mutually agreed. 
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24. COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS AS APPLICABLE TO THE 

SCHEME  

24.1 This Scheme is in compliance with the conditions relating to "amalgamation" as 

specified under Section 2(1 B) of the IT Act. If any terms or provisions of the 

Scheme are found or interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of the said 

Section at a later date including resulting from a retrospective amendment of law 

or for any other reason whatsoever, till the time the Scheme becomes effective, 

the provisions of the said Section of the IT Act shall prevail and the Scheme shall 

stand modified to the extent determined necessary to comply with Section 2(1 B) 

of the IT Act. 

 

24.2 On or after the Effective Date, the Companies shall have the right to revise their 

financial statements and tax returns (including withholding tax returns) along with 

the prescribed forms, filings and annexures under the provisions of the IT Act 

(including for the purpose of re-computing income tax under the normal 

provisions, minimum alternative tax, and claiming other tax benefits), Wealth Tax 

Act, 1957, customs duty law, central sales tax, applicable state value added tax, 

service tax laws, excise duty laws, Goods and Services tax, VAT law or other tax 

laws, and to claim refunds and/or credits for taxes paid (including minimum 

alternate tax, tax deducted at source, goods and service tax, etc), and to claim tax 

benefits etc. and for matters incidental thereto, if required to give effect to the 

provisions of the Scheme. 

 

24.3 As and from the Effective Date, all tax proceedings shall be continued and 

enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the 

same extent as would or might have been continued and enforced by or against 

the Transferor Companies. Further, all tax proceedings shall not in any way be 

prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies 

with the Transferee Company or anything contained in the Scheme. 

 

24.4 Any tax liabilities under the IT Act, Wealth Tax Act, 1957, customs duty laws, 

central sales tax, applicable state value added tax, service tax laws, excise duty laws, 

Goods and Service tax, VAT law or other applicable laws/ regulations dealing 

with taxes, duties, levies allocable or related to the business of the Transferor 

Companies to the extent not provided for or covered by tax provision in the 

accounts made as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall be 

transferred or stand transferred to Transferee Company. Any surplus in the 

provision for taxation / duties/ levies account including advance tax and tax 

deducted at source and MAT credit as on the date immediately preceding the 

Appointed Date will also be transferred to the account of the Transferee 

Company. 
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24.5 Any refund under the IT Act, Wealth-tax Act, 1957, customs duty laws, central 

sales tax, applicable state value added tax, service tax laws, excise duty laws, goods 

and service tax, VAT law or other applicable laws/ regulations dealing with taxes/ 

duties/ levies allocable or related to the business of the Transferor Companies due 

to Transferor Companies consequent to the assessment made on Transferor 

Companies and for which no credit is taken in the accounts as on the date 

immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall also belong to and be received by 

the Transferee Company. 

 

24.6 Any tax payment (including, without limitation, income-tax, minimum alternate 

tax, taxes withheld/ paid in a foreign country, dividend distribution tax, securities 

transaction tax, sales tax, excise duty, custom duty, service tax, value added tax, 

goods and service tax, etc whether by way of deduction at source, advance tax or 

otherwise, howsoever, by the Transferor Companies in respect of the profits or 

activities or operation of the business after the Appointed Date, the same shall be 

deemed to be the corresponding item paid by the Transferee Company and shall, 

in all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly. Further, any tax deducted at source 

by Transferor Companies/ Transferee Company including on payables to 

Transferee Company/ Transferor Companies on account of investments (if any) 

held by the Transferee Company in the Transferor Companies which has been 

deemed not to be accrued, shall be deemed to be advance taxes paid by the 

Transferee Company and shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly. 

 

24.7 Obligation for deduction of tax at source on any payment made by or to be made 

by the Transferor Companies under the IT Act, Wealth Tax Act, 1957, customs 

duty laws, central sales tax, applicable state value added tax, service tax laws, excise 

duty laws, goods and service tax, VAT law or other applicable laws / regulations 

dealing with taxes / duties / levies shall be made or deemed to be have been made 

and duly complied with by the Transferee Company. 

 

24.8 All deductions otherwise admissible to the Transferor Companies including 

payment admissible on actual payment or on deduction of appropriate taxes or on 

payment or tax deducted at source (such as under Sections 40, 40A, 43B, etc of 

the IT Act) shall be available for deduction to the Transferee Company as it would 

have been available to the Transferor Companies. 

 

25. EXEMPTION UNDER SAST REGULATIONS  

For avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that pursuant to amalgamation of the 

Transferor Companies into and with the Transferee Company, the issuance of 

equity shares of the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor 
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Companies to the shareholders of the Transferor Companies as consideration for 

amalgamation of the Transferor Companies into and with the Transferee 

Company in terms of the Scheme, is exempt under the provisions of the 

Regulation 10(1)(d)(ii) of SAST Regulations, and therefore, the requirement to 

make an “open offer” shall not be triggered in terms of provisions of the SAST 

Regulations.   

 

26. COSTS AND EXPENSES 

All costs, charges and expenses including but not limited to any stamp duty or 

registration fees or any lease premium payable on any deed, document, instrument 

or the NCLT Order pertaining to this Scheme or in connection with this Scheme 

and incidental to the completion of the merger of the Transferor Companies with 

the Transferee Company in pursuance of this Scheme shall be borne and paid by 

the Transferor Companies and Transferee Company. The Transferee Company 

shall be eligible for deduction of all such expenditure incurred as per Section 

35DD of the IT Act. 

 

27. MISCELLANEOUS  

27.1 If any part of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, 

in the sole discretion of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company 

either by their respective Boards of Directors or through Committees appointed 

by them in this behalf, the same shall not, subject to the decision of the Transferor 

Companies and the Transferee Company, affect the validity or implementation of 

the other parts and/or provisions of this Scheme. 

 

27.2 In the event that any conditions imposed by the Appropriate Authority are found 

unacceptable for any reason whatsoever by any Transferor Company or the 

Transferee Company, then the respective Transferor Company and/or Transferee 

Company shall be entitled to withdraw the Scheme in which event no rights and 

liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter se to or by the parties or 

any of them. 

 

27.3 On the approval of the Scheme by the members of the Transferor Companies and 

Transferee Company pursuant to Section 230 of the Act, it shall be deemed that 

the said members have also accorded all relevant consents under other provisions 

of the Act to the extent the same may be considered applicable for the purpose of 

this Scheme. 

 

27.4 The mutation of the title to the immovable properties shall be made and duly 

recorded by the appropriate authorities pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme 

and upon the Scheme becoming effective, in accordance with the terms hereof, in 
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favour of the Transferee Company in respect of the immovable properties vested 

in it. Any inchoate title or possessory title of the Transferor Companies or its 

predecessor companies shall be deemed to be the title of the Transferee Company. 

 

27.5 Further, the Board of Directors of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee 

Company shall be entitled to revoke, cancel and declare the Scheme of no effect if 

the Board of Directors of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company 

are of view that the coming into effect of the Scheme in terms of the provisions 

of this Scheme or filing of the drawn up orders with any authority could have an 

adverse implication(s) on all or any of the Transferor Companies or the 

Transferee Companies. 

 

27.6 If any part of this Scheme hereof is invalid, ruled illegal by any NCLT of 

competent jurisdiction, or unenforceable under present or future laws, then it is 

the intention of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company that such 

part shall be severable from the remainder of the Scheme. Further, if the deletion 

of such part of this Scheme may cause this Scheme to become materially adverse 

to the any of the Transferor Companies and /or the Transferee Company, then in 

such case the Transferor Companies and /or the Transferee Company shall 

attempt to bring about a modification in the Scheme, as will best preserve for the 

Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company the benefits and obligations 

of the Scheme, including but not limited to such part. Without prejudice to above, 

if the modification required is not acceptable, then the Companies can withdraw 

the Scheme. 

 

27.7 No investigation or proceedings under the Companies Act, 1956 and the 

Companies Act, 2013 are proceeding against the Transferor Companies and the 

Transferee Company. 

 

27.8 The physical copies of the following documents are available for obtaining extract 

from or for making or obtaining copies of or for inspection by members and 

creditors at the registered office of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee 

Company during the business hours (10:00 A.M. To 6:00 P.M.) on all working 

days except Saturday and Sunday up to one day prior to date of meeting(s), if any, 

to be convened by the NCLT: 

• Audited Financial Statements including consolidated financial statements 

(if any) for the year ended 31st March 2020 of the Transferor Companies 

and the Transferee Company; 

• Copy of Scheme of Arrangement/ Amalgamation; 

• Certificate issued by Auditor of the Transferee Company to the effect that 

the accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme of Amalgamation is in 
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conformity with the applicable Accounting Standards prescribed under 

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013;  

• Valuation Report;  

• Fairness Opinion;  

• Abridged Prospectus of Transferor Companies;  

• Other documents/ certificates as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 

2013.  

 

27.9 There is no adverse effect of Scheme on any director, key managerial personnel, 

promoters, non-promoter members, creditors and employees of the Transferor 

Companies and the Transferee Company. 

 

27.10 It is further provided that there are no other contracts or arrangements that are 

material to this scheme of amalgamation. 

 

27.11 As part of the Scheme, post approval of the Scheme by the Appropriate Authority 

and listing of shares issued in Consideration, the Transferee Company may 

transfer or convey or lease or sell or otherwise dispose off the title of the 

immovable properties, fixed assets, loans and advances, investments, current 

assets, debit balance in profit and loss account and any other assets as per the 

books of the Transferor Companies transferred pursuant to the Scheme, to a 

foundation or a trust or a society or a company incorporated under Section 8 of 

the Act created or promoted by the Transferee Company, for the purpose of 

discharging obligation towards corporate social responsibility under Section 135 of 

the Act, and there would not be any requirement for any further act, deed, 

approvals, fees/duty payment or matters for giving effect to the obligations 

towards corporate social responsibility. The requirement to pay stamp duty will 

not arise on such transfer to a foundation or a trust or a society or a company 

incorporated under Section 8 of the Act created or promoted by the Transferee 

Company, for the purpose of discharging obligation towards corporate social 

responsibility under Section 135 of the Act or be set off from the payment of 

stamp duty on the NCLT’s order by which the property, movable & immovable, 

owned by the Transferor Companies  is transferred to or vested in the Transferee 

Company.      

 

28. INDEMNITY BY TRANSFEROR COMPANIES & ITS 

SHAREHOLDERS 

The Transferor Companies and its shareholders shall indemnify and hold harmless 

the Transferee Company and its directors, officers, representatives, partners, 

employees and agents (collectively referred as the "Indemnified Persons") for 
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losses, liabilities, costs, charges, expenses (whether or not resulting from third 

party claims), including those paid or suffered pursuant to any actions, 

proceedings, claims and including interests and penalties discharged by the 

Indemnified Persons which may devolve on Indemnified Persons on account of 

amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company but 

would not have been payable by such Indemnified Persons otherwise,  the form 

and manner as may be agreed amongst the Transferee Company and the 

shareholders of the Transferor Companies.  

 

29. NO CASUE OF ACTION 

No third party claiming to have acted or changed his position in anticipation of 

the Scheme taking effect, shall get any cause of action against the Transferor 

Companies or Transferee Company or their directors or officers, if this Scheme 

does not take effect or is withdrawn, cancelled, revoked, amended or modified for 

any reason whatsoever.  
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Notice to Reader 
 

Navigant Corporate Advisors Limited (“Navigant” / “NCAL” or “Authors of the Report) is a 

SEBI registered ‘Category I’ Merchant banker in India and was engaged by Board of Directors 

of Gulshan Polyols Limited (“GPL” or “Transferee Company”) to prepare an Independent 

Fairness Opinion Report (“Report”) with respect to providing an independent opinion and 

assessment as to fairness of Valuation Report and Swap ratio determined by Mr. Vardhman 

Doogar, Registered Valuer(“Valuer") an Independent Valuer for the purpose of intended 

proposed amalgamation of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited (“GHPL”, “Transferor 

Company”), East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited ( “EDIEPL”, “Transferor 

Company”) with Gulshan Polyols Limited (“GPL” or “Transferee Company”)  pursuant to a 

Scheme of Amalgamation under section 230 to 232 and other applicable clauses of the 

companies Act, 2013 (“Scheme”).  

 

GPL, GHPL and EDIEPL are collectively referred as “Companies”. 

 

The Fairness Opinion Report (“Report”) has been prepared on the basis of the review of 

information provided to Navigant and specifically the Report on Swap ratio (hereinafter 

referred as Valuation Report) prepared by Valuer as an independent valuer. The report does 

not give any valuation or suggest any swap ratio; however, this report is limited to provide its 

fairness opinion on the Valuation Report. 
 

The information contained in this Report is selective and is subject to updations, expansions, 

revisions and amendment. It does not purport to contain all the information recipients may 

require. No obligation is accepted to provide recipients with access to any additional 

information or to correct any inaccuracies which might become apparent. 

 

This Report is based on data and explanations provided by the management and certain other 

data culled out from various websites believed to be reliable. Navigant has not independently 

verified any of the information contained herein. Neither the Company nor Navigant, nor 

affiliated bodies corporate, nor the directors, shareholders, managers, employees or agents 

of any of them, makes any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy, 

reasonableness or completeness of the information contained in the Report. All such parties 

and entities expressly disclaim any and all liability for or based on or relating to any such 

information contained in, or errors in or omissions from, this Report or based on or relating to 

the Recipients’ use of this Report. 
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Date: 06th August, 2020 

To,  
The Board of Directors 
Gulshan Polyols Limited 
9th K.M., Jansat Road, 
Muzaffarnagar - 251001, 
Uttar Pradesh, India 
 
To 
The Board of Directors  
Gulshan Holdings Private Limited 
9th K.M., Jansat Road, 
Muzaffarnagar - 251001,  
Uttar Pradesh, India 
 

To 
The Board of Directors  
East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited 
9th K.M., Jansat Road, 
Muzaffarnagar - 251001,  
Uttar Pradesh, India 
 

Dear Members of the board, 

Engagement Background 

 

We Understand that the Board of Directors of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited (“GHPL”, 

“Transferor Company”), East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited ( “EDIEPL”, 

“Transferor Company”) and Gulshan Polyols Limited (“GPL” or “Transferee Company”)  are 

considering a Scheme of Amalgamation between GHPL, EDIEPL and GPL and their respective 

Shareholders (“the Scheme”) for amalgamation of GHPL, and EDIEPL with GPL under the 

provisions of sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as 

may be applicable for amalgamation of GHPL, EDIEPL with GPL. 

We understand that the Valuation as well as the swap ratio thereof is based on the Valuation 

Certificate dated 6th August, 2020 issued by Mr. Vardhman Doogar, Registered Valuer 

(“Valuer") (Membership. No. 517347). 

We, Navigant Corporate Advisors Limited, a SEBI registered Category-| Merchant Banker, have 

been engaged by GPL to give a fairness opinion (“Opinion”) on Valuation Certificate dated 6th 

August, 2020 issued by Mr. Vardhman Doogar, Registered Valuer (“Valuer") (Membership. No. 

517347). 
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Background of the Companies 

 

Gulshan Holdings Private Limited 

(a) Gulshan Holdings Private Limited was incorporated on 20th November, 1985 as a private 

limited company with Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana as a Private Company, Limited 

by Shares, having its registered office at 9th K.M., Jansat Road, Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar 

Pradesh, India. 

  

(b) GHPL was originally incorporated as a company limited by shares on 20th November, 1985 

under Companies Act, 1956 under the name of “Gulshan Marketing Private 

Limited”.Thereafter, pursuant to Section 23 of the Companies Act, 1956 and under the order 

of the Central Government, the name of the Company was changed to Gulshan Holdings 

Private Limited and a fresh certificate of change of name was issued to the company.  

(c) GHPL is engaged in the business of acquiring, investing and holding shares in companies 

having similar objects or companies providing value benefit, and guaranteeing the payment of 

money unsecured or secured by or payable under or in respect of contractual obligations. 

Also, The GHPL is engaged in the business of trading goods. Currently, company is not in 

operations. 

The shareholding pattern of the Gulshan Holdings Private Limited as on June 30, 2020 

Shareholders Number of Shares % Shareholding 

Promoters Group 707 100% 

Others - - 

Total 707 100% 
 

East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited (EDIEPL) 

(a) East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited is a private limited company within the 

Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at 9th K.M., Jansat Road, Muzaffarnagar - 

251001, Uttar Pradesh, India and Corporate Identity Number (CIN) U60231DL1997PTC088674. 

EDIEPL was originally incorporated as a company limited by shares on 23rd July, 1997 under 

Companies Act, 1956 under the name of “Atul Transport Private Limited”. Thereafter, 

pursuant to Section 23 of the Companies Act, 1956 and under the order of the Central 

Government, the name of the Company was changed to East Delhi Importers and Exporters 

Private Limited and a fresh certificate of change of name was issued to the company 

(b) EDIEPL is engaged in the business of importing, exporting, dealing and trading multi-

products which includes but not limited to textile products, chemicals, sugar and related 

products, engineering goods, molasses, grains, glassware, alcohol, oils, paper and related 

products, wood and timber etc. Further, the company is engaged in the business as general 

carriers, transporters and freight forwarders, and exporting, importing, trading and dealing in 

the computer software, programmes, computer hardware and peripherals. Currently, 

company is not in operations 
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The Shareholding pattern of East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private Limited as on 

June 30, 2020 

Shareholders Number of Shares % Shareholding 

Promoters Group 10,000 100% 

Others - - 

Total 10,000 100% 
 

Gulshan Polyols Limited 

(a) Gulshan Polyols Limited was incorporated as a Public Limited Company under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on GPL was incorporated on 20th October 2000 with 

Registrar of Companies, Kanpur as a Public Company, Limited by Shares, having its registered 

office at 9th K.M., Jansat Road, Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India. The equity 

shares of GPL are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). 

(b) Transferee Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing multi-products such as 

starch sugar, high fructose rice syrup, brown rice syrup, rice syrup solids, calcium carbonate, 

agro based animal feed and alcohol. Further, the Transferee Company is engaged in installing 

onsite PCC plants. 

The shareholding pattern of the Company as on 30thJune, 2020 is as follows 

Shareholders Number of Shares % Shareholding 

Promoters Group 3,19.98,438 68.20% 

Others 1,49,18,582 31.80% 

Total 4,69,17,020 100% 
 

Transaction Overview and Rational 

 

GHPL is engaged in the business of “Trading of Goods and Holding Investments & Guarantees” 

while the EDIEPL is engaged in the business of “Transportation Services and Trading of Multi-

Products” and GPL is engaged in the business of “Manufacturing & Dealing with Multi-

Products”.  

All the entities are engaged in complementary, similar and ancillary businesses pertaining to 

manufacturing, dealing and trading of multi-products.  

Hence, with a view to consolidating complementary and similar businesses under a single 

entity and to achieve simplified corporate structure by way of group reorganisation, the 

management has envisaged to undertake the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies in 

the Transferee Company under this Scheme. 
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The amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company would inter alia 

have the following benefits: 

 Help in achieving improved operational efficiency and optimum advantages and also to 

achieve greater efficiency and synergy in operations by combining the activities of the 

Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company. Accordingly, the Scheme would 

strengthen and complement the businesses of the Companies ; 

 The amalgamated entity will benefit from optimum utilization of manpower through 

improved organizational capacity and leadership, arising from the combination of 

people from the Transferor Companies and Transferee Company which have diverse 

skills, talent, management expertise, enlarged knowledge base and vast experience to 

compete successfully in an increased competitive industry; 

 The amalgamated entity shall reduce fixed costs by removing duplicate departments, 

operations and lower the cost of the Company relative to the same revenue stream 

and shall thus increase the profit margins. 

 Under a liberalised, fast changing and highly competitive environment, this 

amalgamation shall strengthen the business of the Transferor Companies and the 

Transferee Company by pooling up the resources, business expertise, business 

processes and assets for common purpose and hence optimum utilization; 

 The synergies that exist between the entities in terms of services and resources can be 

put to the best advantage of all stakeholders; 

 The amalgamation will result in better economic control, increased financial strength 

and flexibility and enhance the ability of the amalgamated entity to undertake large 

projects, thereby contributing to enhancement of future business potential; 

 Cost savings are expected to flow from more focused operational efforts, 

rationalisation, standardisation and simplification of business processes, productivity 

and improvements, improved procurement and the elimination of duplication and 

rationalization of administrative expenses; 

 The consolidation of the companies engaged in similar & complementary line of 

business in one entity, under a single centralized system of management, will result in 

the management being able to exercise greater control over the operations of the 

Companies and which will help in synchronising the operations. This will also result in 

the management being enabled to undertake any re-structuring /re-organization of 

the various business undertakings of the companies for the purposes of achieving 

optimum efficiency /and or to attract investments in the individual business 

undertakings of the Companies. 

 

 

B-75



Fairness Opinion Report Page 7 

 
 

In view of the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of the Transferor Companies as well as the 

Transferee Company have considered and proposed the amalgamation of the entire 

undertakings and businesses of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company in 

order to benefit the stakeholders of both Transferor Companies and Transferee Company. 

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of all the companies have formulated this Scheme of 

Amalgamation for the transfer and vesting of the entire undertakings and businesses of the 

Transferor Companies to the Transferee Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 

Section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013.  

Information relied upon: 

 

We have prepared the fairness opinion report on the basis of the information provided to us 

and inter alia the following: 

- Share Exchange ratio report by CA Vardhman Doogar, Registered Valuer dated 6th 
August, 2020; 

- Other information and explanations as provided by the management/Valuer. 
 

Further, we had discussions on such matters which we believe are necessary or appropriate 
for the purpose of issuing the Report. 

We assume no responsibility for the legal, tax, accounting or structuring matters including, 

but not limited to, legal or title concerns. Title to all subject business assets is assumed to be 

good and marketable and we would urge the company to carry out the independent 

assessment of the same prior to entering into any transaction, after giving due weightage to 

the results of such assessment. 

We have been informed that all information relevant for the purpose of issuing the Fairness 

Opinion report has been disclosed to us and we are not aware of any material information 

that has been omitted or that remains undisclosed.  

Valuation Summary: 
 

Some of the methods considered by the valuer for arriving at fair value of shares of a 

company are as under:    

"SEBI Guidelines for pricing of equity shares 

The valuation of GPL has been conducted in compliance with the SEBI circular 

CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10thMarch 2017 and Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations (ICDR Regulations), which 

prescribe guidelines for pricing of shares of a listed entity: 

 

B-76



Fairness Opinion Report Page 8 

 
 

Valuation Methodologies 

The three main valuation approaches are the asset approach, income approach and market 

approach. There are several commonly used and accepted methods including those set out in 

the Valuation Standards, 2018 issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, within 

the asset approach, income approach and market approach, for determining the relative fair 

value, which can be considered in the present case, to the extent relevant and applicable, to 

arrive at the Share Exchange Ratio for the purpose of proposed merger, such as: 

1. Cost Approach  

2. Income Approach  

3. Market Approach  

 

1. Cost Approach - Net Asset Value (NAV) Methodology 

The “cost” approach is based on the value of the underlying net assets of the business, either 

on a book value basis or realizable value basis or replacement cost basis This valuation 

approach is mainly used in case where the asset base dominate earnings capability or in case 

where the valuing entity is a Holding company deriving significant value from its Assets & 

Investments. 

Under the Adjusted Net Asset Value (“NAV”) Method, the assets and liabilities are considered 

at their realizable / market value including Intangible Assets and Contingent Liabilities if any 

which are not stated in the balance sheet. From the realizable value of the assets, the 

potential liabilities (including the preference share capital, if any) would be deducted. 

For valuation of GHPL we have considered this method, as entity has significant investments 

& property in their balance sheet and their historical book value and fair value respectively 

reflect the intrinsic value of the business. 

For valuation of EDIEPL we have considered this method, as entity is not in operations and 

entity has significant investments & property in their balance sheet their historical book value 

and fair value respectively reflect the intrinsic value of the business. 

For valuation of GPL which is an operating company& has a going concern scenario, the 

relative earning power which comes under the Income & Market approach is of great 

importance than the Asset Approach. So, therefore, this method has not been used for the 

valuation exercise. 

2. Income Approach – Discounted Cash Flows method (‘DCF’) 

Discounted Cash Flow Method 

The income approach is widely used for valuation under “Going Concern” basis. It focuses on 

the income generated by the company in the past as well as its future earning capability. The 

Discounted Cash Flow (“DCF”) Method under the income approach seeks to arrive at a 

valuation based on the strength of future cash flows.  
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Under the Discounted Cash Flow method (DCF), the projected free cash flows to the firm/ 

equity shareholders are discounted at the weighted average cost of capital/ cost of equity. 

The sum of the discounted value of such free cash flows is the value of the firm / equity. 

Using the DCF analysis involves determining the following: 

Estimating future free cash flows:  

Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated by the company that are 

available to the providers of the company’s capital. We have taken the earnings before 

interest and tax, to which we have added depreciation. Further such earnings are adjusted 

for non-operating incomes and expenses so as to arrive at EBITDA. The perpetuity (terminal) 

value is calculated based on the business’ potential for further growth beyond the explicit 

forecast period. Usually “constant growth model” is applied, which implies an expected 

constant level of growth for perpetuity in the cash flows over the last year of the forecast 

period. 

 

Appropriate discount rate to be applied to cash flows i.e. the cost of capital: 

The Free Cash Flows arrived at above are discounted at appropriate discount rate to arrive at 

the Present Value thereof. This discount rate should reflect the opportunity cost to the 

providers of capital. The opportunity cost equals the rate of return the capital provider 

expects to earn on other investments of equivalent risk. The discounting factor reflects not 

only the time value of money, but also risk associated with the business’ future operations. 

 

Equity Value: 

 

The Equity Value (aggregate of present value of explicit period and terminal period cash 

flows) so derived, is further adjusted for the cash, non-operating assets liabilities (e.g. fair 

value of investments in subsidiaries / associates, value of surplus assets, any contingent 

liabilities, etc.) and preference shareholders liability, if any, to arrive at value to the owners 

of the business. 

For valuation of GPL which is an operating company &entity drive its value from earnings. We 

have assigned appropriate weight to this method. The free cash flows to the firm available in 

the explicit period and those in perpetuity are discounted by discounting factor based on 

Weighted Average Cost of Capital. 

For valuation of GHPL & EDIEPL, these entities have significant investments in property in 

their balance sheet without any other operational business and their historical book value 

fairly reflects the intrinsic value of the business. So, therefore, this method has not been 

used for the valuation exercise. 
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3. Market Approach  

Under this approach, the valuation is based on the market value of the company in case of 

listed companies and comparable companies trading or transaction multiples for unlisted 

companies. 

 

Comparable Company Quoted Multiple (CCM)/ Comparable Transaction Multiple (CTM) 

Method 

Under CCM, value of the Company is arrived at by using multiples derived from valuations of 

comparable companies, as manifest through stock market valuations of listed companies. 

This valuation is based on the principle that market valuations, taking place between 

informed buyers and informed sellers, incorporate all factors relevant to valuation. Under 

CTM, value of the company is arrived on the basis of transactions related to sale/ purchase/ 

investment in similar companies in the market outside of Stock Market. 

Relevant multiples need to be chosen carefully and adjusted for differences between the 

circumstances. 

For valuation of GPL, GHPL & EDIEPL, in the absence of comparable company/ transaction to 

determine relevant multiples for estimating equity values of subject companies, we could not 

consider these methods for the purpose of valuation. 

Pricing of Equity Shares 

As per regulation 164(1) of ICDR Regulations, the market price cannot be lower than the 

higher of following of the issuer listed company, if share is frequently traded: 

(a) Average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price during the 26 

weeks preceding relevant date; or 

(b) Average of weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price during the 2 weeks 

preceding relevant date. 

Frequently traded shares means the shares of the issuer, in which the traded turnover on any 

recognised stock exchange during the twelve calendar months preceding the relevant date, is 

at least ten per cent of the total number of shares of such class of shares of the issuer. 

Provided that where the share capital of a particular class of shares of the issuer is not 

identical throughout such period, the weighted average number of total shares of such class 

of the issuer shall represent the total number of shares. 

The Relevant date for the purpose of computing pricing shall be the last working day 

immediately prior to the date of the board meeting. 

In the present case, the trading volumes of the equity shares of GPL were more than 10% of 

the total number of shares during the twelve calendar months preceding the relevant date 

i.e. 6th August, 2020 on the NSE and accordingly equity shares of the company was classified 

as frequently traded shares under preferential issue pricing guidelines.  
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EDIEPL & GHPL not a listed Company and hence Market Price Method is not applicable. Thus, 

the minimum pricing requirements of ICDR are applicable on amalgamation of EDIEPL and 

GHPL with GPL, since GPL is frequently traded. 

Share exchange ratio recommendation 

Fair Value for the purpose of amalgamation have to be determined after taking into 
consideration all the factors and methodologies. Though, different values have been arrived 
at, under each of the above methodologies. For the purposes of recommending a Share 
exchange ratio, it is necessary to arrive at a single value for the equity shares of GPL, GHPL 
and EDIEPL. It is however important to note that in doing so, we are not attempting to arrive 
at the absolute equity values but at their relative values to facilitate the determination of 
fair exchange ratio. For this purpose, appropriate weights have been assigned to each 
method. 
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The relative value per share and the share exchange ratio recommended is provided as 
follows: 

 

N.A. = Not Applicable 

 

 

 

 

Share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of GHPL and EDIEPL with GPL 

 

Valuation Approach GPL GHPL EDIEPL 

Value per 
share 

Weight Value per 
share 

Weight Value per 
share 

Weight 

Adjusted Net Asset 
Value Method 

N.A. N.A. 19,13,284.67 1 8,686.72 1 

Discounted Cash 
Flow Method 

57.34 0.5 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

Market Price Method 38.69 0.5 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

Fair Value per share 48.01  19,13,284.67  8,686.72  

Share Exchange 
Ratio (Rounded off) 

 39,848 181 

 

Conclusion Ratio: 

Valuer has recommend that: 

In consideration of amalgamation of GHPL with GPL, the equity shareholders of GHPL shall 
receive 39,848 Equity Share(s) of Rs.1/- each in GPL as fully paid up for every 1 Equity Share 
of Rs.1000/- each fully paid-up held by the equity shareholders of GHPL in the capital of 
GHPL. 

In consideration of amalgamation of EDIEPL with GPL, the equity shareholders of EDIEPL shall 
receive 181 Equity Share(s) of Rs.1/- each in GPL as fully paid up for every 1 Equity Share of 
Rs.10/- each fully paid-up held by the equity shareholders of EDIEPL in the capital of EDIEPL. 

 

Equity shares already held by GHPL & EDIEPL in GPL as on the date of valuation shall stands 
cancelled. 
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Exclusions and Limitations 
 

Our opinion and analysis is limited to the extent of review of the valuation report by the 

valuer and the Draft scheme document. In connection with the opinion, we have relied on the 

following information about the Companies received from the management and / or gathered 

from public domain: 

A)  Brief overview of the business of Companies and other relevant information; 

B) Salient features of the Proposed Amalgamation; 

C) Draft Scheme of Arrangement 

D) Audited Financial Statement of GPL, GHPL, and EDIEPL for the financial year 2017-18, 

2018-19; 

E) Audited financial statements of the GPL, GHPL, and EDIEPL for the financial year 2019-

20, with key financial assumptions; 

F) Any material financial changes in GPL, GHPL and EDIEPL from the 31st March, 2020 to 

the valuation date in the absence of the financials for the period ended 30th June, 

2020. 

G) Management Certified Projected financial statements of the GPL from the 1st July, 

2020 to 31st March 2025, with key financial assumptions; 

H) Fair Value Report of Immovable Properties by Er. Ratan Dev Garg as on 18th June, 

2020; 

I) Management Assumptions related to Risk and Growth Projections; 

J) We have also received necessary explanations and information, which we believed 

were relevant to the present valuation exercise from the executives and management 

of the company; 

K) Information (industry related as well as company specific) available on various public 

domains; 

L) Latest Shareholding pattern of the Companies. 

For our analysis, we have also relied on published and secondary source of data. We have 

not independently verified the accuracy or timeliness of the same. 

This opinion is intended only for the sole use and information of GPL, GHPL, & EDIEPL and in 

connection with the Scheme, including for the purpose of obtaining judicial and regulatory 

approvals for the Scheme or the purpose of complying with the SEBI regulations and 

requirement of stock exchanges on which the company is listed, and for no other purpose. We 

are not responsible in any way to any person/party/statutory authority for any decision of 

such person or party or authority based on this opinion. Any person/party intending to provide 

finance or invest in the shares/business of GHPL, EDIEPL and/or GPL or their subsidiaries 

/joint ventures/associates shall do so after seeking their own professional advice and after 

carrying out their own due diligence procedures to ensure that they are making an informed 

decision. 
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For the purpose of this assignment, Navigant has relied on the Valuation Report for the 

proposed “Scheme of Amalgamation” of GHPL, EDIEPL and GPL and their respective 

shareholders and information and explanation provided to it, the accuracy whereof has not 

been evaluated by Navigant. Navigant’s work does not constitute certification or due 

diligence of any past working results and Navigant has relied upon the information provided to 

it as set out in working results of the aforesaid reports. 

Navigant has not carried out any physical verification of the assets and liabilities of the 

companies and takes no responsibility on the identification and availability of such assets and 

liabilities. 

We hereby give our consent to present and disclose the Fairness Opinion in the general 

meetings of the shareholders of GHPL, EDIEPL and GPL and to the Stock Exchanges and to the 

Registrar of Companies. Our opinion is not, nor should it be construed as our opining or 

certifying the compliance of the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation with the provisions of any 

law including companies, taxation and capital market related laws or as regards any legal 

implications or issues arising thereon. 

The information contained in this report is selective and is subject to updating, expansions, 

revisions and amendment, if any. It does not purport to contain all the information recipients 

may require. No obligation is accepted to provide recipients with access to any additional 

information or to correct any inaccuracies which might become apparent. Recipients are 

advised to independently conduct their own investigation and analysis of the business of the 

Companies. The report has been prepared solely for the purpose of giving a fairness opinion 

on Valuation Report issued for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation between GHPL, EDIEPL 

and GPL and their respective shareholders, and may not be applicable or referred to or 

quoted in any other context. 

Our opinion is dependent on the information provided to us being complete and accurate in 

all material respects. Our scope of work does not enable us to accept responsibility for the 

accuracy and completeness of the information provided to us. The scope of our assignment 

does not involve performing audit tests for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

fairness or accuracy of any financial or analytical information used during the course of our 

work. As such we have not performed any audit, review or examinations of any of the 

historical or prospective information used and, therefore, do not express any opinion with 

regard to the same. In addition, we do not take any responsibility for any changes in the 

information used for any reason, which may occur subsequent to this date. 

One should note that valuation is not an exact science and that estimating values necessarily 

involves selecting a method or approach that is suitable for the purpose. Moreover in this case 

where the shares of the company are being issued as consideration to the shareholders of 

GHPL, and EDIEPL, it is not the absolute valuation that is important for framing an opinion but 

the relative valuation of the company vis-a-vis shares of GHPL, and EDIEPL. 
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We have assumed that the Final Scheme will not differ in any material respect from the Draft 

Scheme Document shared with us. 

We do not express any opinion as to any tax or other consequences that might arise from the 

Scheme on GHPL, EDIEPL and GPL and their respective shareholders, nor does our opinion 

address any legal, tax, regulatory or accounting matters, as to which we understand that the 

respective companies have obtained such advice as they deemed necessary from qualified 

professionals. We have undertaken no independent analysis of any potential or actual 

litigation, regulatory action, possible unasserted claims, government investigation or other 

contingent liabilities to which GHPL, EDIEPL and GPL and/or their associates/ subsidiaries, 

are or may be party. 

The company has been provided with an opportunity to review the Draft Opinion as part of 

our standard practice to make sure that factual inaccuracy/omissions are avoided in our Final 

Opinion. 

Our Opinion in not intended to and does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholder 

as to how such holder should vote or act in connection with the Scheme or any matter 

thereto. 

 

Our Fairness Opinion: 
 

On the basis of and subject to the foregoing, to the best of our knowledge and belief, it is our 

view that, as on the date thereof, the share exchange ratio as recommended by the valuer in 

relation to the proposed Amalgamation of GHPL and EDIEPL to GPL are fair, from a financial 

point of view, to the shareholders of the Company. 

This being of our best of professional understanding, we hereby sign the Fairness Opinion 

report on valuation. 

 

For Navigant Corporate Advisors Limited 

 
 
Sarthak Vijlani 
Managing Director 
 
Date: 6th August, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 
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GULSHAN
POTYOLS I.IMITED

Date: November 03, 2020

To,

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,

Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra - Kurla
Complex,
Bandra (East),

Mumbai 400 051

Trading Symbol: GULPOLY

Dear Sir/Ma'am,

fu!: Report on Complaints

Ref: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 C'LODR Regulations") for the proposed Scheme of
Amalgamation of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited ("Transferor Company 1") and East Delhi
lmporters & Exporters Private Limited ("Transferor Company 2") (collectively referred as the

"Transferor Companies") with Gulshan Polyols Limited ("Transferee Company")
("Scheme")

This has reference to the captioned subject application filed by the Company with National Stock

Exchange of lndia Limited C'NSE") on September 11, 2020. The Scheme and other relevant

documents were hosted by NSE on its website on October 09, 2020.

No complaints relating to the Scheme have been received during the period from September 11,2020

to October 30, 2020. As required by Para I(4)(6) of Annexure I to the SEBI Circular no.

CFD/DIL3/CIPJ2 0l7l2l dated March 10, 2017,lhe "Report on Complaints" is enclosed.

Thanking You,

Yours faithfully,

Gulshan Polyots Limlt6d
CIN : 124231 UP2000P1C034918
Corporale Oflice: c-81, preet Vihar,
Delhi-110092, lndia
Phone : +91 11 4999S200
Fax : +91 11 49999202
E-mail : gscldelhi@gutshanindia.com
Webslte: www.gulshanindia.com

f,ncl.: As Above.

es
k9d

Vijay Kumar Garg
(Company Secretary)

Regd. Off.: 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffarnagar, (U.P) 251001 , Ph.: (0131 ) 32958800, Fax: (Oi 3.l ) 2661378
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REPORT ON COMPLAINTS
(for the period from September 11,2020 to October 30, 2020)

Part A

Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges /
SEBI
Total number of complaints / comments received ( l+2

Vijay Kumar Garg
(Company Secretary)

Part B

Sr.
No.

Particulars Number

l. Number of complaints received directly NIL
2. NIL

J. NIL
4. Number of complaints resolved NOT APPLICABLE
5. Number of complaints oendins NOT APPLICABLE

Sr.
No.

Name of the complainant Date of complaint Status
(Res<rlved/Pendins)

NOT APPLICABLE
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Numberoicomplants rece ved d re.l y

Number olcomplaints foearded by Slock Excha.se

Total Number ol complainls/commenls rece ved (l+2)

Number oI complaif ls resolved 0

a Number ol comphi.ls pendino

2
3.

Lor cursr,in Po/+frs Lim

\i\.", f ,
'-) I /-
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GUTSHAN
POTYOLS IIMtTED

Date: November 03, 2020

To,

BSE Limited,
P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai - 400 001.
Scrip Code: 532457
SYMBOL: GULPOLY

Sqb: Report on Complaints

Ref: Application under Reguration 37 of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 20r5 ('LODR Regulations,') for the proposed Scheme of
Amalgamation of Gulshan Holdings private Limited (..Transferor company l,') and East Delhi
Importers & Exporters Private Limited ("Transferor Company 2"y lcoileciively referred as the
"Transferor Companies") with Gulshan porvors Limited (,.Transferee Company")
("Scheme")

This has reference to the captioned subject application filed by the company with BSE Limited
C'BSE") on September 11,2020. The Scheme and other relevant documents were hosted bv BSE on
its website on September 21, 2020.

Gulshan Polyds Limited
crN : 124231 UP20d0PLC03491S
Corporate Ofice: cf81, preet Vrhar,
DelhF110092. lndra
Phone : +91 11 49Sb9200
Fax : +91 11 49999f02
E-marl : gscldelhi@butshanrndia.com
Websrle: www. gulstfanindia.com

listins portal and the same has been hgsted on the BSE's website.

No complaints relating to the Scheme have been received during the period lrom September 11,2020
to october 30, 2020. As required by Para I(4)(6) of Annexure I to the SEBI circular no.
CFD/DIL3/CIPJ2\\1l2l dated March 10, 201 7, the ..Report on Comptaints" is enclosed.

The aforesaid compliance is being made again in abundant caution,

Thanking You,

Encl.: As Above.

Yours faithfully,
For Gulshan Polyols

Vijay Kumar Garg
(Company Secretary)

/)/tOtS
'"o7--:s

Irn
./ot
+.//

Regd. Off.: gth K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffarnagar, (U.P) 251001, Ph.: (0131)32958800, Fax: (013't) 266'137

ANNEXURE H
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Rf,PORT ON COMPLAINTS
(for the period from September 1 1, 2020 to October 30, 2020)

Part A

Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges /
SEBI
Total number of complaints / comments received ( l+2

ffi
Vijay Kumar Garg
(Company Secretary)

Part B

Sr.
No,

Particulars Numbcr

Number of comolaints received directly NIL
2. NIL

3. NIL
4. Number of complaints resolved NOT APPLICABLE
5. Number of comolaints Dendins NOT APPLICABLE

Sr.
No.

Name of the complainant Date of complaint Status
(Rosolved/Pendins)

NOT APPLICABLE

For Gulshan

'Yt
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Ref: NSE/LIST/24671_III               January 29, 2021 

 

The Company Secretary 

Gulshan Polyols Limited 

9th K.M., Jansath Road, 

Muzaffarnagar, 

Uttar Pradesh – 251001 

Kind Attn.: Mr. Vijay Kumar Garg 

Dear Sir, 

 

Sub: Observation Letter for Draft Scheme of Amalgamation between Gulshan Holdings 

Private Limited, East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited, Gulshan Polyols 

Limited and their respective shareholders 

 

We are in receipt of the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation between Gulshan Holdings Private 

Limited, East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited, Gulshan Polyols Limited and their 

respective shareholders vide application dated September 11, 2020. 

 

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/24671 submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI 

Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 („Circular‟), kindly find following 

comments on the draft scheme: 

a. The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular. 

b. The Company shall ensure that the financials of the companies involved in the Scheme is 

updated and are not more than 6 months old before filing the same with the Hon’ble National 

Company Law Tribunal (NCLT). 

c. The Company shall ensure that the proposed scheme is acted upon only if approved by the 

NCLT and if the majority votes cast by the public shareholders are in favour of the proposal. 

d. The Company shall ensure that additional information and undertakings, if any, submitted by 

the Company, after filing the scheme with the stock exchange, and from the date of receipt of 

this letter is displayed on the websites of the listed company. 

e. The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be 

incorporated in the petition to be filed before NCLT and the company is obliged to bring the 

observations to the notice of NCLT. 

j. It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and 

communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, 

the company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 

230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/ observation/ representations. 
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Continuation Sheet 

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing 
and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. 
Hence, the company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under 
section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again 
for its comments/observations/representations. 
 
Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including 
undertaking given in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby 
convey our “No-objection” in terms of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so 
as to enable the Company to file the draft scheme with NCLT. 
 
However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information 
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any 
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, 
Guidelines / Regulations issued by statutory authorities. 
 

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from January 29, 2021 within 

which the scheme shall be submitted to NCLT. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
 

 

Jiten Patel 

Manager 

 

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following 

URL http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm 
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BSE Limited Registered Office: Floor 25, P J Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001, India 
T : +91 22 2272 8045 / 8055      F : +91 22 2272 3457      www.bseindia.com 
Corporate Identity Number: L67120MH2005PLC155188 

 

BSE - INTERNAL 

 
 

DCS/AMAL/SD/R37/1889/2020-21   “E-Letter”                  February 1, 2021 

 
The Company Secretary, 
GULSHAN POLYOLS LTD. 
9th K M Jansath Road, Muzaffarnagar,  
Uttar Pradesh, 251001 
 
Sir/Madam, 
 
Sub: Observation letter regarding the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation between Gulshan 

Holdings Pvt Ltd, East Delhi Importers & Exporters Pvt Ltd, Gulshan Polyols Ltd and their 

respective shareholders.  

We are in receipt of the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation between Gulshan Holdings Pvt Ltd, East Delhi 

Importers & Exporters Pvt Ltd, Gulshan Polyols Ltd and their respective shareholders by Gulshan 

Polyols Ltd filed as required under SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017; 

SEBI vide its letter dated January 29, 2021 has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft 

scheme of arrangement:   

 
• “The Company shall ensure that the financials of the companies involved in the Scheme 

is updated and are not more than 6 months old majority before filing the same with the 
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal”. 
 

• “Company shall ensure that additional information and undertakings, if any, submitted 
by the Company, after filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchange, and from the date of 
receipt of this letter is displayed on the websites of the listed company and the stock 
exchanges.” 

 
• “Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.” 

 
• “The Company shall ensure that the proposed scheme is acted upon only if approved 

by the NCLT and if the majority votes cast by the public shareholders are in favour of 
the proposal.” 
 

• “Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be 
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) 
and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT." 

 
• “It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing 

and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/stock 
exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for representation as 
mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments 
/ observations / representations.” 
 

 
 Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised: 
 

• To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to the 
Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website. 
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BSE Limited Registered Office: Floor 25, P J Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001, India 
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BSE - INTERNAL 

• To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various documents 
are disseminated on their (company) website. 

• To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars. 
 
In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to 

those matters having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the provisions 

of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon’ble NCLT.  

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the 

shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted 

company involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated 

March 10, 2017.  

Kindly   note   that   as   required   under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be six months from the 
date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.  
 
The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation’ at any stage if the information 
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for any 
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, 
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities. 
 
Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any 
other requirements. 
 
Further, it may be noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read 
with Rule 8 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 (Company 
Rules) and Section 66 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an Order 
passed by the  Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, a Notice of  the proposed scheme of 
compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 66 of  the Companies Act 2013 as 
the case may be is required to be served upon the Exchange seeking representations or 
objections if any. 
 
In this regard, with a view to have a better transparency in processing the aforesaid notices served 
upon the Exchange, the Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such Notice 
along with the relevant documents of the proposed schemes through the BSE Listing Centre. 
 
Any service of notice under Section 230 (5) or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking 
Exchange’s representations or objections if any, would be accepted and processed through the 
Listing Centre only and no physical filings would be accepted. You may please refer to circular 
dated February 26, 2019 issued to the company. 
 
  
Yours faithfully, 
 
sd/-  
 
Nitinkumar Pujari                                                                                            
Senior Manager 
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t(,
GULSHAN
POLYOTS LIMITED

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF GULSHAN POLYOLS
LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 06, 2O2O AT G- 81, PREET VIHAR,
DELHI- 1IOO92 EXPLAINING EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON EACH CLASS OF
SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON-
PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS, LAYING OUT IN PARTICULAR THE SHARE
f,NTITLEMENT AS PER THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE
CoMPANIES ACT,2013.

1. Backsround:+

l.l The Board of Directors ('Board') of Gulshan Polyols Limited ("the Transferee Company,, or
"GPL") at its meeting held on 6th August 2020 approved the scheme of amalgamation amongst the
Gulshan Holdings Private Limited ("GIIPL' or "Transferor Company 1',) and East Delhi
Importers & Exporters Private Limited ("EDIEPL" or 6'Transferor Company 2") (hereinafter
together referred as the 5'Transferor Companies") with the Transferee Company and their respective
shareholders and creditors ("the Scheme") to be implemented as per the terms specified in the
Scheme.

L2 As per the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 20 I 3, the Board of Directors is required
to prepare and adopt a report explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of Shareholders, Key
Managerial Personnel, Promoters and non-promoter Shareholders and the same is required to be
appended with the Notice of the Meeting of Shareholders. This report of the Board is made in order to
comply with the requirements of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

L3 T'he following necessary documents were placed before the Board:
(a) Draft Scheme of Amalgamation initialled by the Company Secretary for the purposes of

identification;

(b) Valuation Report dated 6th August, 2020 prepared by Mr. Vardhman Doogar, Chartered
Accountant (Registered Valuer) describing the methodology adopted by them in arriving at
and recommending the Share Exchange Entitlement Ratio ("Valuation Report");

(c) Fairness Opinion dated 6fl' August, 2020 prepared by M/s. Navigant Corporate Advisors
Limited, a Category I Merchant Banker providing the Fairness Opinion on the Share

Entitlement Ratio recommended by the Valuer (.,Fairness Opinion,r);
(d) Audit Committee Report dated 6th August, 2020 recommending the Scheme of

Amalgamation.

2. Effect of Scheme of Amaleamation:

2.1 The Scheme contemplates amalgamation of Transferor Companies into the Transferee Company
pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act,2013 and dissolution without winding up of the Transferor Companies pursuant thereto. It does

not contemplate any compromise or iurangement with any other class of persons, apart from the

shareholders of the respective companies.

Gulshan Polyols Limited
CIN : 124231 UP2000P1C03491 I
Corporate Ofiice: G-81, Preet Vihar,
Delhi-110092, lndia
Phone: +91 11 49999200
Fax: +91 11 49999202
E-mail : gscldelhi@gulslranindia.com
Website: www.gulshanirrdia.com

Reorl Off '9th K M .lansath Road Mrrzaffarnaoar (U P'l 251001. Ph.: (0131) 32358800 Fax: (0131 ) 2661378
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GULSHAN
POLYOLS TIMITED

2'2Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the existing equity share capital of the Transferee Company
held by Transferor Companies shall stand cancelled and in consideration of the amalgamation of the
Transferor Companies in the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall, without any further
application, act or deed, issue and allot to the shareholders of the Transferor Companies, 2,99,g2,536
('Two Crore Ninety Nine Lakh Eighty Two Thousands Five Hundred and Thirty Six) full paid-up
equity shares of the face value of INR l/- (Rupee One) each, in the following manner:i. 39,848 Equity Shares of Rs.l/- each fully paid up of Gulshan polyols Limited for

every 1 Equity Share of Rs.l000/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Holdings private
Limited.

ii' 181 Equity Shares of Rs.l/- each fully paid up of Gulshan polyols Limited for every
1 Equity Share of Rs.l0/- each fully paid up of East Delhi Importers and Exporters
Private Limited.,,

2.3 'l-he amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company would inter alia have
the following benefits:

a) Ensuring a streamlined group structure by reducing the number of legal entities;
b) Reducing the multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances required at present;
c) Eliminating duplicative communication and coordination efforts across multiple entities;
d) Rationalising cost by eliminating multiple record keeping and administrative functions;
e) The amalgamation would not only lead to simplification of the shareholding structure and

reduction of the shareholding tiers, but also demonstrate the promoter group direct
commitment to and engagement with GpL;

0 Strengthen the business of the Transferee Company by pooling up the resources, land,
investment and assets for common purpose and hence optimum utilization.

2.4 The effect of the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation on the stakeholders of GPL would be as follows:
Effect of the Scheme on:

Gulshan Polyols Lirnited
CIN : 124231 UP2000P1C03491 8
Corporate Office: G-81 Preet Vihar,
Delhi-110092, lndia
Phone: +91 11 499992100
Fax: +91 11 49999202
E-mail : gscldelhi@gulsrhanindia.com
Website: www, gulshanindia,com

(a) Equity Shareholders (Promoters

and Non Promoters)
Upon the coming into the effect of the Scheme and in
consideration of the transfer and vesting of the
Transferor Companies, the Transferee Company shall
issue and allot to the equity shareholders of the
Transferor Companies, New Equity Shares of the
Transferee Company in the ratio as enumerated in
Clause 14 of Part III of the Scheme. Further, the
authorized share capital of the Transferor Companies
shall stand transferred to and be amalgam ated I
combined with the authorized share capital of the
Transferee Company in the manner as stipulated in
Clause 17 of Part III of the Scheme.

(b) Preference Shareholders No Impact.
(c) Key Managerial Personnel

(KMP)
The Transferee Company is not expecting any change
in the KMPs of the Transferee Company in pursuance

of the Scheme becoming effective.
(d) Directors No Impact. The Scheme will have no effect on the

office of the existing Directors of the Transferee

Pond f.\ff'qfhKl\it lrncqlhRnad [\firzaffarnal^r /l lp\?qlOnl ph-/O11'l\32qSRROO trav /O131\2661378
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GULSHAN
POTYOTS LIMITED

In the opinion of the Board, the said scheme will be of advantage and beneficial to the Company, its
Shareholders, Creditors and other Stakeholders and the terms thereof are fair and reasonable.

BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARI)
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF

GULSHAN POLYOLS LIMITED

Gulshan Polyols Limited
CIN : 124231 UP2000PI-C034918
Corporate Office: G-81, Preet Vihar,
Delhi-110092, lndia
Phone : +91 11 499992rC0
Fax: +91 11 49999202
E-mail : gscldelhi@gulshanindia.com
Website : www. gulshanindia.com

2.5

Ashwani Kumar Vats
CEO and Whole Time Director
DIN:00062645
Place: Delhi
Date: August05,202l

Company.

(e) Creditors No Impact. They shall be paid as and when their debt
becomes due. The liability of the creditors of the
Transferee Company, under the Scheme, is neither
being reduced nor being extinguished. The creditors
of the Transferee Company would in no way be

affected by the Scheme.

(0 Employees The Transferee Company is not expecting any change

in the Employees of the Transferee Company in
pursuance of the Scheme becoming effective.
Moreover, all in-scope employees forming part of
Transferor Company shall be transferred to the
Transferee Companies on the same terms and

conditions on which they are engaged by the

Transferor Companies.

(g) Debenture holders,
holders, Depositors
Debenture Trustees

Bond
and

The Transferee Company has not issued debentures,
bonds and doesn't have debenture trustee. Further, the
Transferee Company has not accepted deposit.

Regd. Off.:gth K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffarnasar, (U.P.) 251001. Ph.: (0131) 32958800. Fax:(0131) 2661378
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:"{B:trshin,rG. ...il_-.

RXPORT ADOPTED BY THE BO1RD OF DIRECTO.RS OF GULSHAN HOLDTNGS
PRIVATE LIMITED AT ITS ,.,iA" HELD Oii,t,ST 06, 2O2O ATG- 81, PREET
VtrIAR, DELHI- IIOO,2 

'*,"O'NAI- EFFECT O' i,,1CHEME ON EACH CLASS OF
SHAREHOLDERS, KEY *,ANACNN,A., ,,*,O**i,, PROMOTERS AND NON.
PROMOTER SHTIEHO",*','-iiYING 

OUT i* .ON'ICULAR THE SHAREflillr:"Nr As PER rHE **irfrroNs oF sECrroN 232e)G)oF rHE coMpANrEs

l. Backsround:

1.1 The Board of Directors (,Board,) of Gulshan Holdings private Limited (,6the Transferor Company1'or (GrrPL) 
atits meeting r"ri 

"' 6th.Au-gust ,iri 
"ii*ed the scheme orarnatgamation amongst

the Transferor company r 
"]'a 

g"i Delhi Impon"., i'e*oorters private Limited (6.EDrEpr,,, e1"Transferor company 2') (hereinafter togeth", ,"LtI as the ..Transfero" 
compuriesr) with

Gulshan Polyols Limited ('iontr"t"" co-p"'y'o"llCpr,) and their respective sharehorders and
creditors (6'the schemet') to be implemented as per the terms specified in the Scheme.

l '2 As per the provisions of Section 232(2)(c)of companies Act, 2013, theBoard of Directors is requiredto prepare and adopt 
1 

report t*ptuinirg the effeci of flr. i.t rr. on each class of sharehorders, KeyManagerial Personnel' pto'oto' *J ,or-r.o.oter sharehorders and the same is required to be
appended with the Notice of the Meeting of Shareholders. rhi, .eport or,,r" 

"o*a 
is made in order tocompry with the requirements of Section 232(2)(c)of companies Act,2013.

1'3 The foilowing necessary documents were placed before the Board:o, 
il:ll*l,r;e 

of Amargamation initiared by *re aorou* secretary for the purposes of
(b) valuation Report dated 66 August, 2020 prepared by Mr. vardhman Doogar, charteredAccountant (Registered valuer) describing dr" ,"flroaorogy adopted by them in arriving at andrecommending the Share Exchange Entitlement Ratio (,.Valuation Reportrr);(c) Fairness opinion dated 6tr August, 2020 prepared by IWs. Navigant corporate AdvisorsLimited' a category I Merchant 

-r$"l providing the Faimess opinion on the ShareEntitrement Ratio recommended bv the vah;.aF;;;;ess opinion,);

2.1 The Scheme contemplates amalgamation of Transferor Companies into the Transferee Companypursuant to the provisions of sect ion 230 to 2:?*d oth;; af,pucaute provisions of ,h" corpanies Ac!2013 and dissolution without winding up of the Transferor companies pursuant thereto. It does not
ff:"ilii::;llrJ:H,':fi::"ilffiffement *il;;;'"ther crass or p..*,,, apart rrom the

2'2 uponthe Scheme becoming effective, the existing equity share capitar ofthe Transferee company herdby Transferor companies shall stand cancelled and in consideration of the amargamation of theTransferor companies in the Transferee company, the Transferee company shall, without any further

2.
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GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIIT,IITEDCtN No. U74899Up198spTc12Soot----- -

j:-s-*:-Ij99 el1$!, Jansath Road,

application' act or deed' issue and allot to the sharehorders of the Transferor companies, 2,gg,g2,s36(Two crore Ninety Nine Lakh ri$f rwo Thousands Five.Hundred and Thirtll ,,,.1n ,, paid-up equ[ryshares of the face^varue of INR ri- 6.up". one) each, in the forowing manner:i. 39,g4g Equiry Shares of Rs.l/- 
"*t t [, oria ungi1].r,* ,"ry"rs Limited for evQryI Equity share of Rs Jloo/:each fully r* ,, of Gulshan Holdings private Limited.ii' 181 Equity shares of Rs.l/- each ful( puiJrp of Gulshan roryoi, Limited for every l

ffi?r:lffil-s'lo/- 
each r,,ilv p"iJri orrast Dehi ffirters and Exportgs

2'3 rhe amalgffi:::r:lthe Transferor companies with the Transferee company wourd inter ariahate
a) Ensuring a-streamlined srouq structure by reducing the number of Iegal entities;b) Reducing the multiplicity oflegal and regutatory Jompriances required at present;c) Eliminating duplicative communication ana coordination efforts;.; murtipre entities;d) Rationalising cost by eliminating multiple...o.J truping and administrative functions;e) The amalgamation would not only leal to simplification of the shareholding structure an{reduction of the shareholding tiers, but akl demonstrate the promoter group directcommitnent to and engagement with GpL; 

urw pr(rru

0 Strengthen the businest or th. Transferee company by pooring up the resources, land,investnent and assets for common purpose and hence optimum utilization.

M uzaffa rna ga r-25 1 00 1 ; Uftr;Fffi:i,

' 
- 

;::,:T.';Jl1[Jr':posed 
Scheme or Amalgamation on the stakehorders or rransreror company I

Effect of the Scheme on:

'fi]iffi

Equity Shareholders (p.o*ot.r,
and Non-Promoters)

Transferor Companies, the Transferee Company shall
issue and allot to the equity shareholders of the
Transferor Companies, New Equity Shares of the
Transferee company in the ratio as enumerated in
Clause 14 of part III of the Scheme. Further, the
autforized share capital of the Transferor Companies
shall stand transferred to and be amalgam ated /
combined with the authorized ,hu." 

"upi-tul 
of the

Transferee Company in the manner as siipulated in
Clause 17 of partIII of the Scheme.

Upon the.o.in
consideration of the transfer and vesting of the

Preference Shareholders The Transfe.o.
shares.

Key Munageiiai--Tersonnel It is expect"a to ur no@
Scheme on the KMps of the Transferor Company l.

It is expectea to
Scheme on the directors of the Transferor Company
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#:,r"*:Ij:: s 
:1 g,_ Ja ns a th Roa d,M uza fra rna s".-zs i 6d1, ; UA;'E[I33 ;E-mail q,:oqutshq niilia.coil'Ptroneffi

2'5 rn the opinion of the Board, the said scheme will be of advantage and beneficiar to the company, itsShareholders' creditors and other Stakeholders and the terms thereof are fair and reasonabre.
BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARI)
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

t-L_J-l_

1. [4rs.

f.lT:::l 
,t^*ill nothold office orai.""torrr,ip i,,rrrP Il

Ysferee Company. All other common dire<

I"11""^:l,r:: 
to hold office of ai.*i".Jip i,

The credito.
become business creditors of th.' T*r.fu"",
Company pursuant to the Schem". ,r* st att Ue pai
as and when their debt becomes due.

There will be no adverse impact on the rights andinterest of the credito(s) of the fransferee Companyl.

1,,tn-r.o,Company I shall be transferred io the Transferee
Company on the same terms and conditions on which
they are engaged by the Transferor Company f .

Thus, the Scheme will have no adverse effect on the
employees of the Transferor Company l.

Debenture hotG;-- B*a
holders, Depositors and
Debenfure Trustees

]he ]ransfer"

PT: :* doesn,t have debenture trustee. Further,
the Transferor Company I has not accepted deposit.

Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain
Director
DIN:00062221
Place: Delhi
Date: August05,202l
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EAST DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No. U60231 Up1992pTC129363
Regd. Office grH KM, Jansath Road,

Muzaffarnagar-2S1 001, Uttar pradesh
E-mail cg@g ulshan india,.corn

Phone No. 0141-32959800

RNPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF EAST DELIII IMPORTERS &
EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 06, 2O2O AT G-
81' PREET VIHAR, DELHI- 110092 EXPLAINING EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON EACH
CLASS OF SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND
NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS, LAYING OUT IN PARTICULAR THE SHARE
ENTTTLEMENT AS PER THE PROVTSTONS OF SECTTON 232(2)(C)OF THE COMPANTES
ACT,2013.

1. Backsround:

l.l The Board of Directors ('Board') of East Delhi Importers & Exporters private Limited (..EDIEpL,, or
"Transferor Company 2) at its meeting held on 6th August 2020 approved the scheme of
amalgamation amongst Gulshan Holdings Private Limited (..the Transferor Company l, or
"GIIPL") and Transferor Company 2 (hereinafter together referred as tle ..Transferor Companies,,)
with Gulshan Polyols Limited ("Transferee company' or 65GPL") and their respective shareholders
and creditors ("the Scheme") to be implemented as per the terms specified in the Scheme.

1.2 As perthe provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013,theBoard of Directors is required
to prepare and adopt a report explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of Shareholders, Key
Managerial Personnel, Promoters and non-promoter Shareholders and the same is required to be
appended with the Notice of the Meeting of Shareholders. This report of the Board is made in order to
comply with the requirements of Section 232(z)(c) of companies Act, 2013.

1.3 The following necessary documents were placed before the Board:
(a) Draft Scheme of Amalgamation initialled by the Company Secretary for the purposes of

identification;
(b) Valuation Report dated 66 August, 2020 prepared by Mr. Vardhman Doogar, Chartered

Accountant (Registered Valuer) describing the methodology adopted by them in aniving at and
recommending the Share Exchange Entitlement Ratio ("Valuation Report'r);

(c) Fairness Opinion dated 6ft August, 2020 prepared by IWs. Navigant Corporate Advisors
Limited, a Category I Merchant Banker providing the Fairness Opinion on the Share
Entitlement Ratio recommended by the valuer (,,Fairness opinionr');

2. Effect ofScheme of Am,aleamation:

2.1 The Scheme contemplates amalgamation of Transferor Companies into the Transferee Company
pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and dissolution without winding up of the Transferor Companies pursuant thereto. It does not
contemplate any compromise or arrangement with any other class of persons, apart from the
shareholders of the respective companies.

2-2 Uponthe Scheme becoming effective, the existing equity share capital of the Transferee Company held
by Transferor Companies shall stand cancelled and in consideration of the amalgamation of the
Transferor Companies in the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall, without any further
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EAST DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No. U60231 Up1 997pTC129363

^[".X*ffililllfJli]?,tXTiliil;E-mail cs@oulshanindia.com
Phone tto. OtlttEZgSgSoo

application' act or deed, issue and allot to the shareholders of the Transferor companies, 2,99,g2,536(Two crore Ninety Nine Lakh Eighty Two Thousands Five Hundred and Thi4y Six) full paid-up equityshares of the face varue of INR r/- (Rupee one) each, in the foflowing manner:i' 39,848 Equity shares ofRs.l/- each fully paid up orduthan polyols Limited for everyI Equity share of Rs.1000/- each fulry paid up of Gurshan Holdings private Limited.ii' l8l Equity Shares of Rs.l/- each fully paid up of Gulshan polyols Limited for every IEquity Share of Rs.l0l- each fufly paid up of East Derhi Importers and Exportersprivate Limited.,,

2'3 The amalgamation of the Transferor companies with the Transferee company wourd inter ariohavethe following benefits:
a) Ensuring a streamlined group structure by reducing the number of legal entities;b) Reducing the multiplicity of legal and reiulatory compliances required at present;c) Eliminating duplicative communication and coordination efforts u..os multiple entities;d) Rationalising cost by eliminating multiple record keeping and administrative functions;e) The amalgamation would not only lead to simplification of the shareholding structure andreduction of the shareholding tiers, but also demonstrate the promoter group direct

commitment to and engagement with GpL;
0 Strengthen the business of the Transferee company by pooling up the resources, land,

investrnent and assets for common purpose and hence optimum utilization.

2'4 The effect of the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation on the stakeholders of Transferor company 2
would be as follows:
Effect of the Scheme on:

Equity Shareholders (promoters
and Non-Promoters)

Upon the coming into the 
"ff"ct 

of tG S"h*i ard in
consideration of the transfer and vesting of the
Transferor Companies, the Transferee Company shall
issue and allot to the equity shareholders of the
Transferor Companies, New Equity Shares of the
Transferee Company in the ratio as enumerated in
Clause 14 of Part III of the Scheme. Further, the
authorized share capital of the Transferor Companies
shall stand transferred to and be amalgam ated I
combined with the authorized share capital of the
Transferee Company in the manner as stipulated in
Clause l7 of Part III of the Scheme.

Preference Shareholders The Transferor Company 2 has not issued p.efoerr".

Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP)

It is expected to be no adverse effect of ttre saia
Scheme on the KMPs of the Transferor Company 2.

It is expected to be no adverse effect of the said
Scheme on the directors of the Transferor Company
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EAST DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No. U60231 Upt ggTpTCt 29363
Regd. Office grH KM, Jansath Road,

Muzaffarnagar-251 001, Uttar pradesh
E-mait cq@sqtshaniFdii.co.nl

phone No. 0131-3295g800

2.Mr. arAf,est
Company 2) will not hold office of directorship in the
Transferee Company. All other common directors
will continue to hold office of directorship in the
Transferee Company.

The creditors of the rran@
become business creditors of the Transferee
Company pursuant to the Scheme. They shall be paid
as and when their debt becomes due.

There will be no adverse impact on the rights and
interest of the credito(s) of the Transferor Company
2.

All in-scope employees ro*nffi
Company 2 shall be transferred to the Transferee
Company on the same terms and conditions on which
they are engaged by the Transferor Company 2.

Thus, the Scheme will have no adverse effect on the
employees of the Transferor Company 2.

Debenfure holders, Bond
holders, Depositors and
Debenture Trustees

The Transferor Company Z t us@
bonds and doesn't have debenfure trustee. Further,
the Transferor Company 2 has not accepted deposit.

2'5 rn the opinion of the Board, the said scheme will be of advantage and beneficial to the company, its
Shareholders, Creditors and other Stakeholders and the terms thereof are fair and reasonable.

BY TIIE ORDER OF TTIE BOARI)
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
EAST DELTII IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED

DIN: 00120753

Place: Delhi
Date: August05,202l

AV| attt .

Aditi Pasaii
Director
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DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT COMPRISING OF APPLICABLE INFORMATION IN THE FORMAT SPECIFIED 

FOR ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS 

This disclosure document (“Document”) contains applicable information pertaining to the unlisted 

company, Gulshan Holdings Private Limited, holding company of Gulshan Polyols Limited, and the 

proposed Scheme of Amalgamation amongst Gulshan Holdings Private Limited and East Delhi 

Importers and Exporters Private Limited with Gulshan Polyols Limited and their respective 

shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”). 

 

This Document has been prepared in connection with the above Scheme, pursuant to the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated 

December 22, 2020 and SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (“SEBI 

Circulars”). This Document should be read together with the Scheme. 

THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS 10 PAGES. PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE RECEIVED ALL THE 

PAGES 

NO EQUITY SHARES ARE PROPOSED TO BE OFFERED PURSUANT TO THIS DOCUMENT 

You may download the Scheme from the website of Gulshan Polyols Limited i.e., 

www.gulshanindia.com or the website of the stock exchanges where the equity shares of Gulshan 

Polyols Limited are listed i.e., BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

(“NSE”) (BSE and NSE together hereinafter referred to as the “Stock Exchanges”) 

(Capitalised terms not defined herein shall have their meaning ascribed to them under the Scheme) 

GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Registered Office: at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India  

Telephone: +91 11 49999200, Website: Email: cs@gulshanindia.com  

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U74899UP1985PTC128005  

Contact Person: Ms. Asha Mittal  

 

NAME OF PROMOTER OF GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain 

Mrs. Mridula Jain 

Ms. Arushi Jain 

Ms. Aditi Pasari 

Ms. Anubha Gupta 

 

DETAILS OF THE SCHEME, LISTING AND PROCEDURE 

The Scheme of Amalgamation amongst Gulshan Holdings Private Limited (“Transferor Company No. 

1” or “GHPL”) and East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private Limited (“Transferor Company No. 2” 

or “EDIEPL”) (collectively referred to as the “Transferor Companies”) with Gulshan Polyols Limited 

(“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) provides for (a) 

Amalgamation (merger by absorption) of Transferor Company No. 1 into and with the Transferee 

Company and consequent dissolution of the Transferor Company No. 1 without winding up; and (b) 

Amalgamation (merger by absorption) of Transferor Company No.  2 into and with Transferee 

Company and consequent dissolution of the Transferor Company No. 2 without winding up, under 
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Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act. The Scheme also provides for various 

other matters consequent and incidental thereto.  

Consideration under the Scheme: Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the existing equity share 

capital of the Transferee Company held by Transferor Companies shall stand cancelled and in 

consideration of the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies in the Transferee Company, the 

Transferee Company shall, without any further application, act or deed, issue and allot to the 

shareholders of the Transferor Companies,  2,99,82,536 (Two Crore Ninety Nine Lakh Eighty Two 

Thousands Five Hundred and Thirty Six) fully paid-up equity shares of the face value of INR 1/- 

(Rupee One) each, in the following manner:  

i. 39,848 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Polyols Limited for every 1 

Equity Share of Rs.1000/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited; and  

ii. 181 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Polyols Limited for every 1 

Equity Share of Rs.10/- each fully paid up of East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private 

Limited. 

Rationale for the Scheme, as provided in the Scheme, is given below:  

a) Help in achieving improved operational efficiency and optimum advantages and also to 

achieve greater efficiency and synergy in operations by combining the activities of the 

Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company. Accordingly, the Scheme would 

strengthen and complement the businesses of the Companies; 

b) The amalgamated entity will benefit from optimum utilization of manpower through 

improved organizational capacity and leadership, arising from the combination of people 

from the Transferor Companies and Transferee Company which have diverse skills, talent, 

management expertise, enlarged knowledge base and vast experience to compete 

successfully in an increased competitive industry; 

c) The amalgamated entity shall reduce fixed costs by removing duplicate departments, 

operations and lower the cost of the Company relative to the same revenue stream and shall 

thus increase the profit margins; 

d) The amalgamation will offer a simplified corporate structure to the amalgamated entity;  

e) Under a liberalised, fast changing and highly competitive environment, this amalgamation 

shall strengthen the business of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company by 

pooling up the resources, business expertise, business processes and assets for common 

purpose and hence optimum utilization; 

f) The synergies that exist between the entities in terms of services and resources can be put 

to the best advantage of all stakeholders; 

g) The amalgamation will result in better economic control, increased financial strength and 

flexibility and enhance the ability of the amalgamated entity to undertake large projects, 

thereby contributing to enhancement of future business potential; 

h) Cost savings are expected to flow from more focused operational efforts, rationalisation, 

standardisation and simplification of business processes, productivity and improvements, 

improved procurement and the elimination of duplication and rationalization of 

administrative expenses; 

i) The consolidation of the companies engaged in similar & complementary line of business in 

one entity, under a single centralized system of management, will result in the management 
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being able to exercise greater control over the operations of the companies and which will 

help in synchronising the operations. This will also result in the management being enabled 

to undertake any re-structuring /re-organization of the various business undertakings of the 

companies for the purposes of achieving optimum efficiency /and or to attract investments 

in the individual business undertakings of the Companies.  

Appointed Date: Appointed Date for the Scheme means the opening business hours of 1st April, 

2020 or such other date as may be fixed or approved by the Appropriate Authority. 

* The above details of the Scheme have been suitably extracted from the Scheme.  

LISTING AND PROCEDURE 

After the Effective Date of this Scheme, the new equity shares to be issued and allotted by the 

Transferee Company in terms of the Scheme as mentioned above in Consideration shall be listed and 

shall be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges by virtue of this Scheme and in accordance with 

the provisions of SEBI Circulars. Transferee Company shall make all requisite applications and shall 

otherwise comply with the provisions of the SEBI Circulars and Applicable Laws and take all steps to 

get the new equity shares issued by it in pursuance to this Scheme listed on the Stock Exchanges. 

The new equity shares allotted by the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme shall remain 

frozen in the depositories system till listing/trading permission is given by the designated Stock 

Exchanges. 

It is pertinent to mention here that the procedure with respect to public issue/offer would not be 

applicable as these issues are only to the shareholders of the Transferor Companies, pursuant to the 

Scheme of Amalgamation without cash consideration.  

ELIGIBILITY FOR THE ISSUE 

• Whether the company is compulsorily required to allot at least 75% of the net offer to public, to 

qualified institutional buyers- NOT APPLICABLE  

• The Equity Shares sought to be listed are proposed to be allotted by the Transferee Company to 

the shareholders of the Transferor Companies pursuant to the Scheme to be sanctioned by 

National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies 

Act, 2013; and  

• The percentage of shareholding of pre-scheme public shareholders of the Transferee Company 

in the post-scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferee Company (Resulting Company) shall 

not be less than 25%.   

INDICATIVE TIMELINE 

This Document should not be deemed to be an offer to the public. Shares would be issued as above 

upon the Scheme coming into effect after requisite statutory approvals are accorded thereto. The 

Scheme requires approval of the National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (“NCLT”) and no 

exact time frame can be given when the Scheme will become effective. However, the Appointed 

Date for the Scheme is opening business hours of April 01, 2020 or such other date as may be 

approved by the Appropriate Authority.  

GENERAL RISKS 
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Investments in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not 

invest any funds unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are 

advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in relation to this 

Scheme. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the 

Scheme, including the risks involved. The Equity Shares have not been recommended or approved by 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy 

of the contents of this Information Document. Specific attention of the investors is invited to the 

section titled “Risk Factors” of this Information Document. 

PRICE INFORMATION OF LEAD MANAGER 

Not Applicable.  

PROMOTERS OF GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED 

The promoters of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited owns and controls 100% shareholding. The 

shareholding pattern of the promoters are given below:  

Sl. No. Name of Promoter No. of Shares Held Percentage of 

Shareholding 

1.  Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain 182 
25.74% 

2.  Mrs. Mridula Jain 173 
24.47% 

3.  Ms. Arushi Jain  108 
15.28% 

4.  Ms. Aditi Pasari 124 
17.54% 

5.  Ms. Anubha Gupta  120 
16.97% 

 Total  707 100% 

 

The brief profiles of the promoters of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited are as follows:  

1. Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain: Dr. C.K. Jain is a Sugar Technologist and has been awarded a 

Doctorate Degree in Chemistry. He is an industrialist of repute with more than 4 decades of 

rich business experience and has been the guiding force behind the growth of Gulshan 

Group since its inception.. Apart from business activities, Dr. Jain is an active philanthropist. 

 

2. Mrs. Mridula Jain: Mrs. Mridula Jain has been associated with Gulshan Group for the past 15 

years as the Director. She is actively involved in the management and decision making of the 

Gulshan Holdings Private Limited. She contributes to the Company from her years of 

experience with day-to-day management, strategic decision making and development 

policies for the Company. 

 

3. Ms. Arushi Jain: Ms. Arushi Jain is MS in marketing from City University of New York, USA. 

She is also a Baking Technologist from American Institute of Baking, USA. She has been 

associated with Gulshan Group since 1996 and currently involved in operations and overall 

management of the Gulshan Group. She manages business policies, strategic decisions, 

business development and day-to-day affairs of the Starch derivatives plant of Gulshan 
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Gulshan Group. She also has experience in market research and baking industry. She has 

hosted culinary series on CNBC. 

 

4. Ms. Aditi Pasari: Ms. Aditi Pasari is MBA from Cardiff University, UK. She has the experience 

of having conceived and set-up a packaging unit in Haridwar, under the umbrella of Gulshan 

Group. She has been associated with Gulshan Group since 2009 and is currently designated 

as Whole Time Director in Gulshan Group. She has supervisory responsibility for Finance and 

Human Resources functions and leads various strategic initiatives in the smooth operation of 

Gulshan Group. 

 

5. Ms. Anubha Gupta: Ms. Anubha Gupta completed her B.A. (Hons) English Literature from 

Jesus and Mary College, Delhi University in 2010, after which she went to the Courtauld 

Institute of Art, University of London to pursue her Post Graduation in History of Art. 

Currently she is heading, Artsome.co, a not-for-profit first of its kind online portal which 

attempts to fill the lack of education and exposure to art in South Asia. Along with her 

passion for Arts, contributes to the Gulshan Group with an extensive understanding of the 

contemporary business world. 

BUSINESS MODEL/ BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY 

Gulshan Holdings Private Limited having CIN: U74899UP1985PTC128005 and PAN: AAACG5688F was 

incorporated on 20th November, 1985 with Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana as a Private 

Company, Limited by Shares, and presently having its registered office at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, 

Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India. The Transferor Company No. 1 is the holding 

Company of the Transferee Company. The company is engaged in the business of acquiring, 

investing and holding shares in companies having similar objects or companies providing value 

benefit, and guaranteeing the payment of money unsecured or secured by or payable under or in 

respect of contractual obligations. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 

Sr. No. Name Designation  Experience 

1.  Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain  Non-Executive 

Director  

He is currently heading Gulshan Polyols 

Limited in the capacity of Chairman and 

Managing Director. He is an industrialist 

of repute with more than 4 decades of 

rich business experience and has been 

the guiding force behind the growth of 

Gulshan Group since its inception. He is 

also promoter of Gulshan Mercantile 

Urban Co-operative Bank Ltd (GMUCB). 

He is associated with Gulshan Holdings 

Private Limited from its incorporation 

year- 1985.  

 

Other current directorships:  
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a. Gulshan Polyols Limited 

b. Gulshan Sugar and Chemicals 

Limited 

2.  Mrs. Mridula Jain  Non-Executive 

Director 

She has been associated with Gulshan 

Group for the past 15 years as the 

Director. She is actively involved in the 

management and decision making of 

the Gulshan Holdings Private Limited. 

She contributes to the Company from 

her years of experience with day-to-day 

management, strategic decision making 

and development policies for the 

Company. 

 

Other current directorships:  

Nil 

3.  Ms. Arushi Jain  Non-Executive 

Director 

She has been associated with Gulshan 

Group since 1996 and currently 

involved in operations and overall 

management of the Gulshan Group. 

She manages business policies, 

strategic decisions, business 

development and day-to-day affairs of 

the Starch derivatives plant of Gulshan 

Group. 

 

Other current directorships:  

a. Gulshan Polyols Limited  

b. Gulshan Sugar and Chemicals 

Limited  

c. Houzilla Interiors Private Limited  

d. Gulshan Care Foundation  

 

OBJECTS OF THE PROPOSED SCHEME  

Brief objects of the proposed Scheme are as follows:  

(a) Amalgamation (merger by absorption) of Transferor Company No. 1 into and with the 

Transferee Company and consequent dissolution of the Transferor Company No. 1 without 

winding up; and  

(b) Amalgamation (merger by absorption) of Transferor Company No.  2 into and with 

Transferee Company and consequent dissolution of the Transferor Company No. 2 without 

winding up, under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act. The 

Scheme also provides for various other matters consequent and incidental thereto. 

B-111



Page 7 of 10 
 

The Scheme also provides for various other matters consequent and incidental thereto. The 

Rationale for the Scheme is set out under the heading “Details of the Scheme, Listing and 

Procedure” at page 1 of this Document. 

Details and reasons for non-deployment or delay in deployment of proceeds or changes in 

utilisation of issue proceeds of past public issues/ rights issues, if any, of Gulshan Holdings Private 

Limited in the preceding 10 years: Not Applicable. 

Name of monitoring agency, if any: Not Applicable. 

Terms of issuance of Convertible Security, if any: Not Applicable. 

Pre-Scheme Shareholding Pattern of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited 

Sr. No. Particulars Pre-Scheme Number 

of Shares 

Pre-Scheme % 

Shareholding 

1.  Promoter & Promoter Group  707 100% 

2.  Public  - - 

 Total  707 100% 

 

Note: Upon the Scheme becoming effective, Gulshan Holdings Private Limited will get dissolved.  

RESTATED AUDITED FINANCIALS 

Standalone Financials 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 

2021 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2020 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2019 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2018 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2017 

(Audited) 

Total income from 

operations (net) 226.25 458.91 360.04 410.42 365.55 

Net Profit / (Loss) before 

tax and extraordinary 

items 178.74 399.95 313.88 317.68 321.57 

Net Profit / (Loss) after 

tax and extraordinary 

items 127.73 352.62 262.02 277.67 305.66 

Equity Share Capital 7.07 7.07 7.07 7.07 7.07 

Reserves and Surplus 4,502.62 4,374.89 4,113.94 3,928.25 3,664.50 

Net worth 4,509.69 4,381.96 4,121.01 3,935.32 3,671.57 

Basic Earnings Per Share 

(Rs.)  

18,066.35 49,876.22 37,060.99 39,274.23 43,232.98 

Diluted Earnings Per 

Shares (Rs.)  

18,066.35 49,876.22 37,060.99 39,274.23 43,232.98 

Return on net worth (%)  2.83% 8.05% 6.36% 7.06% 8.32% 

Net Asset Value Per 

Equity Share (Rs.) 

6,37,863.21 6,19,796.87 5,82,887.02 5,56,622.04 
 

5,19,316.87 
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Consolidated Financials  

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 

2021 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2020 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2019 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2018 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2017 

(Audited) 

Total income from 

operations (net) 

76,672.95 62,292.49 360.04 410.42 365.55 

Net Profit / (Loss) before 

tax and extraordinary 

items 

9,370.31 2,906.33 313.87 317.68 321.57 

Net Profit / (Loss) after 

tax and extraordinary 

items 

3,515.42 1,162.82 1,121.73 2,101.88 3,096.66 

Equity Share Capital 7.07 7.07 7.07 7.07 7.07 

Reserves and Surplus 22,377.33 18,046.36 13,874.67 12,752.94 11,831.46 

Net worth 22,384.40 18,053.43 13,881.74 12,760.01 11,838.53 

Basic Earnings Per Share 

(Rs.)  

4,97,230.55 1,64,472.88 1,58,661.56 2,97,295.09 4,38,000.20 

Diluted Earnings Per 

Shares (Rs.)  

4,97,230.55 1,64,472.88 1,58,661.56 2,97,295.09 4,38,000.20 

Return on net worth (%)  15.70% 6.44% 8.08% 16.47% 26.16% 

Net Asset Value Per 

Equity Share (Rs.)  

31,66,111 25,53,527 19,63,471 18,04,810 16,73,474 

 

Notes: 

a. Gulshan Holdings Private Limited became holding company of Gulshan Polyols in February, 

2020. Prior to that, Gulshan Polyols Limited was associate company of Gulshan Holdings Private 

Limited. Thus, from FY 2016-17 to FY 2018-19, the consolidated accounts mentioned above were 

prepared on equity method as applicable for consolidation of accounts of associate company as 

per then applicable AS and beginning from FY 2019-20, the consolidated accounts are prepared 

based on IND-AS which are applicable now. For Consolidated Financials for FY 2020-21 and 

2019-20, Net Profit / (Loss) after tax and extraordinary items refers to Net profit after 

comprehensive income attributable to parents and reserves & surplus contains reserves & 

surplus which is attributable to the parents. For Consolidated Financials for from FY 2016-17 to 

FY 2018-19, Net Profit / (Loss) before tax and extraordinary items are being reported on 

standalone basis due to applicability of AS and Net Profit / (Loss) after tax and extraordinary 

items refers to Net profit after total comprehensive income. For Consolidated Financial 

Statements (particularly for FY 2016-17 to 2018 to 19), previous year figures have not been 

regrouped and rearranged to make them comparable with the current year figures as Gulshan 

Polyols Limited was associate company of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited and the figures have 

been stated as it is given in the audited balance sheet.  

b. Reserves and Surplus comprises of Other Equity. 
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c. Net worth comprises of Equity Share Capital and Reserves and Surplus. 

d. Basic and Diluted earnings per share has been calculated by applying the following formula: Net 

Profit/ (Loss) after tax and extraordinary items divided by number of shares outstanding. 

e. Return on net worth % has been calculated by applying the following formula: Net Profit/ (Loss) 

after tax and extraordinary items divided by Net worth and multiplied by 100. 

f. Net asset value per share has been calculated by adding the balance of Equity Share Capital and 

Reserves and Surplus and dividing the same by number of shares outstanding.  

RISK FACTORS FOR GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED 

• The proposed Scheme is subject to the approval of NCLT. If the proposed Scheme does not 

receive the requisite approvals, the objects and benefits mentioned in the proposed Scheme 

will not be achieved. 

• The company is primarily engaged into investing activity and the only source of income is 

dividend/interest from the entities in which it has investment. Any default on the operations 

of these investee companies shall affect the profitability/growth of the Company.  

• Pandemic like Covid-19 can adversely affect the operations and results of the company as 

investee companies will curtail dividend payments.   

• The business of the company depends heavily upon Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and loss 

of service of such KMP shall affect the performance of the company.  

• The company is presently an unlisted company and its equity shares are presently not 

available for trading on any Stock Exchanges.   

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS  

A. Total number of outstanding litigations against Gulshan Holdings Private Limited and 

amount involved: Nil. 

 

B. Brief details of top 5 material outstanding litigations against Gulshan Holdings Private 

Limited and amount involved: Nil. 

 

C. Regulatory Action, if any – disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the 

Promoters in last 5 financial years including outstanding action, if any: Nil 

 

D. Brief Details of outstanding criminal proceedings against the Promoters of Gulshan Holdings 

Private Limited: Nil.  

ANY OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION- NIL  
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DECLARATION BY GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED  

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

guidelines/regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines/issued by SEBI, 

established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may 

be, have been complied with and no statement made in this Document is contrary to the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or 

guidelines or regulations issued there under, as the case may be. We hereby certify that all the 

statements in the Document are true and correct.  

 

For and on behalf of GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED  

 

 

__________________________________________________ 

Name: Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain  

Designation: Non-Executive Director  

Date: August 05, 2021 

Place: New Delhi  

 

Chandra 
Kumar Jain

Digitally signed by 
Chandra Kumar Jain 
Date: 2021.08.05 
16:21:24 +05'30'
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DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT COMPRISING OF APPLICABLE INFORMATION IN THE FORMAT SPECIFIED 

FOR ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS 

This disclosure document (“Document”) contains applicable information pertaining to the unlisted 

company, East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited, and the proposed Scheme of 

Amalgamation amongst Gulshan Holdings Private Limited and East Delhi Importers and Exporters 

Private Limited with Gulshan Polyols Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors 

(“Scheme”). 

 

This Document has been prepared in connection with the above Scheme, pursuant to the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated 

December 22, 2020 and SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (“SEBI 

Circulars”). This Document should be read together with the Scheme. 

THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS 9 PAGES. PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE RECEIVED ALL THE PAGES 

NO EQUITY SHARES ARE PROPOSED TO BE OFFERED PURSUANT TO THIS DOCUMENT 

You may download the Scheme from the website of Gulshan Polyols Limited i.e., 

www.gulshanindia.com or the website of the stock exchanges where the equity shares of Gulshan 

Polyols Limited are listed i.e., BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

(“NSE”) (BSE and NSE together hereinafter referred to as the “Stock Exchanges”) 

(Capitalised terms not defined herein shall have their meaning ascribed to them under the Scheme) 

EAST DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Registered Office: at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India  

Telephone: +91 11 49999208, Website: Email: akg@gulshanindia.com  

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U60231UP1997PTC129363  

Contact Person: Mr. Avdhesh Garg  

 

NAME OF PROMOTER OF EAST DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain 

Mrs. Mridula Jain 

Ms. Arushi Jain 

 

DETAILS OF THE SCHEME, LISTING AND PROCEDURE 

The Scheme of Amalgamation amongst Gulshan Holdings Private Limited (“Transferor Company No. 

1” or “GHPL”) and East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private Limited (“Transferor Company No. 2” 

or “EDIEPL”) (collectively referred to as the “Transferor Companies”) with Gulshan Polyols Limited 

(“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) provides for (a) 

Amalgamation (merger by absorption) of Transferor Company No. 1 into and with the Transferee 

Company and consequent dissolution of the Transferor Company No. 1 without winding up; and (b) 

Amalgamation (merger by absorption) of Transferor Company No.  2 into and with Transferee 

Company and consequent dissolution of the Transferor Company No. 2 without winding up, under 

Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act. The Scheme also provides for various 

other matters consequent and incidental thereto.  
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Consideration under the Scheme: Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the existing equity share 

capital of the Transferee Company held by Transferor Companies shall stand cancelled and in 

consideration of the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies in the Transferee Company, the 

Transferee Company shall, without any further application, act or deed, issue and allot to the 

shareholders of the Transferor Companies,  2,99,82,536 (Two Crore Ninety Nine Lakh Eighty Two 

Thousands Five Hundred and Thirty Six) fully paid-up equity shares of the face value of INR 1/- 

(Rupee One) each, in the following manner:  

i. 39,848 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Polyols Limited for every 1 

Equity Share of Rs.1000/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Holdings Private Limited; and  

ii. 181 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up of Gulshan Polyols Limited for every 1 

Equity Share of Rs.10/- each fully paid up of East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private 

Limited. 

Rationale for the Scheme, as provided in the Scheme, is given below:  

a) Help in achieving improved operational efficiency and optimum advantages and also to 

achieve greater efficiency and synergy in operations by combining the activities of the 

Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company. Accordingly, the Scheme would 

strengthen and complement the businesses of the Companies; 

b) The amalgamated entity will benefit from optimum utilization of manpower through 

improved organizational capacity and leadership, arising from the combination of people 

from the Transferor Companies and Transferee Company which have diverse skills, talent, 

management expertise, enlarged knowledge base and vast experience to compete 

successfully in an increased competitive industry; 

c) The amalgamated entity shall reduce fixed costs by removing duplicate departments, 

operations and lower the cost of the Company relative to the same revenue stream and shall 

thus increase the profit margins; 

d) The amalgamation will offer a simplified corporate structure to the amalgamated entity;  

e) Under a liberalised, fast changing and highly competitive environment, this amalgamation 

shall strengthen the business of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company by 

pooling up the resources, business expertise, business processes and assets for common 

purpose and hence optimum utilization; 

f) The synergies that exist between the entities in terms of services and resources can be put 

to the best advantage of all stakeholders; 

g) The amalgamation will result in better economic control, increased financial strength and 

flexibility and enhance the ability of the amalgamated entity to undertake large projects, 

thereby contributing to enhancement of future business potential; 

h) Cost savings are expected to flow from more focused operational efforts, rationalisation, 

standardisation and simplification of business processes, productivity and improvements, 

improved procurement and the elimination of duplication and rationalization of 

administrative expenses; 

i) The consolidation of the companies engaged in similar & complementary line of business in 

one entity, under a single centralized system of management, will result in the management 

being able to exercise greater control over the operations of the companies and which will 

help in synchronising the operations. This will also result in the management being enabled 

to undertake any re-structuring /re-organization of the various business undertakings of the 
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companies for the purposes of achieving optimum efficiency /and or to attract investments 

in the individual business undertakings of the Companies.  

Appointed Date: Appointed Date for the Scheme means the opening business hours of 1st April, 

2020 or such other date as may be fixed or approved by the Appropriate Authority. 

* The above details of the Scheme have been suitably extracted from the Scheme.  

LISTING AND PROCEDURE 

After the Effective Date of this Scheme, the new equity shares to be issued and allotted by the 

Transferee Company in terms of the Scheme as mentioned above in Consideration shall be listed and 

shall be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges by virtue of this Scheme and in accordance with 

the provisions of SEBI Circulars. Transferee Company shall make all requisite applications and shall 

otherwise comply with the provisions of the SEBI Circulars and Applicable Laws and take all steps to 

get the new equity shares issued by it in pursuance to this Scheme listed on the Stock Exchanges. 

The new equity shares allotted by the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme shall remain 

frozen in the depositories system till listing/trading permission is given by the designated Stock 

Exchanges. 

It is pertinent to mention here that the procedure with respect to public issue/offer would not be 

applicable as these issues are only to the shareholders of the Transferor Companies, pursuant to the 

Scheme of Amalgamation without cash consideration.  

ELIGIBILITY FOR THE ISSUE 

 Whether the company is compulsorily required to allot at least 75% of the net offer to public, to 

qualified institutional buyers- NOT APPLICABLE  

 The Equity Shares sought to be listed are proposed to be allotted by the Transferee Company to 

the shareholders of the Transferor Companies pursuant to the Scheme to be sanctioned by 

National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies 

Act, 2013; and  

 The percentage of shareholding of pre-scheme public shareholders of the Transferee Company 

in the post-scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferee Company (Resulting Company) shall 

not be less than 25%.   

INDICATIVE TIMELINE 

This Document should not be deemed to be an offer to the public. Shares would be issued as above 

upon the Scheme coming into effect after requisite statutory approvals are accorded thereto. The 

Scheme requires approval of the National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (“NCLT”) and no 

exact time frame can be given when the Scheme will become effective. However, the Appointed 

Date for the Scheme is opening business hours of April 01, 2020 or such other date as may be 

approved by the Appropriate Authority.  

GENERAL RISKS 

Investments in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not 

invest any funds unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are 

advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in relation to this 

Scheme. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the 

B-121



Page 4 of 9 
 

Scheme, including the risks involved. The Equity Shares have not been recommended or approved by 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy 

of the contents of this Information Document. Specific attention of the investors is invited to the 

section titled “Risk Factors” of this Information Document. 

PRICE INFORMATION OF LEAD MANAGER 

Not Applicable.  

PROMOTERS OF EAST DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

The promoters of East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private Limited owns and controls 100% 

shareholding. The shareholding pattern of the promoters are given below:  

Sl. No. Name of Promoter No. of Shares Held Percentage of Shareholding 

1.  Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain 6,000 
60% 

2.  Mrs. Mridula Jain 2,000 
20% 

3.  Ms. Arushi Jain  2,000 
20% 

 Total  10,000 100% 

 

The brief profiles of the promoters of East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited are as 

follows:  

1. Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain: Dr. C.K. Jain is a Sugar Technologist and has been awarded a 

Doctorate Degree in Chemistry. He is an industrialist of repute with more than 4 decades of 

rich business experience and has been the guiding force behind the growth of Gulshan 

Group since its inception. Apart from business activities, Dr. Jain is an active philanthropist. 

 

2. Mrs. Mridula Jain: Mrs. Mridula Jain has been associated with Gulshan Group for the past 15 

years as the Director. She is actively involved in the management and decision making of 

Gulshan Group. She contributes to the Company from her years of experience with day-to-

day management, strategic decision making and development policies for the Company. 

 

3. Ms. Arushi Jain: Ms. Arushi Jain is MS in marketing from City University of New York, USA. 

She is also a Baking Technologist from American Institute of Baking, USA. She has been 

associated with Gulshan Group since 1996 and currently involved in operations and overall 

management of the Gulshan Group. She manages business policies, strategic decisions, 

business development and day-to-day affairs of the Starch derivatives plant of Gulshan 

Group. She also has experience in market research and baking industry. She has hosted 

culinary series on CNBC. 

BUSINESS MODEL/ BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY 

East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited having CIN: U60231UP1997PTC129363 and PAN 

AABCA3294L was incorporated on 23rd July 1997 with Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana as a 

Private Company, Limited by Shares, and presently having its registered office at 9th K.M., Jansath 

Road, Muzaffarnagar - 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India. The company is engaged in the business of 

importing, exporting, dealing and trading multi-products which includes but not limited to textile 
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products, chemicals, sugar and related products, engineering goods, molasses, grains, glassware, 

alcohol, oils, paper and related products, wood and timber etc. Further, the Company is engaged in 

the business as general carriers, transporters and freight forwarders, and exporting, importing, 

trading and dealing in the computer software, programmes, computer hardware and peripherals. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 

Sr. No. Name Designation  Experience 

1.  Ms. Aditi Pasari Non-Executive 

Director  

She has the experience of having 

conceived and set-up a packaging unit 

in Haridwar, under the umbrella of 

Gulshan Group. She has been 

associated with Gulshan Group since 

2009 and is currently designated as 

Whole Time Director in Gulshan Polyols 

Limited. She has supervisory 

responsibility for Finance and Human 

Resources functions and leads various 

strategic initiatives in the smooth 

operation of Gulshan Group. 

 

Other current directorships:  

a. Gulshan Polyols Limited  

b. Gulshan Lamee Pack Private 

Limited 

c. Reliance Expovision Private Limited  

d. PHD Chamber of Commerce and 

Industry  

e. ARP Developers Private Limited  

f. Gulshan Sugar and Chemicals 

Limited  

g. Gulshan Care Foundation 

2.  Mr. Avdhesh Kumar Garg  Non-Executive 

Director 

He manages strategic decision making, 

development plans and daily affairs of 

the company. Apart from contributing 

to the Company with his experience in 

problem solving, he leads numerous 

initiatives and programmes at the 

company and has a supervisory 

responsibility, ensuring smooth 

operation of the Company. 

 

Other current directorships:  

Nil  
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OBJECTS OF THE PROPOSED SCHEME  

Brief objects of the proposed Scheme are as follows:  

(a) Amalgamation (merger by absorption) of Transferor Company No. 1 into and with the 

Transferee Company and consequent dissolution of the Transferor Company No. 1 without 

winding up; and  

(b) Amalgamation (merger by absorption) of Transferor Company No.  2 into and with 

Transferee Company and consequent dissolution of the Transferor Company No. 2 without 

winding up, under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act. The 

Scheme also provides for various other matters consequent and incidental thereto. 

The Scheme also provides for various other matters consequent and incidental thereto. The 

Rationale for the Scheme is set out under the heading “Details of the Scheme, Listing and 

Procedure” at page 1 of this Document. 

Details and reasons for non-deployment or delay in deployment of proceeds or changes in 

utilisation of issue proceeds of past public issues/ rights issues, if any, of East Delhi Importers & 

Exporters Private Limited in the preceding 10 years: Not Applicable. 

Name of monitoring agency, if any: Not Applicable. 

Terms of issuance of Convertible Security, if any: Not Applicable. 

Pre-Scheme Shareholding Pattern of East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private Limited  

Sr. No. Particulars Pre-Scheme Number 

of Shares 

Pre-Scheme % 

Shareholding 

1.  Promoter & Promoter Group  10,000 100% 

2.  Public  - - 

 Total  10,000 100% 

 

Note: Upon the Scheme becoming effective, East Delhi Importers and Exporters Private Limited will 

get dissolved.  

RESTATED AUDITED FINANCIALS 

Standalone Financials 

(Value in Rs.) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 

2021 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2020 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2019 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

March 31, 

2018 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

March 31, 2017 

(Audited) 

Total income from 

operations (net) 

11,35,388 23,78,781 33,78,097 33,42,734 38,74,523 

Net Profit / (Loss) 

before tax and 

extraordinary items 

3,31,207 12,35,156 22,67,146 20,56,304 28,83,910 

Net Profit / (Loss) 

after tax and 

2,43,129 9,14,016 16,77,510 15,28,621 20,23,227 
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extraordinary items 

Equity Share Capital 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 

Reserves and Surplus 5,94,94,988 5,92,51,859 5,83,37,842 5,66,60,332 5,51,31,711 

Net worth 5,95,94,988 5,93,51,859 5,84,37,842 5,67,60,332 5,52,31,711 

Basic Earnings Per 

Share (Rs.)  

24.31 91.40 167.75 152.86 202.32 

Diluted Earnings Per 

Shares (Rs.)  

24.31 91.40 167.75 152.86 202.32 

Return on net worth 

(%)  

0.41%  1.54% 2.87% 2.69% 3.66% 

Net Asset Value Per 

Equity Share (Rs.) 

5,959.50 5,935.19 5,843.78 5,676.03 5,523.17 

 

Notes: 

a. East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited is not required to prepare consolidated 

financial statements.  

b. Reserves and Surplus comprises of Other Equity. 

c. Net worth comprises of Equity Share Capital and Reserves and Surplus. 

d. Basic and Diluted earnings per share has been calculated by applying the following formula: Net 

Profit/ (Loss) after tax and extraordinary items divided by number of shares outstanding. 

e. Return on net worth % has been calculated by applying the following formula: Net Profit/ (Loss) 

after tax and extraordinary items divided by Net worth and multiplied by 100. 

f. Net asset value per share has been calculated by adding the balance of Equity Share Capital and 

Reserves and Surplus and dividing the same by number of shares outstanding.  

RISK FACTORS FOR EAST DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

 The proposed Scheme is subject to the approval of NCLT. If the proposed Scheme does not 

receive the requisite approvals, the objects and benefits mentioned in the proposed Scheme 

will not be achieved. 

 Pandemic like Covid-19 can adversely affect the operations and results of the company.   

 Engaging in international business inherently involves a number of other difficulties and risks, 

including: changes in foreign currency exchange rates, changes in a specific country’s or 

region’s political or economic conditions, particularly in emerging markets, burdens of 

complying with a wide variety of foreign customs, laws and regulations, increased financial 

accounting and reporting burdens and complexities, changes in diplomatic and trade 

relationships, and difficulties in enforcing agreements and collecting receivables  

 The business of the company depends heavily upon Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and loss 

of service of such KMP shall affect the performance of the company.  

 The company is presently an unlisted company and its equity shares are presently not 

available for trading on any Stock Exchanges.   

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS  

A. Total number of outstanding litigations against East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private 

Limited and amount involved: Nil. 
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B. Brief details of top 5 material outstanding litigations against East Delhi Importers & 

Exporters Private Limited and amount involved: Nil. 

 

C. Regulatory Action, if any – disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the 

Promoters in last 5 financial years including outstanding action, if any: Nil 

 

D. Brief Details of outstanding criminal proceedings against the Promoters of East Delhi 

Importers & Exporters Private Limited: Nil.  

ANY OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION- NIL  
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DECLARATION BY EAST DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

guidelines/regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines/issued by SEBI, 

established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may 

be, have been complied with and no statement made in this Document is contrary to the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or 

guidelines or regulations issued there under, as the case may be. We hereby certify that all the 

statements in the Document are true and correct.  

 

For and on behalf of EAST DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 

Name: Aditi Pasari 

Designation: Non-Executive Director  

Date: August 05, 2021 

Place: New Delhi  

 

 

 

 

ADITI PASARI
Digitally signed by ADITI 
PASARI 
Date: 2021.08.05 15:28:38 
+05'30'
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Place: Delhi
Date: July 21, 2021
UDI N : 21 4O873OAAAAE L7 1 B7

RTONU ITED

For Rajeev Singal& Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.: 00B6SZC)

{C.A. $unil Kurnar}
Partner

Membership No.408730

t

I
:

I

I

lve have reviewed lf ?i.oTpanying statement of Unaudited Financiat Resutts ofGulshan Polyols Limited for the qualter ended June J0, 2021. This statement is theresponsibility of the company's Managernent and has been approved by the Board ofDirectors. Our responsibility is to issuda report on these financiat statements basecJ onour review.

we conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with lhe standarcl on ReviewEngagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of lnterim Financial lnformation perfornied by thelndependent Auditor of the Entity", issued by the tnsiitute oi cirrrr"r*d At;countants oflndia' This standard requires that we plan ind perform the review to obtain rroderate
asEurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material rlisstatement Areview is limited primarily to inquiries of cornpany personnel and analytical procecl,ires
applied io financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. we have notperformed an audit and accordingly, we do not expre$s an audit oprnron

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attentron that causes
us to believe that the a.ccompanying statement oiunaudited financiat results preparecl inaccordance with applicable accounting standards and other recognrzecl accourrtingpractices and policies has not disclosed the information requireci to be disclosecl in
terms of Regulaiion 3,3 of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulatrons,2015 including the manner in wtricnlt is to be drsclosed, or that it contains
any materiai nrisstatement.

,

FTNANC|AL RESULTS

ir
i
I

I

I
I

I
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GULSHAN POLYOLS LIMITED
CtN: L24231 Up2OOOpLCO3491 8

Regd. Off.: gth K.M., Jansath Road, MuzaffarNagar, U.p. _ 2SlO01
Tel, No.:01,1-49999200, Fax No.: 01149999202

Website: www.gulshanindia.com Email: cs@gulshanindia.com
statement of Un'Audited Financiar Resurts for the euarter Ended June 30, 2021

Sr.
No.

tn
(ear e!-e-(cUudsd

30.06.4921
(Unaudited)

31.03. 30 06 ,n, 31.03.2021
1 {uneuc (Aur

a. Revenue from Operations
b. Other lncome

-

Total lncnmo

23,855 51

41 .42
22,734.54

130.82
12,095.22

8.34
76,603.44

187 42
2

; 
Expenses; :

| (a) Cost c,f materials consumed

I ib) Purcl^ases of Stock-in-Trade

I 1",1 
4j..g.,. rn rnventories of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work_in_progress

(d) Employee benefits expenses
(e) Financ)e Cost
(f) Deprer:iation and amortization expenses
(a) Other Exoenses

Tof:lovnnncao 

-

23.896.93 22,865.36 1 2.1 03.56 76,790.86

11,939.46
107.89

(213.90)
821.62
81.99

756.50
6,886.77

10,339.73
(10 64)
488,41

1,206.20
171 .83
861.92

6,421.84

5,537.69
40.54

916.27
429.96
218 59
755.37

3,486.35

36,055.47
471.74
664.69

2.860.58
654.67

3,255 371

23,478.511
3

4
Profit from nrdinanr ..ti-i+ioo 20,380.33 19,479.29 11,384.78 67 ,441.03

Tax Expense:
Current Tax
Add: MAT Credit Avaitabte
Deferred Tax
Total Tax Expenses

3,516.60

931.09

(33.52)

3,386.07

771.18
451.16

9.34

7'18.78

125.59
65.1 I

9.83

9,349.83

1 ,81 3.1 7
1,285.0s

606

q

=b

897.s7 1 ,231.68 200.51 3,104.2t,rsr r rvrrr rrerr orqrnary acrrvtues aner tax trom continuing operations (3_4)

Proflt /(Loss) fro

2,619.03 2,154.39 5'18.17 6,245.55

7 ax exoensie of discontinr
B Profit/( Lossr ) from DElinfil,o.t
9 vu,wr \/vIrprsilqil)rvtr (ItuuJltg//expensgs (ngl oI lax)

Item that will not to be reclassified to profit and Loss:
(Gain)/loss of defined beneflt obligation
lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(77.07)
14.95

1i,77 07)
14.95

'10
(62.121 (62.12]r

11
2.619.03 2.216.51 518.17 6,307.67rato-up equtly snare capttal

lqgqIelq 91|lhe share (Rs.)
469.1 7 469.1 469.17 469.17

12 arning pa equity share (face value Rs. il-each; 1in mpeeg
Basic

Diluted
5.58 4.59 1.10 13.31
5.58 4.59 't.10 13.31

S.No Notes:
Th. rb*" U,
onJuly2l'2Cr2l TheseResultshavebeensubjectedtoLimitedReviewbytheStatutoryAuditorsasrequiredunderRegulation33ofthesEBl (ListingobtigationsandDisctosure
Requirementsi) Regulation,2ol5 and they have expressed an unmodified opinion on the aforesaid Results .

1

2 The above Firran
together with lhe Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other recognised accounting practices and poticies to the extent applicable.

3 I.igureSforthepreviousperiodhavebeenregrouped/rea

--
4 The Nomination, Remuneration rnd Compensat

for vesting from 1st April 2024 to 31st May 2024 at the exercise rate of Rs. 137/- per share (based on the Average Buying cost of the Company from the BSE/NSE market).

5 Results of Gulshan Polyols Limited for the above
and www.bseindia.com.

6 TheHon,bleNationalCompanyLawTribunal(NCLT),Allar'abadBenc@ers
and credilors of Gulshan Polyols Limited to be convened for the Scheme of Amalgamation executed between the Company, Guljhan Holdings private Limited (Holding company),East Delhi lmSrorters & Exporters Private Limited (Group Company) and their respective Shareholders.
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SEGMENT WSE REVENUE ANO CAPITAL EMPLOYEDiOR THE_OIJARTER EIroeo ruHe lo.zozi
(Rs_in Lakhs)

Audited Resulte
for the Year

en ded

.D

I

30.06.2021 31.03.2021 30.06.2020 31.03.2021

1

uperaung tncome)
a) Ethanol (Bio-Fuel)/Distillery
b) Mineral Processing
c) Grain Processing
d) Unallocated

4,398.96
1,860.39

17,577 .78
18.38

4,625.12
2,457.76

15,651.66

1 ,1 99.96
1,607.84

9,271.58
15.75

1 3,269.50
9,237.46

54,080.63
15.7 5rorar segtlent Revenue 23855.51 22734.54 12095.22 76603.44

2

Segment llesults (Profit from ordinary activities before tax and lnterest)
a) Ethanol (Bio-Fuel)/Distittery
b) Mrneral Processing
c) Grarn Processing
d) t.lnallocated

830.45
247.91

2467.O2
53 ?1

676.50
380.80

2459.46
41.14

21.40
35"t.05

557.23
7.70

1,579.25
1729.13
6631.03

65 09
l. oqr_-sqg!! e nt llqqq!ts 3598.s9 57.90 937.38 1 0004.50

less Finance Cost 81.99 171.83 218.59 654.67
r otar Proltt Detore Iax trom ordanary activities 3s1 6.60 3386.07 718.78 9349.83

3

Segment l\ssets
a) Ethanol (Bio-Fuel)/Distillery
b) Mineral Processing
c) Grain Processing
d) LlnallocELted

1 2938.23
61 33.54

31176.89
ao26 a,a

1 281 0.90
6553.61

28242.84
2041.24

12228.94
6679.46

26646.58
1279.29

12810.90
6553.6,1

28242.84
2041.24

Tota I 5427 5.14 49648.59 46834.26 49648.59

4
Segment Liabilities
a) Ethanol (Bio-Fuel)/Distillery
c) Mineral Processing

r) Grain Processing
l) Unallocated

1 198.58
1 I 3't.09
9040.37
3730.78

1447.27
1488.72

5214.88
4942.48

2907.43
2409.61

9635.99
833 98

1447.27
1488.72

5214.88
4,942.48

Iotal 1 5100.82 1 3093.35 '15787.02 1 3093.35

Date : July 21,2021
Place : Delhi

M
(Dr. chandra xumar.raiffi\ DEI

Chairman and Manasinq DitdcliN I 7
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AASHISH BATHLA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

242, Gajawali, Sarwat Road
Muzaffarnagar (U.p) -251001

Mobile No. 9808498g23

Independent Auditor,s Report

To,
The Members of Gulshan Holdings pvt. Ltd.
Report on the Audit of the standalJne financial statements

Opinion

we have audited the standalone financial statements of 
^c,ur1!an 

Holdings pvt Ltd. (.1hecompany"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3l,2o2l,the statement of profit andLoss' the Statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of cash Flows for the year thenended' and notes to standalone nnanciai statements, in"rraing a summary of the significantaccounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to u$,the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the companiesAct'2013 ("the Act") in the manner so requirei arra giu" a true and faiiview in conformity withthe accounting principles generally acceptld in India]of the state of affairs of the company as atMarch 31,2021, its profit, changes in equity and its .usr, flo*s for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

we conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standardson Auditing (sAs) specified under section 143(10) oitr" a.t. our responsibilities under thoseSAs are further described in the Auditor's n rporriulities for th. Arjil;i;; ffiffi;;financial statements.section 
9f o* repo{. w. g= independent of the company in accordancqwith the code of Ethics issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) togetheqwith the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financiat statementgunderthe provisions of the Act and the Rules tt.r.*J.r, and we have fulfilled;;#A;;;iresponsibilities in accordance with these requirements and code of Ethics. we believe that theaudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to p.ouia, u lasis ro, our auditopinion on the financial statements. rr--r----- 'ruv s ve

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that,,in our professronal judgment, were of most significancein our audit of the standalone financial statements of the cunent period. These matters wereaddressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and info-rming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
"We huve determined that there are no xey,l,udtt ttatirs to communicate in our ReporL,

Other [nformation

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.The other information comprises the information included in the company,s annual report, butdoes not include the standalone financial statemerypgftryquditor,s report thereon.
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oul opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we. 
do not express any form of urr**.e conclusion thereon.

In qonnection with our audit of the 
.financial statements, our responsibility is to read the otherinfqrmation and, in dging ;;;;;;tdr, *r,.tr,o ti";rd inrormationl, -L"riurry inconsistentwitln the standalone nnai"ii .tut"tn"rrt, or our knowredge obtained in the audit or otherwiseappears to be materially misstated. If, based ilfl";;;i * huu. p".rr*Li, we conclude that

ll;T;:effi f ffi ',.fTfi'lt-',if ;;ilft;;.dwearerequiredtoreportthatract.we

Management's Responsibility for the Financiar statements

The company's management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated insection 134(5) of the companies a.,,-1011 r',r* *;);rh respect to the preparation of thesestan{alone financial staternents ttrai give a true and fair view of the nrr*"iui position, financiarperfqrmance' cash flows and stateme;:*nd_il.orir, of the company in accordance withthe Indian Accounting standards ora es; pr.i.iua ,iralr section r33 of ihe Act read with the

ff#fffiJllg1},*rut,*u,}];a*a,l R i;;; 20iJ, * *.nded, and other accounting

This lesponsibility also includes maintenance- of adequate accounting records in accordance withthe provisions of the Act for safeguarding the ,rJ;;i ir,.-c"-pi"y ;;f". preventing anddetec{ing frauds and-other io"gr;;ities;-selectio, Li-"ppricalion of-appropriate accountingpolicils; making judgments ,ia .rr1.Li*-;i;'#;".Lsonuut. ana piudent; and design,impletnentation and maintenance of adequate internal financial ."rt ri-trro were operatingeffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completene;;;rh. accounting records,
Relevfint to th9 plenaration and presentation of the Ind AS standalone financial statements thatgive a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

r,-In prelaring the financial statements, management and Board of D{rectors are responsible forassessfng the companv's ability to continue; . t;id.;*.il, oiri{ffi:ilrricable, mattersrelated to going concem and using the going ,Jr.rL uuri, or accoirnting unless managementeither 
intends to liquidate tt. tomiunt or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do jo. 

vrv^*!rvuu, vr usi, u\, rsallslJ

ilH[:'irectors 
is also responsible for overseeing the company,s 

financial reporring

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

+^ ^ L.-:,^our o$iectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financialstatemdnts as a whole are free from material misstate-"ri, *t 
"flrer 

d,{re to fraud or error, and toissue ah auditor's report that includes our opinion. 6;;;iil;ffi;t"a high level of
ilyi..l but is not a s@rantee that an audit conducted i" ;;;;;.;ffit[r i, ,rrurs detecta material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemen,r .urr'*ir.-fio.rn;;J;, error and areconsiddred material.if,. individ*ly 

"t 
rr-the aggregut., ,rr"y could [easonably be expected toinnuen{e*reeconomic decisions of users taken ori}r.iuri, of th.r. filancial statements.
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As datt of an audit in accordance with s*, y: exercise proressionfit judgment and maintainprofessional skepticism throughout rrr.'*ait. we also: 
- r--'

rr v glJLr.

' Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,whether due to. fraud or error, design.and;#;;rdit plgcedures responsive to those:*t gg obtain audit evide*" trrut i, .rinoi*i-uio upprppriare to provide a basis forour opinion' The risk of not detecting a material--irria(rir.rrt r.ru'rting from fraud ishigher than for orr r.rriiing-rro* ;"r,;;;il;;.J.ffiffi1i11,rr,.r, 
forgery,intentional omissions, -i.."pr?r"ntations, or the override o[intemal control.

' obtain an understanding of intemal financial control ."t"f*t to the audit in order todesign audit procea*"it ui*. ippropriate i, th. .i;r;#,b;;: tin[} llo,on r 43(3Xi)of the Act, we are also-responsiute ror .,.pr.*i;;;ffiffi;;ffi.1fi the companyhas adequate internal financial controls *itt *r.rirr.;T,rhffi #"[lr, in place andthe operating effective.r"r, oir.'r"h controls. ^-J"-'- otarstttc

I l:l'::::-the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting estimates and rerated disclosures-made by th.;fi;#.rr.*
I conctude on the appropriateness 

-of 
managementos use or fn. going concern basis ofaccounting ana, uasld on the auait eriaerir. outuin.a, *n{trrei, ,ri"rJrr uncertaintyexists related to events or conditionr tllt,nuy *.iil*;rffi;;ff;. company,s

:gl,1y g_:"r,il"" * u goi,;;,""-. rrwe concr"aJii,ffi;:#i i,l#r,r*, exists,we are required to draw attention i, 9y auditor's report to ft" related disclosures in thestandalone financial statements or, if such disclo#;; U;;ffiffiIo modi* ouropinion' our conclusions are based on the auait euiaenc.;d*tr.d;;i" ,rr. date of our
3:1']"l. 

t report. However, future events or conditions may cpuse the company to ceaseto continue as a goingconcern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

'I]]r:Elglhe 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent theunclerlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fai. presentation.

We communicate with those charged
planned scope and timing of the audit
deficiencies in internal control that we

with governance regarding, among other matters, the
and significant audit findings, including any signidcant
identify during our audit.

Y:-:]i: !fl]d: !hos9 
charged with governance with a statement that we have complied withrelev{t,ethical.requirements regarding independence, and to communicate wit}r- them all

:l1t]li'lfsand other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

from 
t{re matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters

thatw.eFe of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements ofthe current

fT:lfl9 ]! l.1efore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's reporr

Tf.s-: lly or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare

:lrcumftances, 
we determine that amatter should not be communicated in our report because the

:1"":**:sequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benetits of such communication.
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rt on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the companies (Auditor'sReport) order, 20rlg (,,theorder,,) issued by thecentral Government in ierms oi s".tio, t+ig{ortt.'a"t, we give in .,Annexure 
A,, astatement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and + orfle 6ri'erl 

"' ^rurg'l

As required by Section 143(3)of the Act, we reportthat:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best ofour knowledge and belief were necess.ry for the pqp;;, of ouraudit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as. required by law have been kept by thecompany so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

) The Balance Sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss, the cash Flow statement andStatement of changes in Equity dealt with uv ttir [.po.t are in agreement with thebooks ofaccount.

) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the IndianAccounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, ."ud*ith companies(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the companyas on March3l,202l taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directorsis disqualified as on March 31,2021, from being 
"pp"i"t"a as a director in terms ofSection 164(2) of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company *d tlg operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B".to this report. our report.*pror., an unmodified opinion onthe adequacy-and operating effectiveness of the co-p*yr internal financial controls
over financial reporting.
With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditors' Reports in accordance withthe requirements of section 197(16) of the Act as amendedr

No Managerial Remuneration is paid during the period ended on31.03.2021

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2or4,u, *.na.a, in ouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanatio6 g'ire, tous:

i' The Company has no pending litigations that would materially affect the financial
position of the Company.

ii. The Company did not have any long
for which there were any material for

I

g)

h)

ing derivative contracts;
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iii. There were no amounts which were required toEducation and protection Fund by th, Comp*y.
transferred to the

For Aashish
Chartered
(Firm

d,4/ Aashish l

:Muzaffamagar
06-07-2021

Proprietor
(Membership
UDIN:-21 AAAACB6T04

l^
,,-)'
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AASHISH BATHLA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(a) The Company has been regular in
material statutory dues applicable

242,, Gajawali, Sarwat Road
Muzaffarnagar (U.p) -25l00l

statutory dues including other

\\, -\ 7 MobileNo.9808498823

ANNEXURT 'A'TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph I under 6Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements,section of our report to the Members of Gulshan rroraiog, e"t]ita. ,f even date)
i' (a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, includingquantitative details and situationbf nxeO urr.tr.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the period inaccordance with a regular program of verification, which, in our opinion, provides forphysical verification of all the fixed assets ,t-i.urorr"ule intervals. is explained to us,no discrepancies were noticed on such "";fi;;i;".
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by usand based on the examination of the ton .y*..?r.d, provided to us, we report that, thetitle deeds, comprising all the immovabll piop.rti.r included in rroperty, plant andEquipment are held in the name of the co*ffi* at the balance sheet date.

ii The company did not have ilvgntgv during the Period under audit, in view of whichclause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the companiJs lLditor's i;fi, d; er, 2016 are notapplicable to the Company.

iii In our opinion and as per information and explanations glven the company has not grantedany loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited riauitity proprietorships
or other parties covered in the register maintained under sectior lg9 of the Act.Therefore, the provisions of clauselliii), (iii)(a), (iiixb) *d diri;) of the said orderare not applicable to the Company.

iv' ln our opinion and.according to the information and explanations given to us, theCompany has complied with the provisions of Sections l8i and 1g6 of the Companies
Act,2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees andsecurities, as applicable.

v' The Companlr has not accepted deposits within the meaning of sectio n 73 to 76 of theAct and the companies (AcceptanSg of Dgposits) Rules, zoi+ lasmentionea; during thePeriod and does not have any unclaimed diposits as at March 3l,2o2land therefore, theprovisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to tie Company.

vi As maintenance of Cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act20i3,the requirernent to maintain
cost records is not applicable to the company.

vii According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutorydues:

authorities.
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viii.

ix.

(b)According to the records of the company and the inform,atilland explanations given tous' there were no disputed o.runJr.outstanding ,, ;t r l st March 2ozt fora period .fmore than six months from the J.i.,fr.y ili.#;;;
In our opinion and.agco_rding to the information and

;:ilffi:;5:#::ff *::;*tj*m,entor,"*i.ll"tTllli:1,,.i",,,I1J:;
The company has not raised any money by wayof initia-l public offer or further publir:
;ffi t:ilililT)i?o;'"'3ilI:a*tfi 

*1,:li'**'h;periodani;;reporrins;
To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to,us, no fraud by the company or no mateiial flurd;;;he company by its officers or.employees has been noticld * r.po.t.d during the pJtl
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, thecompany has not paid/pro#ded managerial remun.rutio, in accoidance with the
il38:'firJ"fl:H:,ffifted bv the-frovisions or,";ii;; te7 read,*iirii"r*aure v to

The company is nor.a Nidhi company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of theOrder is not applicable to the Co;p;y.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, thecompany has no transactionr *itt, its reratedparti;; ffi; the period.

During the Period' the 
^company 

has not- made any preferential allotment or privateplacement of shares o^r .rut[ 9t 
p.u.try paid convertiur.'a.u.ntures and hence reportingunder clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Co*p*y.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during thePeriod the company has noi entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors orpersons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the CompaniesAct,2013 are not applicable to the Company.

T!9 
lgmnany is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bankof India Act,1934.

xi.

xu.

xiii.

)ov.

xv.

xvi.

Place: Muzaffamagar
Daie: 06-07-2021 (Membership No. 446095)

UDIN: -2 I 446095,4,{,{,4 CB67 04

For AASHISH BATHLA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
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AASHISH BATHLA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

F-90/8 Okhla Industrial Area
Phase-l, New Delhi_110020

ph.:0il-41322972
email: ca. asoodGgrnail. com

ANNEXURE ..B'TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Refened to in paragraph2 (f) under 'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements,section of our report to the Members 

"f 
dirh* rr"iiiiTpfi. Ltd. of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial controls over Financial-Reporting under clause (i) ofSub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Comparim Ail;13 (,,the Act,,)

we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gulshan HoldingsP't' Ltd' ("the company") as of March 31,2021 in"rjilt"n with our audit of the standalonefinancial statements of the company for the period ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internar Financiar controrsThe company's management is responsible fb;;;t-rbli;iiig *a maintaining internal financialcontrols based on the internal control over finanri"r- r.prrting criteria J.iuuurrr.a by thecompany considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the GuidanceNoteon Audit of Intemal Financial controli over Financiai Reporting issued by the Institute ofchartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation andmaintenance of adequate internal financial controls that -ere operating-efiectivety for ensuringthe orderly and efficient conduct of its business, in"lrJing udlr"r"rce to company,s policies, thesafeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 6f frauas *d;;;;lh. u..*ucy andcompleteness of the accounting records, and the tirnery preparation of reliable financialinformation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
J

Auditor's Responsibility
our responsibility is to express an opinion on the intemal financial controls over financialreporting of the Company based on ort audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with theGuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standardson Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extentapplicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Noterequire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtainreasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

3:jj:llj}:,*.:^T:l?Ailg lroceoures 
to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of thervgu4uJ ur tllg

11l,tT:l,1iT:ll.*tt9tt system over financialreporting *a tr,"i, operating effectiveness. our
:|*i:::1,:,T3j:ry::l::11:1'-"'.r nnanciar r;fi-i-,,"s, i,.il;ffiffiffig * understanding
of internal financial controls over financiar reportin;, ur;.;;i;;;hilffi;;;";ffiffiffi;:
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and-operating effectiveness of internal control

*l:,1, :: jl: :::^.:::1 j, * rhe 
.pro 

ce*G.'.r."[J a"pI";J ;;,h. ilt,#ffi;r#;;
including the assessment of the risks of material mi
whether due to fraud or error.

the financial statements,
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we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a,lili.ft:- audit opinion o'ii" company's int.rnut-nnanciar controls ,y.iem over financiar

Meaning of Internar Financial controls over Financiar ReportingA company's internal nnuntia.oniiot ore.finaiil;;p"rtirg i. upr'oress designed to providereasonable assurance regarding ttre retiaiii^r, iil#:ial reporting *o ,rr" preparation ofstandalone financial statimenti for external irrp.;;, ir.aclordangq with generally acceptedaccounting principles' A company 
' 

intr.nul nrun.iut ront or over financiar-reporting incrudesthose policies and pY*I.r trrui (rjp.rtain to trr. .uiri.nance of records that, in reasonabredetail' accurately 
.and fairly ,"n"fi'tt 

" t urr.u"iio;.u,,d dispositions of the assets of t'ecompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactior* ur" recorded as necessary to permitpreparation of standalone financial statements in accordance *iih 
-;;;"ra,y 

acceptedaccounting principles,-and that....ipi, and expendtt**;f ;;:".d; #it.,ru made onlym accordance with authorizations ofmanagement and directors of the company; and (3) providereasonable assurance regarding pr.u.rtiorio;irrliy a.r*iion of unauth#r.i u.qui.ition, use,
i:#::::ion 

of the compariv"t ut.Lo that couid r,uu. u materiar effect on the financial

Limitations of rnternal Financiar contrors over trinanciar Reporting
*:,mtJi:iffi:;'"IT;i?l'.",:;ii*:t 

'n"#iii 
contiors ov:er nnanciar reporting,

misstateireni,'a*'toe.'ororr.*d,,;]TJ#Tftrlt:i'##$;i::il:?,t*f*i
evaluation of the internal financial controls our, fin*.iur ,"porting to future periods are subjectto the risk that the intemal financial controt over financiai..eporting may bicome inadequate

*;:m:liflt#.,'*uconditions, 
oi tt u, trre aegree or ,ompri;.;-;i,i- the poricies or

Opinion
In our opinion' to the best of our information and according to_ the explanations given to us, thecompany has, in all material respects, an adequate inteiral nnancial ;;il"i, system overfinancial reporting and such internal financial controls ou., firr*.ial reporting were operatingeffectively as at March 37,2o2l,based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteriaestablished by the co-^rT.I considering the essentiJ"o-por".rts of intemal control stated inthe Guidance Note on Audii of Internallinancial c""tr"irbver Financial Reporting issuedbythe Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place: Mrnaffamagw
Date: 06-07-2021

For AASHISH BATHLA & CO.

(Firm .Registration

UDIN: -2 1 4460954,4,A. ACB6T 04
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GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
G.81 preet Vihar, Vikash Marg , Delhl_ ilOOg2BALAilcE SHEET As AT 31st March, 2027

3

4

5

6

7

8

I

(1)

(a)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(c)

(d)

(2t

(a)

(i)

(ii)
(iii)

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Flant and Equipment
Financial Assets

lnvestmenls

Other Financial Assets
Defened Tax Assets
Other Non.Current Assets
Total Non€urrent Assots
Current Assets
Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Bank Balances
Loans & Advances

Total Currsnt Assets

Total Assets

EQUITYAND LIABIL!T!ES
EQUITY

Equity Share Capital
Other Equity

Total Equity

LIABILITIES

(1) Non-Current Ltabilities
(a) FinanciatLiabilities
(i) Borrowings

(b) Delbned tax Liabitities

Total Non-Current Liabilities
(2) CurrentLtabitities
(a) FinanciatLiabitities

(b) Other Current Liabilities
(c) Current Tax Liabitities

Total Current Llabllities

Total Equlty and Llabfltties

Signilicant accounting policies
Notes lo the financial statements
The accompanying notes 1 to 21

12

13

14

15

1

2_24

are an integral part of the financial statements

138.80

3,673.56

604.48

43.95

27.99

4,488.75

6.56

53.36
11.94

4,560.62

7.07
4,502.62

4,s09.69

4.560.62

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

139.52

3,011 .09

95.32

44.49

7.80

3,298.22

75.32

1,004.28

4.14

1,093.74

4,381.96

7.07
4,374.89

4,381.96

4.38.t.96

(a)

(b) 10

11

0.00

0.47
50.46

As per our report of even date attached

Place : Muzaffarnagar
Dale :06-07-2021
UDIN :-21 446095AAAACB6704

U*-^J-.
CHANDM KUMAR JAIN

(DIRECTOR)

{\,(,
L o*rr* JA,N I

(D|RECTOR) v

For /\ashish Bathla &
Chartered

71.87

50.93
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GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
G-8l preet Vihar, Vikash Marg , Delhi- f f OOSZ_STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS iOHiiJ;'PCRIOD ENDED 31St MArCh,2021

Note Amount in lakhsPeriod enAeO

I Revenue from Operations

Total lncome (l+ll)

III EXPENISES

Employee Benefits Expense
Financer Costs

Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Other E.xpenses

Total Expenses (lll)

lV Profit before tax (t + 11 _ 111;

Tax Exprense:

(1) Current Tax
(2) MAT credit utilized
(3) Deferred Tax

(4) Tax Adjustment of earlier years
Profit for the year

Place : Muzaffarnagar
Date : 06-07-2021
UDIN:-21 446095MAAC86704

17

18

19

20

29.83

20.63

226,25

226.25

5.60

24.39

0.73

16.8't

47.52

178.74

31st

458.91

458.91

43.20

8.65

0.39

6.72

58.96

399.95

50.46

0.54

5'r.0'l

47.27

0.06

47.33VI

Other Comprehensive lncome
Items that will be reclassified to profit or Loss:
Effective portion of gain(loss) on hedglng
instruments in cash flow hedge
lncome tax relating to items that will be
reclassified to profit or Loss
Other Co,mprehensive lncome for the
year (Vll - Vl[)
Total Cornprehensive lncome for the
year (Vl.+ lX)

Earning per Equity Share in of Face 21
Value of Rs. 1000/- each
(i) Basic

(ii)Diluteol

Slgnificant accounting policies j
Notes to the financial statements 2_24
The accompranying notes 1 to 23 are an integrar part of the financiar statements

As per our report of even date attached

127.73

18,066.35

18,066.35

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

127.73

vilt

tx

352.62

352.62

49,876.22

49,876.22

xt

C,"*J*.
CHANDM KUMAR JAIN

(DtRECTOR)

A,\-
I o*usr'ro,f,\ (DtREcroRl

Chartered
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particulars (Rs.in Lakhs) (Rs.in Lakhs)yearended yearended

A. Cash Ftow from operating Activities 
31103/2021 3t/03/2020

Profit before Tax
Adjustment for: 178.74 399.96
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Dividend income 0.73 0.39
(Gain) / Loss on disposal of Booking 059.23) e36.32)
(Gain)/Lossondisposalofshares - 0.00 (6.50)
Interest income 2.49 0.00
Interest expenses (69.51) erc.1g)
cqsh ca---^e^; r--- 24.39 e (<

ffLfiHiil:d 
rrom operations berore working capitar change --ffi -_ffi

B.

Decrease(Increase) in Non & Other curent assets
(Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilite s 413.77 1,806.46
(Decrease)/Increase in Defered rax & MAT 0.47 62.25)
Cash generated from operating activities 0.00 

- 

31.23
Direct taxes paid for the year 391.84 ---lJ35jt
Cash flows before exceptional items 0'00 @7.27\
Exceptional items 391.84 

- 
t^6gffi

Net Cash flow generated from operating acrivities (A) 
--_-# 

0.00

1.688-25
tl-ach I'ln'- f-^- r--.^^.:tCash Flow from Investing Activities (A)
lPurchase of proceeds of from purchase/maturity of non-current
investments

Interest income 66496) Q'2g5'g2)

Gain / (Loss) on disposal of Booking 69.51 2rc.0g
Dividend income * 0.00 6.50
Net Cash Flow Generated from investing activities (B) 159'2* 

-- .rWu36.2t) (1,837JD

Cash Flow from Financing Activites
Interest expenses

R'epayment of shorrterm borrowings Q4'39) (8.65)

rlividend Paid " 0.00 $.42)
NetCashflowGeneratedfromIinancingactivities(C)-##
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
crash and cash equivarents at the beginning of the year 

(68Jo 

-Jrr.8ri
cash and cash equivalents at year end 

ear ?$2 

-05J4 

-

Note: 
I 4r JEar cnu 656 

- 

?5J,

;rq*:- 
statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indina Accour,,nrffirno or;*'"?

As per our report of even date

For Aashish Bathla & Co.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered

Rergistration

C.

W (.J-JI.A$,
GHANDRA KUrr,tAR JArrf L e*usr,rl[*

Membership No.:

Date :06-07-2021

Place : Muzaffarnagar

UDIN :-2 1445095AAMCBG7O4

(DtRECTOR) (DTRECTOR)
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Notes to the standatone Financial statements for the year ended 31sr March ,2021
NOTE : 1

CORPORATE INFORMATION :
The compaf Y .ryas incorporated on 20.1 1.1g8s under the name Gulshan MarketingPrivate Limited in which it cairied * 1',q*"ii-ri activities. out of its accumutatedearnings it had acquired securities or lir-giJrp c_ompanies. subiequenry the::f;ffi :3f; "",XXlfH3:i,f #51;''ffi 

;L' Private i- it"o rnr ;;ilp;;;

SIGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i' Accounting Policies not specificalty referred to othenrise, are in consonancewith generally accepted accountind principfes.

ii. Expenses considered payabre are accounted for on accruar basis.

iii' The depreciation is provided on written down value method based on theusefur rives as prescribed under schedule rt of tn" n.t.
iv. The financial statements 

_!ave !"e1. prepl.ed in accordance with thegenera[y accepted accounting principrJs.-' R"r"nr";-;;J;;penses areaccounted on accrual basis with n"."r.rry provisions tor riitno*n liabilitiesand rosses except certain items as p",. noi6r'.rsewhere.

v' All income and expenditure items having a material bearing on financialstatements are recognised on accrual br;E. 
-

vi' ln the opinion of the Board .of directors, the current assets, toans andadvances have a value of realisation in tnL ordinary course of business atleast equal to the amount at which tney-'nave been stated in the BalanceSheet.

vii' There are no dues over thirty days outstanding towards any small or micro
unit as per MSME Act.

Previous year figures have been regrouped whenever considered necessaryto make the current year presentatio-n comparabre with current year figures.

INVENTORIES

The Company did not have inventory during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS :

No provisio-n-for gratuity or other retirement benefits has been made sincePayment of Gratuity Aci, Emproyees' provident FunJ A"i erproyees, statelnsurance Act etc. are not applicible to the .orprny.- 
- '--'

REVENUE REGOGNITION :

viii.

ix.

All Revenues are accounted for on
AS issued by the lnstitute of
wherever there are uncertainties in
the same is not accounted for.

in accordance with the IND
of lndia. Accordingly,

xt.

of income,
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xiv.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS:
The Company does not have any intangibte assets.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS :
Property, prant and 

.Eq.uipments ale stated at cost, ress accumurated,1Tiff:T'i:#."",::S*ii;i,r'J,d,.no'inlro"li"ffi n,"sattributabreto

BORROWNG COST:

rnterest and other costs are charged to the statement of profit & Loss.
INVESTMENTS:

Long term investments. are canied at cost. No provision for diminution in,f 'tr.:riLTfl J:j[H'tff :';il 
j''l'loini."d,.l-,i"iiiii'rtionisconsidered

xv.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPTTAL
Note No.- 11

at the

Particulars

Amount in'
lunanges in Equity Share Capitalduring the year

la*n". in Equity Share Capitatduring the year

B. OTHER Frrnrrv

7.07

7.07

7.07

7.O7

Particulars lncome
General
Reserve

Retained

-

E?rective portion of TotalEarnings gain/(loss) in cashgalanc@
I ransfer to/from General Reserve

278.36
35.26

3,935.59
Profit for the year 4,113.94(35.26)

352.62

76.33
168.

352.62

76.33
168.

as
as at 1st

Transfer to/from General Reserve
Profit for the year
Adjustment of MAT of earlier year,s
Dividend on Equitv Sh#ringtheYear

127.73

31st March

As per our report of even date attached

For Aashish Bathla & Co.
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

CHANDRA KUMAR JAIN
Director

r\;1,
L ARUSHILAN

Directbr

Place
Date

: Muzaffarnagar
:06-07-2021

Adjustment of MAT of earlier year,s

flow

127.73
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3,ST IiiA RCH,2O21

Period ended 31et March, 2021
3 NON-CURRENTINVESTMENTS

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
tn Subsidiary (at cost untess staieo-oirrfn i""r26315047 equity shares r

in cursian pi,,'oo'urss 
of Rs' 1/- each fully paidlup

31st irlarch, 2020

ln OtherE

Quoted (at cost untoss stated othor.wlse)

Sffi fi fi ilJ:tlln"'J:" "i" Management

of Re. 1/- each lnus power lnfrastructures Ltd.

50000 Equity Shares in Genus paper & Boards Ltd.ofRe.1/-each

l?FJ:1i:J:fli0000 
equity shares in Genus power lnfrastrucrures Lrd.

1 500 eguity shares of Rs 2^ each fuily paid_up in J.p. Associates Ltd.lif^:* year.1S00 equity shares)
zcuuu equity shares of Rs 

1?: *il in Rashtriya Chemicats & Fertitizers Ltd.(Previous year 25000 equity shares)
25000 eguity strares of Rsj
(previous year 25000 *rd'#r::;" 

suzton Enersy Ltd.

Un-Quoted (at cost unless stated otherwlse)

ll"JJ,:t'fiH,;:JitYoshares or ns' roor- ea*i
(Previous year S0OOO prefel
rn co,p,ni.s nliffi}'il',"lffiilj,i?#:T "r 

Rs. 100 each)

249300 equity shares in Dhautana Srg"i tnd;iri".Ltd. of Rs. 10/- each
Paid up Re. 1/- per share)
(Previous year 24}ZOO eiuity Shares of Re. 10/_ eachpaid up Re. 1/- per share)

3,630.65

0.25

0.25

2.06

20.69

19.65

2,965.70

0.25

0.25

2.06

20.69

19.65

2.49

0.00
0.00

0.00

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Non-Current
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity

DEFFERRED TAX ASSETS
MAT Credit Receivable
Add Transfer frrom Deffered Tax Asset (Liability)

OTHER NON.CURRENT ASSETS

Advance lncome{ax and tax deducted at source

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks
Bank Accounts
Cash on hand
Fixed Deposits with GMUC Bank.

*Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at bank.

OTHER BANK BALANCE

Term Deposits (maturity of more than
three months but less than twelve months)

Term deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

604.48
95.32

_ 604.48

27.99

27.99

44.49
(0.54)

45.09
(0.60)

5.87

:.un

44.49

7.80

-

7.80

69.74

:u'

75.32
TOTAL

than 12 months from the Balance Sheet aIiE

't,004.28

_ 6.56
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10

LOANS & ADVANCES

Other loans and advan@s**
"Other Advances with statutory authorities

EQUIW SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Equity Share Capltal :

d:"ia:l:'* ;iffi 31ft ln:":Ti_s 1 000 each

lssuetl, Sub-cribed 8nd pald up:

^r/ 
Equity Shares of Rs. 1000i- each

(rrevrous yeat 702 shares of Rs. 1 000/_ each

TOTAL

TOTAL

11.94
__-
_ 11.94

:________!55.00

7.07

4.11

-- 4.14

_ 
r 

555.00

7.07

tn

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS rON rrrr VEM EN,,,,,", ,O*']IT*

Name of
Aa on

Number of As on
Number of

182
173
124
108
120

2.
3.

4.

5.

Kumar
Mrs. Mridula Jain
Mrs. Aditi pasari
Mrs. Arushi Jain
Mrs. Anubha Gupta

%age of Holding

'4

Toage of Holding

24.47
17.54
15.28
16.97

173
124
108
120

24.47
17.54
15.28
16.97

Equity Shares outstaniiiG at tne
of the year
Add : Equity Shares issued during the year

11 OTHER EQUITY

7.07

7.O7

Particulars
General ReGerv6-

eatance as ifiEa-iiiil6i5
Transfer to/from General Reserye
Profit for the year
Adjustment of MAT of earlier year,s

9!y!e4 on Equily Shares durino rr

Batance as atlEt nIiiIZdId
Transfer to/from General Reserve
Profit for the year
Adjustment of MAT of earlier yeafs
Dividend on Equity Shares during the year

35.26

Retained

(35.26)

3s2.62
76.33

(168.

tzt.ts
0.00

0.00

4,113.94
0.00

352.62

76.33

4,374_

127.73

0.00
0.00

12 NON.CURRENTBORROWNGS
Secured:
Loan from Bank
Overdraft Account

13 DEFERRED TAX LlABlLlTtEs (NET)

At the beginning of the year
Charge / Credit to Statement of profit and Loss

Deferred Tax on account of MAT Credit
Add Transfer to Deffered Tax Assets
At the end of the year

0.00
_ 0.54

0.54

_ (0.54)

_ 0.00

0.54
0,0,6

:u'

Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the

(0.60)

0.00
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H:I''-t-t 
srArEMENrs FoR rHE 

'EAR 
ENDED 3rsr MAR.H,2021

A in lakhsPeriod ended 31st March, 202i T
31st March, 2020

Trade payable

Sundry Creditors

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Expenses payable

TOTAL

TOTAL

0.00

0.47

-__--- 0.47

0.00

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

j1.t9r9st on deposits and others
utvldend lncome

,t:1,:" Transfer of Booking
Loss on write off of Shares

69.51
't59.23

0.00

2't6.09
236.32

18

19

20

6.50*ProfitduringtheyearrealisedontranSfer/cancellingbooking:?Ift".,-,,.;#,heyearagains,"*#
preceeding years.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries & Wages

5.60
43.20

--
43.2!

FTNANCE COSTS TOTAL

lnterest & Charges on Bank borrowing for working capital

TOTAL
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

oTHER EXPENSES TOTAL

Establishment Expenses

Office & General Exo
Legal and professional Charges
Auditors Remuneration*

ffiry@Iq
21 EARNTNGS PER SHARE (EPS)

i) Net profit after tax asper statement of profit ancr Lossattriburabte to Equity Sharehotders fC.. irlrlir)
ii) Number of equity shares used as denominator for carcurating Eps
iii) Number of Dituted Equity Share

iv) Basic Earning per share (Amount in Rs.)

v) Diluted Earning per share (Amount in Rs.)

vi) Face value per equity share (Amount in Rs.)

_ 5.60

24.39
8.65

8.65

0.39

6.73

6.72

0.30

352.62

707.00

707.00

49,876.22

49,876.22

1,000

0.39

5.47
10.93

- 

24.39

0.73

0.73

16.82

0.42

127.73

707.00

707.00

18,066.35

18,066.35

1,000

0.13
6.29
0.30

Fq..
{i il
*\

14
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22.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAXATION :

ln compliance with IND AS-12 on "Accounting for Taxes on lncome" Deferred Tax Liability for

the current year of Rs. 54424.65 /- has been provided asat 31st March 2021 and the same

has been charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss of the Company. This pertains to the

timing differenie in Depreciation on Assets as per books of accounts. The Deferred Tax

t-iabiiity has been calcuiated by applying tax rate that have been enacted and applicable as

on the Balance Sheet date. trlo OefbrreO tax liability/asset has been created for the Long

Term capital Loss or any liability in respect of difference considered to be of permanent

nature and not adjustable in futuie. The credit for MAT available for future set off has been

added to the Defeired Tax Assets. Thus the total MAT credit available for future set off of Rs.

23.g6 lakhs net of the Deferred Tax liability on account of Timing Difference of Depreciation

of Rs. 0.54 lakhs has been shown as Deferred Tax Liability as on 31 .03.2021. The impact of

MAT for earlier years has been taken into account during the year through Retained

earnings.

There are no separate reportable segments as per lndian Accounting Standard (lnd AS) 108.

Disclosures of Related Party transactions as per lnd AS -24

(a) Name of related party and nature of related party relationship where control exist:

i. Holding ComPanY: NIL

ii. Subsidiary Company : Gulshan Polyols Ltd.

(b) Name of related party and nature of related party relationship other than those

referred to in (a) above in transaction with the Company:

23.

24.

(i)
(ii)

Joint Venture etc. :

Key Management Personnel:

(iii) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel: Mrs. Mridula Jain
Mrs. Aditi Pasari
Mrs. Anubha GuPta

NIL
Dr. C. K. Jain, Director
Mrs. Arushi Jain, Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As per our report of even date attached
For Aashish Bathla & Co.

Date:- 06-07-2021
Place :- Muzaffarnagar
UDIN :-2 1 446095AAAACB6704

Q-LJ*,0..-..
CHANDRA KUMAR JAIN

(DTRECTOR)

Chartered

A,\,,/ nnusnr;nlN\ lornecron;v
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-...-..--{A,SHISH BATHLA & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

2 42,G ajaw ali, Sarwat Road
Muzaffarnagar (U.P)-251 001

Mobile: 980849EE23
emai.I. : aastristrbatla0 gmai1. com

Independent Auditor's Report

To,

The Members of Gulshan Holdings Pvt Ltd.
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated FinancialStatements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Gulshan Holdings hrt Ltd. ('the
Parent'), and its subsidiary, (the Parent and its subsidiary together referred to as "the Group")
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 3lst, 2021, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flows Statement for the year
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us,
and based on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements
of subsidiary refened to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in
the marurer so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under sectionl33 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ('IndAS'), and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31st,2021, and
their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated
changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on thatdate.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described ia the Auditor's Responsibility for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the
Other Matters section below, is suffrcient and appropriate to provide as basis for our audit
opinion on theconsolidated financialstatements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated of the cunent period. These
matters were addressed in the context of financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion a separate opinion on these
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matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
Valuation and verification of Investments-
We have focused on the valuation and
verification of the investrnents in Shares
becausetheserepresentaprincipalelementon
the net assets in the FinancialStatements.
Refer Note 5 to the Financial Statement

We obtained independent conlirmation of the

number of shares held and net asset value per
share for each of the underlying investments
as at the year end date. We verified the
valuation of these investments as per the
accounting records and accounting standards.
We have also obtained the most recent set of
audited financial statements for each
underlying investrnents.
We have verified all the necessary documents
and are satisfied with the same.
We have accepted the Audit Report of the
subsidiary by their Auditors and have not
verified the contents therein and accepted the
same.

In view of the report on Holding company
and also by the Auditors of the subsidiary
further, no impact of COVID-l9 pandemic is
required to be made in the financial
statements.

Information Other than the financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Report on Corporate Govemance, Shareholder
information and Report of the Board of Directors & Management Discussion and Analysis, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiary, audited by
the other auditors, to the extent it relate so these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the
work of the other auditors and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appeaxs to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to
the subsidiary, is traced from their financial statements audited by the other auditors

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating efl'ectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation ofthe consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, asafbresaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and
using the going concem basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate
or cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible
fbr overseeing the financial reporting process ofthe Group.

The Company's management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation ofthese
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Iinancial position,
financial performance, cash flows and Stat€ment of changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the lndian Accounting Standards (IndAS) prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and

other accounting principles generally accepted inlndia.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and

are considered material if, individually or in the ag$egate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or eror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

our opinion. The risk of not detecting a resulting from fraud is

lve collusion, forgery,higher than for one resulting from enor,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and to provide a basis for
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. Obtain an understanding of intemal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Undersectionl43 (3 Xi)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent
has adequate intemal financial conhols with reference to financial statement in place and
the operating effectiveness of suchcontrols.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by themanagement.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group,s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifr our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date ofour
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a goingconcem.

. Evaluate the overall presentatiorl structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fairpresentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entitiesorbusinessactivitieswithintheGrouptoexpressanopinionontheconsolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements ofsuch entities or business activities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our auditopinion.

Materiality is the magrritude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope ofour audit work andin

evaluating the results ofour work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect ofany identified misstatements

in the consolidated financialstatements.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, tle
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any signifrcant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit ofthe consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our

auditoi's report unless law or regulation precludes public about the matter or when,

in extremely are circumstances; we determine that a be communicated in our

report because the adverse consequences of doi

outweigh the public interest benefits of such

be expected to

B-192



Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary whose financial statements
reflecttotalassetsofRs.49,648.59 lakhsasat3lst Marc[202l,totalrevenuesftom
operations ofRs.76,603.44 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs.l7g7.g9 lakhsfor the year ended on that date, and considered the same as it is in the consolidated
financial statements. Another auditor whose report has been fumisheJ to * 

-uy 
tt.

Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, inlo 
-zu 

a" it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of subsidiary, and our report
in terms ofsubsection (3) ofSectionl43 ofthe Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary is based solely on the reports ofthe otherauditor

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is.not modified in respect or*," 

"uo"i -"tt"o Jti ...]".t to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other audito.. '

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I' As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
the repods of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiary
referred to in the other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicablethat:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our tnowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept sJ far as it appears
from our examination ofthose books, retum and the reports of the otherauditors'

c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and Loss
including other comprehensive Income, the consolidated statement of changes in
Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and dealt with by this Report arein
agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated fi nancialstatements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with thelndian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 oftheAct.

e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors oftle Parent as
on March 31,2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the parent and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company incorporated in Indi4 none
of the directors of the Group companies, is disqualified as on March 31,2021, from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) oftheAct.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting
ofthe Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer toour sepamte
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c)

h)

Report in "Annexure A" which is based on the auditors' reports of the Parent,
subsidiary company. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of intemal financial conhols over financial reporting of
the Group.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of sectionl9T(16)of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to best ofour information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions ofsection 197 ofthe Act.

With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
Rulel lof the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014,as amended in our opinion
and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group, in accordance with the
generally accepted accounting practice - also refer Notes 1.16 to the
consolidated financialstatements.

The Group, did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the investor Education and Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary
company.

i)

iD

iiD

Place : Muzaffamagar
Dated : 06-07-2021
UDIN:- 2144609SAIAI{ACC9911

Proprietor
(Membership No. 446095)

For AASHISH BATHLA & Co.
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AASHISH BATHLA & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS @l

242,,Gtiaw ali, Sarwat Road
Muzaffarnagar (U.P)-25100 1

Mobile: 9808498823
email : aashishbatlao gmail, . com

ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report to the Members of Gulshan Holdings Pvt. Ltd. of
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub- section 3 of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act,2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of
and for the year ended 3lst March, 2021, we have audited the intemal financial controls over
financial reporting of Gulshan Holding Prt Ltd (hereinafter referred to as'lhe Parent") and its
subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, as on thatdate.

Management's Responsibility for Internal f inancial Controls

The respective Boards of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary company which are companies

incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
conhols based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance

Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence

to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and

the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies

Act,2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the intemal financial controls over financial

reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in
India" based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on

Audit of Internal Financial Conhols Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed

under Section 143(10) of the Companies Acl, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
intemal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was established and

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all materialrespects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

intemal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an

understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a

material weakness exists, and testing and and operating effectiveness of
intemal control based on the assessed risk. The depend on the auditor's

judgment, including the assessment of the

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

of the financial
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors of the subsidiary company, which is company incorporated in India, in terms of
their reports referred to in the other Matters paragraph below, is iuffrcient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the intemal financial controls system over financial
reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

- 
reporting ana *,"

preparation of consolidated financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that
(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions ofthe assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to pemit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition ofthe company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluationoftheintemalfinancialcontrolsoverfinancialreportingtofutureperiodsaresubject to the
risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures maydeteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the other auditors refened to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, the Parent, its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, have,in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31't March, 2021, based on the criteria for intemal financial control over financial reporting
established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issuedby
the Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia.
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Other Matters

our aforesaid report under Section 
-143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operatingeffectiveness of rhe intemal financial .";#;i; ;;";;;riiir.pon,n, insofar as it relatesto subsidiary companv, which.is ""-p;t i;";,".."i"i ,n'r"ai", is based solely on thecorresponding reports of the audito., oi su"t 

"o.fi*finl"ffiut"o tt 
"r.in.

Our opinion is not modified in respect ofthe above matters

For AASHISH BATHLA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No.
Place : Muzaffamagar
Dated,:06-07-2021
U DIN:-21446095AAAACC9911

ffT8
AASHISH

(Membership No . 446095)
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GULSHAN HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3IST UARGH, 2O2I

lionilnentls""r
(a) Property, ptant and EquiDmenr
(b) Cap al work-in-prooress
{c) lntangible Assets
(d) FinanciatAssets

(i) tnvestments
(ia) Loans

(iai) Other Financiat Assets
(e) Deferred Tax Assets

2
3
4

5
6
7
I
I

24,2n.68
303.1.1

8.81

E4.85
50€.03
78/3.7A

lao or

fr,118.32
321.56

11.88

87.35
.t59.66
.178.01

20.7A
15€.15eurrlnr Aaaala

(a) lnventodes
(b) Financiat Ass€te

(i) TEde Receivabtes
(ii) Caeh and Cash equivalenb

(lii) Oher Financiat Ass€tBH
10

11

12

14

9,045.07

9,838.15
1,791.41

120.31
5.6{X_S5

8,650.06

8,236.90
317.83

1,077.69
3.425.18

ffi*
(a) Equiv Shal! C.pitat
(b) O$er Equity
,Utrlbsbir! to ornoll ot lht Dalrllt
Wlltr"olos]lElqlq

15
16

7.07
2,377.33

7 _O7

18.0,16 36---------13il.d
_ 11,021.4

18,053.43
15,863.45

Non-Cu.rent Llabili ea
(a) Financiat Liabitities

(i) Bonorings
(ii) Other Financiat Liabilities

(b) Deferred Tax Liabitities (Net)

17
18
19

1,053.00
133.48

1,1131.96

2,108.94
41.01

cun nt Lhbflld..
(a) Financial Liautithg

(i) Sorodng!
(i0 Trade payabhs

- Outalanding duea of mlro, gmall and medium ontsap.ise3
. Oubbnding dues ot d€ditorB oths lhan above

(iii) Otler Fina.dat Liautaties
(b) Olher CurBnl tiabitilies
(c) Provi8ioog
(d Llabilitieg fO. curenl Tax (Net)

20
21

23

231.74
5,399.04

1,707.55
512.20

1.474 57

5,960.93

229.60
2,858.10
2,854.57

420.o2
180.56

nwu I w,r rerx..tr nr.egrat pan orlna llnancEt
at tsmonts

Slgnlfl cart accountlng pollclg!
Note! to the fnrnclrl statemont!
Ths accompanytng noto! I to 4t !.s .n lntrgr.l prrt of tha tinrnctat
ltatement!

t lembership no: ,146095

Dat€:06-07-202,1
Place : lluzlffamagar

Foa and oo t€hatfofthe Boad o, Dlrecto6

1

2-34

S D/-
CHANDM KU AR JAII'I

(DtRECTOR)

sD l-
ARUSHI JAIN

(DtRECTOR)

-(,$l

UDIN :-2l,i46095AAAACC99t I

Ag per our aeport ofoven
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GULSHAN HOLDTNG PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT oF pRoFrr ANo Loss FoR THE YEAR ENoeo irir rtrhncn,

in Inventolies of Frnished goods, Work ln progress and Stock in Trade
) Benefits Expenses

27
28

30

36,055.47
471.74

664.69
2,866.18

679.05
3,256.09

that will not to be roctassified to profit and Loss:

Profit afler Cohprehonstvo lncolno .ttdbutabto to :

3,i180.50
2,7U.U

3,515.12

1,172.57
1,@2.61

1,162.A2

per equity sharo of faco valu€ of Rs. 1 each Basic and diluted (in Rs.)

Signif icant accounUng policio3
Note! to the financial rtatgmonb
Ths accompanying notss I to4i al6 an lntrgralpart ol the financial
9tat6menb

As psr our report of even
For Aashish Bathla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(RegiBtration

Membership no: 446095

Date: 05{7.2021
Placo : iiluzaframagar
UDIN :.2 1,146095AAMCC991,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sDl-
CHANDRA XUMAR JAIN

(DTRECTOR)

SDI-
ARUSHI JAIN

(orREcToR)

ranlcuErs ------_'"-'_' 

-
Revenue from Operattons
Other lncome

Note ttol-

26

ror ure yeaiEiiEt--
3tst tt/tarch,2O21

For the yCaieni6i-
31Bt March, 2O2O

76,672.95
145 qr 62.292.49

1r).1 7n

(848.3s)
2,211.63
1,143.4A
3.102.3s

17 477 dO

35,496.96
704.73

!9E!(ttt)0-l- 6?,
Ilax Expense

Cungnt Tax Expense
Add: Mat Cred ( Utitis€d)
Defened Tax Exo€nsa

1,843.00
't,305.67

525.24
65.92

139 99

- 

731.
2-175

(77.07)
14 q5

6Zf2
4,27716 |

19.0,1
2.15A17

34

497.230.55 1U,472.88
154 17? A8I ne accom panying notos from I to lt torm Cn intefrat pa-rt of-G6?iiliiEi

statements
1
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3tn3D02l

9,370.31

3,256.09

(1.22)

123.25
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(t0.55)
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(195.01)
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(tJrsJ0)

(679.05)
(1,055.94)

(5,960.93)

(123.25\
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3t7.83

,1*'
(r9.01)

(306.21)
1.143 48
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GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Year Ended 31.3,2021

1. SIGNIFICA T ACCOUT{TII{G POLTCIES

l'l Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financiat statem€nts

(i)

(ii)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS) notiftedunder section 133 of the comoanies Act, 2013 rne rinanciai statements have atso been prepared in accordance withthe relevant presentation requirements of the companies;;, zdiij. ri," c-up 
"dopted 

Ind As from 1st Aprir, 2017.

Basla of Prepalation

The financlal statements are prepared in accordance with the historicar cost convention, except for certain itemsthat are measured at fair vatues, as exptained in tt 
" "..ornting';;.i"r.

Fair varue is the price that wourd be received to se, an asset or paid to transfer a riabirity in an orderry transactionbetween market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price ls direcfly observable orestimated using another valuation technique. In estimauni ttre iiir-raiue or 
"n 

asset or a liability. the croup takeslnto account the characteristics of the.asset or liabirlty ir .-urt"t pi.tiiipants would take those characterisflcs tntoaccount when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement dite. Fair varue for measurement andlor d,scrosurepurposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a ouri", ur."li roi.t u[-dllJpuvnr"n,transactions that are within the scope of Ind As r02 - share-ba*o puyrunt, leasing transactions that are withinthe scope of Ind AS 115 - Leases, and measurements that have somi stmilarities to fair value butare not fairvalue, such as net realzabre varue in Ind AS 2 - Inventories oivarru in ,r" i, Ind As 30 - Imparrment ofAssets.

The preparation of financlal statements in conformity with Ind As requrres management to make judgements,estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assetsand liabillties, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabitities at the date of the financial staiemenG, ana tnereported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those esumates. Theestimates and underlylng assumptlons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to uaaornun! iitir"t"a urarecognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revisi;n affects only that perioa; theiaie iecognizeo
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and fuiure p".iooi.- - -

Basls of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary.
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

The consolidation is done on line-by-line basis as has been done in last Financiat year.

The Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenses of subsidiary are aggregated and consolidated, line by line. The profit
for the period along v{ith the profit of the holding company has bein reflected tn the retained earnings ror ttre year.
Profit or loss and each component oF other comprehensive income are attributed to the Group as owiirs ano to the
non-controlling interests. The Group presents the non-controlling interests in the Balance Sheet within equity,
separately from the equlty of the Group as owners.

All intra group ass€ts and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flotvs relating to transactions bettveen
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation,

As far as posslble, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the company,s separate financlal
statements.

(iii)
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(iv) Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group,s normar operating cycreand other criteria set out in the schedule III tr tr]" cr.p""il" nat, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - presentation of Financial

;':f[il::,nYfl;::J::','f"",liJi["t' unJ1n" iiil" iJtween tne acquisition o].,."Jrol processine and

1.2 Us6 of estimates and Judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to makeestimates' iudqments and assumptions. these estimaie.,;Log-urt, uno assumptions affect the apptication oficcounting policies and the reported amounts or assets an?iaoirities, the disclosures of contingent assets andliabirities at the date of the financiar statem;nir ;;;;;;;;; amounts of revenues and expenses during theperiod' The application of accounting polici". ttut r"qriiu ..itical accounting 

".tirut", inroiuing comprex andsubjective judgments and the use oi assumptions in-tt""J r,n"naiur statements have been disclosed in NoteNo l 5 Accounting estimates could change r.orn p"iioo-to period. Revision to accounting estimates arerecognized in the period in which the estimates u." rerirei und in any future period affeced. Actuat resultscould diFfer from those estimates. Appropriate atungua in eriirutes are made as the Management becomesaware of the changes in circumstances surrounding t-tre estimates.
The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurredafter that date but provide additionar evidence aboutionaiiiJns 

"rirting 
as at the reporting date.

1.3 Current ve6us non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on currenv non-current classification. An assetis treated as current when it is:

> Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normat operating cycle
> Held primarily for the purpose of trading

> Expected to be realized tvithin twelve months after the reporting period, or
i' cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setfle a liability for at least twetve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current_

A liability is current when:

> It is expected to be setued in normal operating rycle

> It is held primarity for the purpose of trading

> It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
> There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent according to the Group,s operating cycle and
gther criteria set out in the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of current non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

B-202



For€lgn curtcncl€g
These fhancial statements are Dresented In INR, which is also the funcuonat currency of the Group. All financiatinformauon presented in INR has been rounded to ir," r"i.""i'f'"tt 

".Transactionc and balanc€s

:;fi,:?;:::1?".J:nsactions 
are transtated into the functionat currency using the exchange rates at the dates

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setuement of such transactions and from the transtation

lJ ilffi:"L":::". 
and liabitities denominaiea in roreiln iuiiencies at yea. eno exchanse ,"i"i ai" .".osnireo

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated usingthe exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.-rtlon-aor"t".y items measured at fair value in aforeign currency are translated using the exchange .ut"r ut irr" Jate when the fair vatue is determined. Thegain or loss arising on translation of non-monetiry ltems measureo at fair value is treated in line with therecognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the ltem (i.e., translation dlfferences on itemswhose fair value gain or loss is recognized in ocr or prott oi tois are also recognized tn ocl or profit or toss,respectively).

Crltlcal estlmat€s and ,udgm6nts
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which by definition will seldomequal the actual results, Management also needs to exercise judgment in applying the Group,s accountingpolicies.

This note provrdes an over vrew of the areas that invorved a higher degree of Judgment or comprexrty, andItems which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates ancl aisumptions turnini out to bedifferent than those orlginally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates ano yuiiments is
lncluded in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculaflon for each affe;ed-line item
ln the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgment are:
. Estimatlon of Defined benefit obligation - refer Note No.1.17
. Estimation of current tax expenses - refer Note No,1.g
. Useful life of Property, plant and equipment - refer Note No.1.10
. Valuation of Inventory - refer Note No.1.14

. Provisions and Accruals - refer Note No.1.16

. Contingencies - refer Note No.1.16

Fair valuo measursm6nt
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value as per Ind AS 113 at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the prlce that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transFer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement ts based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. In the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

the prlncipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an ass€t or a llability is measured using the assumpuons that market parucipants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in thelr economic best tnterest.

1.5
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1,7

(i)

(iD

H"::["'"t'Jnuoil'ti;::""T,"J1,:l 9 non-financial asset takes into. account a market par.cipantr abirity topu.ti.ipuniit"i*i-uil;:*.#'"H|i?,tli: 
ffi:Ji"ffi l':lT:eand 

best ,'" ,i uvl"i,"i]iillil'.n", ,".r",
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sumcient data
il";";1i""tfi:"T"filJ: rair varue' maximrzinf [rie-rls;;; il;* observabre inputs and minimizins the use

ilfff:f""liT"lH;',J.T:#:i:".[.];.:",: ff:;::"r."Ijiscrosed.in 
the nnanciar statements are catesorized

fair value measurement ar u'iJnor", re lowest level input that is signlficant to the
L€v€r 1- Quot;d prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identicar assets or riabirires.
Lev€l 2- Inputs other than ouoted prices included v{ithin Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,either dtrecHy (i.e., as prices) or inJirecuy ti..., a".ir"j'i.". p.rc*1.
Level 3-Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observabre market data (unobservabre rnputs)For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statement on a recurring basis, the Groupdetermines whether transfers have occurred between revers in it" triera.ctry by re-assessing categorization(based on the lotvest level input that is signific"nt to tt-e i"1. raieach reportinq Deriod. (u Lrrc li'rr value measurement as a whole) at the end of

Rev€nue from contracts wlth customers
Revenue from contrdcts with customers is recognized when control or the goods or services are transferred to thecustomer at an amount that reflects ttre conslairation io *triat t-r-r" garp expects to be entiued in excrrange rorthose goods or services' Revenue is. measureo 

"t 
ttr" iuii ,urru'of t-he consideration received o. ,"a"ii"ur", tating

ll"T":"T:li: 
contractuallv derined terms 

"r 
p"v,""ilrl-"*,1i,'nl or", or duties corected on beharr or the

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to thecustomer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from ine saie or gooos is measured at the fair varue of theconsideration received or receivable, net of returns uno urrorr"n".r, sales tax and applicable trade dlscountsand vorume rebates. Revenue incrudes shipping una nunaiin! .osii bired to the customer.
Intelest incom€

interest income primarily comprises of interest from term deposits. Interest income is recorded using theeffective interest rate (EIR)' EIR is the rate that exactly oi"corritsirre estimated future cash receipts over theexpected rife of the flnanciar rnstrument or a strorter perioo, wnei" upp.opri"t", to the gross carrying amountofthe financial asset. Interest income is included in oitre. income in ttr" 
"t"t rn"nt of Drofit and ross.

Dlvidend

Dividend income from investment is.accounted for when the right to receive is established, which is generallywhen shareholders approve the dividend.

Oth€r Incom€

Other income is recognized when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realization exists.
Export Incentlv€s
Export incentives are recognized when the incentives are be received from the government authorities.
Export entitlements from government authorities under the Merchandise Exports from India scheme (MEIS)and Service Exports from India scheme (SEIS), Duty Draw Back scheme is recognized tn the siatement ofprofit and loss based on receipt of the scrip from the government authorities.
Taxes

Tax expenses comprise oF current and deferred tax:
Current incom€ tax
current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorlties. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
current income tax relatlng to ltems recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). current tax items are iecognized in correlation to

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

1.4

the underlying transaction either in OCI or direcuy in equity.
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in

period ically evaluates positions

a.

interpretation and establishes provisions where a
regulations are subject to
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a.

Def6rr€d tax

?"f-".it:9..!* is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assetsand liabilities and their carrying amounts for financrar reporan; ;urposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for-all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused taxcredits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are ,ecognireo to the extent that it ls probable thattaxable profit will be available against which ,n" o"ouaili" iu.p-o...v differences, and the carry Forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses can Oe utiflzeO. '
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent thatit is no longer probable that sufflcient taxable profit ,niri u" i"uiiuor" to allow a or part of the deferred taxasset to be utilized' unrecognized deferred tax assets are .u-urr"a"Lo ut 

"uah 
reporting date and are recognizedto the extent that it has become probable that future tu"uoi" p.ntr wi a ow the deferred tax asset to berecovered.

DeFerred tax assets and riabirities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appry in the year whenthe asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rit"r taro tax laws) that have been enacted orsubstantively enacted at the reporting date.

The Group recoqnizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent that there isconvincing evidence that the Group wi, pay normar rncome tax during the specideo perioo, i..., trJpe.ioo ro,which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in ;hich the Group recognlzes tax credits as anasset, the said asset is created by way of tax credit to the statement of profit and Loss. The croup reviewssuch tax credit asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent, the Group does not haveconvincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (elther in othercomprehensive in@me or ln equity). Defered tax items are recognized in correlation io ttr" rrJ"1v'ing lln*aioneither in OCI or direcfly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable rtght exists to set off current taxassets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes.elaG to the same taxable entity and the sam; taxationauthority.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPs") data for its ordinary shares. Basic Eps iscalculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weigtrte<taverage number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted Eps is determln;d oy aojusting ttreprofit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number oi o.o#.v ,nure.outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
Prop€rty, Plant and Equipment Recognition and measurement
Construction in progress is stated at cost, net ofaccumulated impairment losses, ifany. property, plant and equipmentare initially recognized at cost after deducting refundable purchase taxes and lncluding the cost direcgyattributable to bring the asset to the location and conditions necessary for it to be capauteir operiiing in ttremanner intended by the management, borrowing cost ln accordance with the established accounting poticy,
cost of restoring and dismanuing, if any, initially estimated by the management.

After the initial recognition the property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. cost of self-constructed asset is determined using the same principles as foi acqutred
assets after eliminating the component of internal profits.

Any gain or loss on disposar of an rtem of property, prant and equipment is recognrzed in profit or ross.
Depreciation has been provided on written down value method in terms of expected life span of assets specifled
in Schedule - II of the Companies Act, 2013 or as determined by management. The Group, based on technical
assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain items of building, plant
and equipment over estimated useful llves which are different From the useful life prescribed in Schedute II to
the companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect
fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used, The residual value and useful life
are reviewed annually, and any devlation is accounted for as a change in estimate.

b.

f.

1.9

cost of lease hold land are written off over the primary lease period of the land except of the leasehold
land, held by the company on the date of transition, which is amortized over the remaining useful lives of
the assets. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
end and the effect of any change is accounted for on

at each financial year

d.

s.
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1,11

The carrying amount of the a, oroperty, prant and equipment are derecognrzed on its disposar or when no
L'ffi:Jil'li'"i::;:'tr"""',H'ffT';;;';';J;ft'!ii"""i'""0 the-gain or ross on illiel'ocn*ion rs

lntangible Ass€ts

Acquired intangible assets are initially recognized at cost after deducting refundable purchase taxes and
H,Jll:,lj;u.|"r"ffii,jihlxti.jl# After initiarr;c;;nii"", i,i"^gibr". 

"," 
ca,,i"d ut.o.i r",-,1..u,,r"t"a

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of.the costs incurred to acquire and bring touse the specific software' computer software development costs ror in-rrouse developed software is recognizedas assets are amordzed on a written down value Ouii" oru. it 
"f. 

Lrtimated useful life.
The estimated useful lives, resldual values and amortization method are revielved at each financial year endand the effect of any change is accounted for on prospective bisis.-

Borrowing costs
borrowlng costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarilytakes a substantial period of time to get ready For its int"no"a-rr. o. rute are capitalized as part of the cost ofthe asset All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period In which they occur. Borrowing costs consist oflnterest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection 

"i r tn" borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost alsoincludes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an aoiustmlnt to the borrowing costs.

1.13 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That ls, lf the contractconveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of Ume tn exchange fo.lonsioeration.
Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leasesand leases of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease l;abilities to make lease p"vr"nti ino right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use asE€ts

The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the mmmencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlylng
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any aciumulated depreciation andimpairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabitities. The c;st of nght-of-ra"1.."t. in.tuo",
the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease pay.ents made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the leas€ term.

If owne6hip of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exerclse of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use
assets are also subject to impairment.

Leas€ Llabllltl€c

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabillties measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substanc€
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease Fyments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. varlable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incured to prcduce
lnventories) ln the period tn which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease ls not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accreuon of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
option to purchase the underlying ass€t. The Company,s lease
borrowings

to future payments resulting
in the assessment of an

-bearing loans and
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Short-term leaseg and leaaGs of tow_value assots
The company applies the short+erm lease recognition exemption to its.short-term reases (i.e., those reases thathave a rease term of 12 months or ress r,o, ti" i"-r"*arJntt.te anado not @ntain a p;rchase option). It arsoapplies the lease of low-value a-ssets r€cognition exe;piio; it'-ui.ur. -n.,o"r"a to be rorv varue. Lease paymen* on
ij'ro#-term 

leases and leases of low-valuJ 
"t."it "ri i"."g";."0 as expense on a straight-rine basis over the rease

Group as a l€ssol

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially alr the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of anasset are classlfied as operating leases. Rental ln"or" 
"iisniir uaaounted for on a straight-rine basis over the reaseterms' Initial direct costs lncurred ln n"gotiuting unJ ur.ungiigin ope.ufing leas€ are added to the carrying amountof the leased asset and recognlzed or"i tl" r"-uru iui.-oi tt'".u." basis as rentar income. contingent rents arerecognized as revenue ln the period ln wtrtctr they are eamej.

l.la Inyentori6s

Inventories consist of raw materials, packing materials, stores-and spares, work-in-progress and finished goodsand stock of traded 900ds, which 
"i" ,"u.r."a it i-r.,I'tli"i-o, *rt 

"no 
net rearizabre varue.

cost includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costsincurred in bringing them to their existing location and .onait,on. In the case of finished goods and work-in-progress, cost includes and appropriate share of overheads based on no.rnut op".iitnf.iplli y. sto.", unospares, that do not quarify to be.recognized as property, prant and equipment, consist of packing materrals,engineering spares (such as machinery spare partsj and'consumables, which are used in operating machlnesor consumed as indirect materials in the manufacturing process. The basis of measurement of cost is as Follows:
0) R.w Mat€.lals, packing Mat€rlals and Stor€s & Spar€s: FIFO basis
0l) Finished Goods: Cost of input plus appropriate overhead.
(lll) Work-ln-progresa: Cost of input plus overhead up-to the stage ofcompletion.
(lv) By- Productst At net realizable value
(v) Stock-In-Trade; FIFO Basis

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

1.15 Impairment of non-flnancial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset,s recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely lndependent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit,,),

An lmpairment loss ls recognized in the statement of profit and loss if the estimated recoverable amount of an
asset or its cash-generating untt is tower than it is carrying amount.

Impairment losses, other than those recognized on goodwlll, that have been recognlzed in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date For any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
had been recognized.

mortization, if no impairment loss
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Provlslons, Conting€nt Llabiliti€s and Contlngent Agsets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic beneflts will be requlred

to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by

discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the

time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase ln the
provlslon due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilltles

A disclosure for a contingent liabllity is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there ls a possible obligation or a present

obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is

made,

Disputes, liabitities and claims against the company including claims raised by flscal authorities (e.9. GST,

Income Tax etc.) pending in appeal / court for which no reliable estimated can be made and or involves

uncertainty of the outcome oF the amount of the obligation or which are remotely poised For crystallization are

not provided for in accounts but disclosed in notes to accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income-tax or Goods and

Service tax or duty of Customs or duty of Excise or Value added tax which have not been deposited by the

group on account of disputes, except for the following:

Contlngent Ass€ta

contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed

continrially and lf it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related

income are recognized ln the period in which the change occurs.

Employee benefits

ihort t".m Employ€6 B€nefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term

employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short term compensated absences etc., and the expected

cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized in schemes is recognized during the period ln which the employees

render the related services.

Post-EmploYm€nt B€nefits:

l) Defined Contrlbution Plans:

State governed provident Fud Scheme and Employees State Insurance Scheme are defined contribution

plans.lne contribution paid / payable under the schemes is recognized durlng the period in which the

employees render the related services.

li) Defined B€nefit Plans:

ThecompanyhasDefinedBenefitPlanforpost.employmentbenentintheformofGratuityforeligible
Employees, which is administered through a Gratuity Policy with Life Insurance Corporation of India

(L,i.Ci. Gratuity Liability based on actuarial valuation as per Ind AS 19. Llabilitv recognized in the balance

sheet'in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of each

reporting peiiod less the fair value oi plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by

, aciuary 
-using 

the projected unit credit method. The present value of deflned benefit ls determined by

discounting t-ne estimited future cash outflows by reference to market yield at the end of each reporting

period on government bonds that have terms approximate to the terms of the related obligation' The

interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation

and the fair value of plan assets. The cost is included in expense in the statement of

profit and loss. Actuarial gain / loss arising from and changes in actuarial

Name of
the Statute

Nature
of Dues

Amount
(Rs. In
Lakhs)

Period to which
the amount

relates

Forum where
p€nding

REMARKS

Central
Excise Ad
t944

Excise
Duty

44.92 20Ll-12 CESTAT

ALLAHABAD

Rs. 4.49 Lakh
Deposit. Pertains
to Subsidiary

assumptions are credited / debited to "other of other equity.
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1,18 Flnanclal Instrum€nta

Afinancialinstrumentisanycontractthatgivesrisetoafinancialassetofoneentityandafinancialliabiliwor
equity lnstrument of another entity'

Flnanclal Ass€ta

Initlal Recognitlon and ll€asurement

All financlal assets are recognized lnitially at fair value plus. in the.case of flnanclal assets not recorded at fair

value through profit and ro.., tr"nr".ii#.ort ttrut "r" 
attributable to the acquisition ofthe financlal assets'

Financialassetsareclassifled,atlnitialrecognition,asfinancialassetsmeasuredatfairvalueorasfinancial
assets measured at amortized cost'

S u b 1eq u e nt rtt ea su ra m a n t
For purpose of subsequent measurement flnancial assets are classifled in two broad categories:

Flnancial Assets at fair value

Flnancial assets at amortized cost

whereassetsthatmeasuredatfairvalue,gainsandlossesareeltherrecognizedentirelyinthestatementof
;;;iii'"il;;;;;'t".oenized in other comprehensive Income'

Afinancialassetthatmeetsthefollowingtwoconditionsismeasuredatamortizedcost:

BusinessModelTest:Theobjectiveofthecompany,sbusinessmodelistoholdtheflnancialassettocollectthe
contractual cash flows.

cashflowcharacteristicstest:Thecontractualtermsofthefinancialassetglveriseonspecifieddatestocash
flor s that are solelv payment ot p-rii-cipui i na int"tttt on the principal amount outstanding'

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through OCI:

BusinessModelTest:Theflnancialassetisheldwithinabusinessmodelwhoseobjectlveisachievedbyboth
;h.fis contractual cish flows and selling financial assets'

cashflowcharacteristicstest:Thecontractualtermsofthefinancialassetgiveriseonspecifieddatestocash
flows that are solely payment or p;;;i;alind interest on the principal amount outstanding'

All other financlal asset is measured at fair value through profit and loss'

All equity investments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet' with value changes recognlzed in the

statement of proflt and ror., 
"*.1p1-roi 

inose equity investments tor whicn the entity has elected lrrevocable

option to present value changes ln OCI'

Datf,cognitlon of frnanclat asseB

Afinancialasset(or,whereapplicable,apartofafinancialassetorpartofagroupofslmilarfinanclalassets)is
;.i;;;il6;e;iied (i.e., iimo'"J r'oin tt''" companv's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired' or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flovYs.from the asset or has assumed an obligation to

pay the received cash florys in rr'ir "]it 
oui.ut"rial delay to a thlrd party under a 'pass-through' arrangement;

and either (a) the companv "# 
i;;;;;;uttiniiirrv all the risks and rewards of the asset' or (b) the

Company has nelther t.unrf".r"i 
-n-oi-i"tui*O 

suUttuntlitty all the risks and rewards of the asset' but has

transferred to control of the asset'

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-

through arrangement, it evatuates-iil"it"-*hut ;xtent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership'

when it has neither transferred *. .","'"J r"uttantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred

control of the asset, the conlpunv'ao-ni]nu", to ,"aognia" tn" transferred asset to the extent of the company's

continuins invotvement. ," ,nu. ";;;;';;;-c".pi""v 
atso recognizes an associated liability. The transferred

asset and the associated f iaOif ity--aii' measuiei on'a Oasis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

CompanY has retained.
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Impalrment of ftnanclal assets

In accordance with Ind As 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recognitionofimpairmentlossonthetrade'rece|vablesoranycontractualrighttoreceivecashoranother
finanicial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115'

For this purpose, the company follows 'simplified approach'for recognition of impairment loss allowance on the

trade receivable balances. Tie application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track

changesincreditrisk.Rather,itrecognizesimpairmentlossallowancebasedinliFetimeEcLsateachreporting
date, right from lts initial recognition.

Asapracticalexpedient,thecompanyusesaprovisionmatrixtodetermineimpairmentlossallovYanceon
p;rtf;lio of its tr;de receivables. Tie provision matrix is based on lts historically observed default rates over

itre expectea life of the trade receivaLles and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting

aate, ine hlstorical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are

analyzed.

Financlal Llabillties:

Allflnancialliabillt.esarelnitiallyrecognizedatfairvalueand,inthecaseofloansandborrolYingsandpayables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs'

Financialliabilitiesareclasslfiedasmeasuredatamortizedcostolfairvaluethroughprofitandloss(FVTPL).A
Rnancial tiabitity is classified iirwpiiiait is ctassified as hetd for trading, or it is derivative or is designated as

iuchoninltialrecognition.FinancialliabilitiesatFVTPLaremeasuredatfairvalueandnetgainorlosses,
including any interest expens;; aie recognizeo in state-ment of profit and loss. other financial liabilities are

subsequentlymeasuredatamortizedcostusingtheeffectiveinterestmethod.Interestexpens€andforeign
exchange giins and losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss'

Thecompany,sfinancialliabilitiesincludetradeandotherpayables,loansandborrowingsincludingbank
overdrafts and derivative fl nanclal instruments'

Derecognltion

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation lnder liability is dlscharged or cancelled or explres'

When an existing financiat rlaiiiity is reptaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms'

or the terms of an existing riiiiiitv-u." rrortu;tia y modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as

the derecognition or the oriqinai liauiliiy and the reiognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective

iarrying ariounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss'

Offsettlng of financlal lnstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount ls reported in the financial statements if there

ts a currenfly enforceabte r"g;tiighi t offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net

basis, to reaiize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously'

1.19 Cash and cash €quival€nts

cashandcashequivalentinthebalancesheetcomprisecashatbanksandonhandandshort-termdeposits
with an original maturity of thiee months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of tne statemeni of cash flowi, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term

deposits, defined auove, net-J ousianding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of

the GrouP's cash management'

1.2O Impact of Covid-lg Pandemlc:

TheoutbreakofcovlD-lgpandemicgloballyandinlndialscausingsignificantdisturbanceandslowdownof
economic activity. coVID-19 rras cauieo interruption in production, supply chain disruption, etc during last

week of March, 2O2O and tnereatte' ine management oi the company has exercised due care in concluding

significant accounting iuagments a-;u 
".iirut"s-in 

preparation of the financial results. In view of there being

no comments of the impact 
"t 

covio rs i" the accounts of the subsidiary and impact of covlD-19 is visible

onthesuddendeclineintnet"mpo'u.v,urketvaluationofinvestmentsheldbythecompany.Thecompany
considers the impact u, u ,.'roiui'uo"ir.iitn' hu"g no..majgr impact oF covid-19 Thus' no effect of

iovio- rs has been made in the financial statements during the year'
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0.25
0.25

2.06

20.69
19.65

1.05

ln Oihers (at cost unless stated otherwise)

iiii l,iri,,6zs 
"ii,itv.r'".. 

ot Rs' lo each - Narmada clean Tech Ltd'( tormlv

(a) Quoted
iir's6ooo ."uiw strares in Genus Power lnfrastructures Ltd of Re 'll- each

iiir so ooo eouii.r strares in Genus Paper & Boards Ltd

iil"r.r" v"l, so,ooo equity Shares in Genus Power lnfrastruclured Lld' ot Re

'll- €ach)
riiirii6o'eouitv shares of Rs. Z' each fully paid-up in J P Associates Ltd'

liiri is,ooo'"q'r.ritv 
"r,"res 

ol RE lo/-€ach in Rashtriva Chemicals & Fertilizers

Ltd.
lvi 25.OOO equitv shar€s of Rs z- each in Suzion Energy Lld

irt;t unouotea (it coot unlgss statod otherwisg)

iO'zJi]io,i 
"qirity.h"res 

in Dhaulana sugar lndustries Ltd ofRs 10eachpaid

up Re. 1/- Per share

lnvestment in Others

tiiiio,soo 
"qrity "r,""s 

of Rs. 10 e-ach 'BEIL hllltl'^llf 
ft^d:. , ." , .^-,.,

As at
3tst March, 2021

As at
31st March, 2020

'179.01

796.78
,t79.01

Bank Deposits in form oI FDR having maturity period of more than 12 months is

kept as margin money against Bank guarantees

- As at
31st March, 2021

As at
3'l st March, 2020

'r 36.00

44.08

I 5.85
127.80

t'1.00
1.50

180.08 156.

0.25
0.25

2.06

20.69
'19.65

2.49

2,557.71
94.77

435.91

749.80
1,898.08

35.08
523.24

Finished Goods
Stock in Traded Goods
Stores, Spares & Packing
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lrr, vulEl rlrlarrrrqr ^crsr.
Particulars

As at
313t March, 2021

As at
3'l st March, 2020

Other Bank Balances Cfsrm Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months

and less than 12 months)
53.36

66.95

1,001.28

73.41
unpalq olvloenq acseurrl -_-. 120.31 l_,ol1_se

9.88
323.63
370.66
276.21

1 1.19
1,350.97
'I,789.35

304.03

to Employees
to suppliers and service providers
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Tsrm Loan trom bank rn€elurcd et Amorlisad Cosl
Long tclm maturili6a ol Financo L6ase obligationd hira purch€36 tinenoa

8% R6deemeble Prelercnce shares ot R5. 100 oach (rofer note rco( below)

Naturo ot aacurlty lor 3ocur€d borowlnol art Clven b€low:
T€m Loan3 llom Bankt

lmmovable and Movabl€ Asssls olth6lJnil Located at Bor€goan lnduslrialArea, oist.Chhindawara
.) and Abu Road, Sirohi, Raiasthan ar. dsrged to Citi Bank by way ol Flrst chargo for Extemal

Bonodings(EcB) ol USD 11.60 million.

lmmov.blo Assols of lh€ Unit Loc€t€d at ihe Jhaoadaa lndustdal Eslat€, Dist Bharuch (Gujerat) and

ss56ts of Lrnil3 locst€d at Mu2ellameger (UP) ara charged to Th6 Hongkong & Shanghei Banking

Lrd. by wEy ol Flr$ cnerg. on psri-p6s3u wilh Citi Eank lor Tarm Loen ol Rs 40 crores.

Long tsnn malurltloa of Flninca Laaaa obllgllont
loans are secured againstvehicles purchas€d through Banlc under hire purchase agre€mants.

Tho aggregato amount ot loana uoclsa aach hosd ouarantaed by Dlrociors or othef! ara glvon

lerm loam are s€qJr€d by peBonal guaranl66 ot lhe Promoler Diroclor.

Preler€nco Shere capital includ6s intor6st ol Rs.78 Laca.

1E. Orhor Ftnanctat Ltab t0e. (R6.ln Lakhs, _
tPr.rt tI 3lrt Mr.ch.202l I 3l6t Llarch, 2020 I

lLeass L,abil ies
133 48 | 41'01 |

19- OEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NEI (RS,IN LAKhs)

niI I 3l3t Mrrch. 2021 I 3l!t March. 2020 1

loeDreciatron and amortsalion I

Iu"in"""'r"0". | (aa a9,l I

-""^I - l

Finished Goods etc. and Book Debts of the Company.

Th€ Loan is turth€f Bocured by way of a Sscond Charg€ on Flxed Ass€ts of lhe Company €nd penional guaaanlce ol Promoter Oiroctor of lhe Company-

2I. TR,ADE PAYABLES {RS'IN LAIhS} .

' I tr.t u.-i zorr I 31rt itarch.2ozo I

lTr.do Payablos con8l3l of tho lollowlng: I -". ,. I ."""" I

l- micro, small and 'nedrum enlerprrsas "' -' 
II I I 5'399 04 I 265810 1

I Cunent matu.itiss of long l€rm debt

) Unclaimed divdendr
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23. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES lRs.in Lakhs)
A..l l A..l l

I I 3tstM.rch 2o2l I 3l6tMerch 2o2o I

rrar 
^ovonce 

ron. 324 15 | 221 n ,

lrololre rraor es I r:a.rtg| 598 s2

------ Tor"r------.jJEi3ET-_--________
24. PROVISIONS rR. tn L.rhcl
iPadrcur.r€ 

----El------as 

ar---.l
I I 31it March. 2021 I 31st Merch. 2020 I

EmoloYee Be.e'ls I s122al rAnq6 I

_- , - - .,..,, *.or

r Sals of Producl (including 6xcis€ duly)
) Freight and Hardlin! Charges @covercd

Misccllansous Rccaapl3 l} cl€ims
salos- scrap & w€st6 Mat6dal
Foreign ExdEnO6 Fluduelions

11,711.33
47,862,81

50.t.50
212.72

42t.63
110.tt
13t.7E
12a,Sf

1,165.39

Ravanua frcm ada ot produclt
l) Mlnorel Proc..aing
il) Grein Procca3ing
ili) Distillary

Othar Oporatlng RaYcnuea
(l) Expo.l and Olh€r heitlvct
(ii) Miscgllan€oul Rc..ipb A d.imt
(lll) Selee Scrap & Wsd€ Metoriel
(iv) Focign ExdEhgc Fluatuation!
(v) Loar6 R6nl, Opq"ation & Maint€ndt Cheroc!

8,118.46
53,657.52
13,269.6.|

69.51

2U.11
50.85

153.13
83.93

1,055.81

Revoruo lrom contl.cia wlth cuaiomad dlsaggregatad balod on g.ography

Rrcoarciliation of gros rcvcnuo wilh th€ mveruc lrom conlract6 wilh cu3tomcrs

Rcrcrucs trc r.cord.d rr ! point h dtnc. Th. Compoy hrs m rcmlining pcrfom.nc oblis.dons oncc l[c goods e dcliv€red io lhc customd s F tcrrns of$. oontr.ct

Ttrdc rc.civ.blcs u. non-irtcEst b.ting .nd rG gocntly duc withh O to 90 drys. Th.r. is no $8nificttrt tueciry compon. in ey tr rs..tio. w(h lhc cBtollm.

93.55

1.17

0.'tE

65.61

1.22

10.55
a2_o2

On lnv.slmentl
) Gain / (Lo$) on sel. ol invcatm€rft (N6t)

On lnvestmonts
Prollu (Loss) on prop.rty, danl .nd .quipmont 3old / di3card€d (Nsl)
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For the y€aa 6oded
3'1st March, 2021

ffi
(a) Traded Goods
(b) Work in progress
(c) Finished Goods

(b) L93s: Closing lnventoiies
(a) Traded Goods
(b) Work in progress
(c) Finished Goods

91.77
695.18

2,557.71

46.64
640.19

1,812.45

3,3i17.68

35.08
749.80

1,898.08

2,499.27

94.77
695.18

2,557.71
3, 47.

{Rs.in Lakhs)

z. cosr oF MATERIALS CoNSUMED I F6;ih; v;;;;;a;a I Fo;i# t;;i;;a;a I

ItsarocutaE I ttst Mirctr,2ozr I 3tst uarct, zozo I

-,

I Total

2a. puRcHASE oF GooDS TRA'ED . (Rs i! Lgkhs)

I I OU

lR3.in Lakhs)

l(a) Salanes and Wages LDte| 78.98

l{b) contflbutron ro Provrdent and orher Funds I ;;; ;; I ps.l8
|lc r ;mo,ovee y.ve,fu

lnterest on Term and Other Loans

Gain on breign cunency transaclions and translation
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(a) Process Chomicels & Consumables
(b) Stores, Spare Pans & Packing
(c ) Po,,,/er and Fuel
(d) ReDair & Maintenanc€:

-BuildinO
-Plant & MadtinEry

(e) Rates and Taxes
(D Renr
(g) Pdntjng and Shtionary
(h) Advedisement and Publicity
(i) Subscription and Membs6hip Ges
0) Travelling Exp€nses
(k) Legal and Prolessiooal Exp€ns€s
(l) Paym€nt to Auditors.
(m) Communication Charoes
(n) Ropair end Maintenanc€
(o) lnsurance
(p) Donation
(q) CoDorate Socisl R€sponsibility expenses..
(r) Miscellaneous Expenses
(s) Allow?ncs hr Doubtful t adE receivables
(t) Commission & Discount
(u) Freight and Foirarding Exp€ns€s
(v) Others

5,393.81
2,86/..37
8,310.81

4.51

1, 3.21
335.99
't 09.55
26.51

4.83
9.62

114.06
227.47

8.42
46.73
50.18
92.28

0.63
218.09

23.41
98.32

125.38
4,099.14

6a 00

3,697.47
2,127.
6,627.94

4.50
647.05
127.00
79.32
24.26

4.07
10.72

'177 _18
221.92

6.47
56.01
47.31
82.33

1.67
37.$

9.25

133.92
3,489.27

61 3rl
Total 23.495. 17,A77.O9

(') (c ) Detaib ol Audlto6 RomuneEtlon arc ar tollows:
(i) Statutory Audit Fees
(ii) Limited Review Fee
(iii) R6imbu6ement of oxpenses
(iv) Other trlanagement Services,Consultancy and certifcation Charoes

1.25

050

5.22
1.00

' o25
8.42 6.47

attdbutable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. in lakhs)

Number of equity shares us€d as denominator brcatculating EPS

Number ot Diluted Equity Share (Arnount in Rs.)

Basic Eaming pershare (Amount in Rs-)

Diluted Eaming per share (Amount in Rs.)

707

707

497,230.55

,197,230.55

707

707

1€l,472.88

16r',472.88

34. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
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35. Additional lnformation as required by Paragraph
Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
Act,2013

2 of the General lnstructions for
to Schedule lll to the Companies

3l st March 2021
Name of the
entity

Net Assets Share in Profit or (Loss
As%of

consolidated
net assets

Amount
(Rs. in
Lakhs)

As%of
consolidated

Amount
(Rs. in
Lakhs)

PARENT
Gulshan Holdings
Pvt. Ltd.

2.23 879.04 -0.49 -30.51

SUBSIOIARY
Gulshan Polyols
Ltd.

97.77 38,526.80 100.49 6,245.55

Grand Total 100.00 39,405.84 100.00 6,215.04

Name of the
entity

Share in Other
Comprehensive lncome

Share in Total
Comprehensive lncome

As%of
consolidated

other
Comprehensive

lncome

Amount (Rs. in
Lakhs

As%of
consolidated

Total
Comprehensive

lncome

Amount (Rs.
ln Lakhs

PARENT
Gulshan Holdings
Pvt Ltd

-0.49 -30.51

SUBSIDIARY
Gulshan Polyols
Ltd.

'100.00 62.12 100.49 6,307.67

Grand Total 100.00 62.12 100.00 6,277.16

36. INCOME TAX

a. Amounts recognized in profit or loss
in lakhs

ParticuLrs 31"t March 2021

Current tax expense
Current year
MAT Credit Available

Deferred Tax Expense

1,843.0(
1,305.67 3,148.67

6.60

Total Tax Expense 3,155.27

AS per lndian tax laws, companies are liable for a Minimum Alternate Tax ("MAT" tax) when current tax,

as computed under the provisions of the lncome Tax Act, 1961 ("Tax Act"), is determined to be below the

MAT tax computed under section 115J8 of the Tax Act. The excess of MAT over current tax together
with any brought foMard MAT credit is eligible to be carried forward and set-off in the future against the

current tax liabilities over a period of 15 years.
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b. Movement in deferred tax balances
in lakhs

Particulars
Deferred Tax Assets
MAT Receivable

As?t 3;1"'March 2021

44.49

TotalDeitr;eTTtLaEiS 44.49

Particulars As at 31"tMarch 2021

Deferred Tax Liabilities (1476.45)

ffis 1476.45

Nef Daf e rre-dTaxTssets/ ( Lia b i I ity 1431.96

37. The Company has one subsidiary viz Gulshan. Polyols -tmi1ed 9*.tol91l?i Financial

Statementi hjve been prepared witir its subsidiary in viiw of Explanation to Section 129(3) of

the Companies Act, 2013.

3g. Effective 1{ April, 2014, the estimated useful lives of fixed assets were revised in keeping with

the provisions of Schedule ll to the Companies Act, 2013'

39. Disclosures of Related Party transactions as per lnd AS -24

a. Name of related party and nature of related party relationship where control exist:

i' Holding ComPanY: NIL

ii. Subsidiary Company: Gulshan Polyols Ltd'

b. Name of related party and nature of related party relationship other than those refened to

in (a) above in transaclion with the Company:

(i) Joint Venture etc.: NIL

(ii) Key Management personnel: Dr' C K' Jain, Director
Mrs. Arushi Jain, Direc{or

(iii) Relatives of Key Manaserial Personnel: 
M[. HXi$ijlli
Mrs Anubha GuPta

(c) Transactions with related parties during the period 01.04.2020 to 31.O3.2O21 other than

ihe transactions between the Holding and subsidiary company:

in Lakhs

PARTIC[LARS Transaction during
the year

Outstanding
Balance as on

31.03.2021

Remuneration to Key Management Personnel &

Relatives
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40, lnformation on segment reporting pursuant to lnd AS 108
in Lakhs

Particulars Mineral Proc6ssing Grain Processing Distillery Corporate
E Others

Total

31.03.21 31.03.2't 31.03.21 31.03.21 31.03.21

Revenue
Extemal
sales

U n-a llocated
Sales

Total
Revenuo
Results

Segment
results
before
interest and
Finance cost

Un-allocable
lncome
Oporating
Profit
lnterest
Expenses
Current Tax
(Net ot Mat
CrediUDebit)
oofened Tax
Charge /
(Credit)

Net Prolit

13269.60 76857.20

t 6.75

76672.95

*r8..27

9237.46

1729.13

13269.60 85.26

6631.03 1579.25

1729.13 6631.03 1s79.25 ,t4.86

65.@

r004t.36

879.05

31,18.67

6.50

6215,04

Particulars
Mineral Processing Grain Processing Distillory

31.03.21 31.03.21 31.03.21

S€gmenl Assets

Unallocated Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Segment Liabilities

Unallocated Liabilities &
Provisions

TOTAL LIABILITIES

6553.61

655:!.Gl

uaa.72

1.,a.72

28242.84

2842.84

52't 4.88

5214.88

12810.90

128t0.90

1147.27

147.27

Unallocated Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Segment Liabilities

Unallocated Liabilities &
Provisions

TOTAL LIABILITIES

929.9?

6.98

8.98

20.1.21

52506.18

8157.85

1912-18

l3tqr.33

2U1.21

3968.8,4

1y2.18
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(1)TheGroup,scorporateStrategyaimsatcreatingmultipledriversofgro\,vthanchoredonitscore
'''.0rp.G111,i...-rn" oroupl."luri.r'tlv to.r."ion four business groups:.Mineral Processing,

Grain processing, oistirLi 
-"ni 

6orpoi.t.. The .Group',s 
organizational . structure and

governance processes 
"rJ'd".ign"O1; 

sufport effective management of multiple businesses

while retaining focus on each one of them.
The Operatin! Segments have been reported in a manner consistent with the internal ryportlng
pr*iO.O to t'ne iorporate Management Committee, which is the Chief operating Decision

Maker.

(2) The business groups comprise the following:

(3) The Group is not reliant on revenues from transactions with any single external customer and

didnotreceivel0%ormoreofitsrevenuesfromtransactionswithanysingleexternal
customer.

41. Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified to make them comparable to current

year figures.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Aashish Bathla & Co.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Segment
o Mineral Processing
o Grain Processing

o Distillery
. Corporate

Date: 06-07-2021

Place: New Delhi

U Dl N :- 21446095A/{AACC9911

Group Company
Subsidiary: Gulshan PolYols Ltd '

Subsidiary: Gulshan Polyols Ltd.

Subsidiary: Gulshan PolYols Ltd.

Parent : Gulshan Holding Pvt. Ltd.

SD I-
Chandra Kumar Jain

(Director)

Sn l--
Arushi Jain
(Director)
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Shahid & Associates
Chartered Accountan6

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

9,149 A, South Civil Lines

Near MarutiDharam Kanta
ArYa SamajRoad

MUZAFFARNAGAR (U.P) - 251001

Phone Cum Fax2621040
Mobile 9012200078

To The Members of,

East Delhi Importers and Exporters Pvt. Limited
Delhi

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinioh
we have audited the accompanying financial statements of East Delhi Importers and- Exporters Pvt' Limited' ("The

company,,) which comprise ihe sufu.. sheet as at March 3l,z}2l,and the 
-staternent 

of Profit and Loss, for the year then

ended, and notes to the financial statements, lnctuairg a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial

statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

fui In the case Jr th. euhni Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at Ivlarch 3 1 , 2021

6i In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Profit for the year ende'C on that date'

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAO specified under section 143(10) of the

companies Act, 2013. our responsibilities under those standards are furtier'describid in the Auditor's Responsibilities for

the Audit of the Financial Statements section oi o"r i.port. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code

of Ethics issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to

our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in actordance with these requirements and the code of Ethics' we believe that the

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion'

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company,s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in seclion 134(5) of the Companies Act' 2013

(.,the Act,,) with respeci to th" p..pururion oithese financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position'

financial performance of the company in accordance with the Accounting principles generally accepted in India, including

the accounting stanaarJs,p"rin.a^rnier section 133 of the act. This."rponribitlty also includes the maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the act for iafeguarding of the 
.assets 

of the company and for

preventing and detecting frauds and ottrer inegut;iities; selectio:r and applicati6ll c'f appropriate accounting policies; making

judgment and estimatei that are reasonable ujnJ p*a.nt; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuiacy and completeness of the accounting records'

relevant to the preparation and presentation of financial staterients that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or elror'

In preparing the financiai statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going

concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, oi hus ,o realistic alternative but to do so' Those

Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial rep0rting process.

misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror, ancl to lssue an auolror s rsPUI t tu.ll rtruruusr vur vvu,v''. ^**-*"'- *"
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantef that an audit conducted in a.ccordance with SAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstat;;trf;; arise from fraud or error iurd are considered material il individually

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably b" #;F; to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements. Z-^.T"\.

Auditor,s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror, and to issue an auditor's re.poft th1 
includes our-oPin':i 

^ry::"1*L:t:Ht:

@ry*N

Camp Office :30 N2 Arya Samaj Road, Opp, iffin-ia lnter Colleget, Muzaffarnagar (UP)
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticismthroughout the audit. We also:

' Identifu and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obain audii evidence that is sufficient andappropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a mar.erial misstatement resuttinjtim fraudis higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involie cottusion, rorgery, intentional omissions,misrepresentations, or the override ofinternal control.

' obtain an understanding of internal confol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that areappropriate in the circumstances' under section la3(3)(i) of the companies aci, ioti,*"ur" ulro responsible forexpressing our opinion on whether the company hai adiquate internal financiai controls system in place and theoperating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on theaudit evidence obtained, whether a. matirial uncertainty exiits ielated to events or conditions that may castsignificant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If rve conclude that a material uncertaintyexists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's reiort to the related disclosures in the financial statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modi& o* opirrion. our conclusions are based on the audit evidenceobtained up to the date of our auditor's report. i{o*eu*, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staterments, including the disclosures, andwhether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fairpresentation.

we communicate with 
ll.roT tharged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of theaudit and significant audit findings,_including any significant aeicienciei in internal .o,rt ol that we identify during our audit.We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compliled with relevant et[ical reluirements

ryeardin9 independence, and to communicate with 
Jheq all relationships and other matt;ers that may reasonably be thought to

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l' As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") as amended, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (ll) of section 143 of the A<it, we give in the *Annexure A,, a
Statement on the mafiers specified in paragraphs 3 and,4 of the order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to fte best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose ofour audit;

a. In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

b. The Balance Sheet, and the statement of Profit and Loss, dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books ofaccount.

c. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, and the Statement of Profit and Loss itccount comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the of the Companies (Accouns) Rulei
2014.;

d. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, ZO2l and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2021, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.
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with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such confols, refer to our separate Report in ,,Annexure 8,,.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Fi.eport in accordance with Rule I I of
Companies (Audit and Auditors),2016, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which woulLd impact its financial position.

(iD The Company did not have any Long Term Contract including Derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable Losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be translbrred to the investor Education and
Protection Fund by the company.

For SHAIIID & ASSOCIATES

Date: 0&,06-2021
Place: MUZAFFARNAGAR
UDIN: 2LO7 O4ABAAAABT3 387

SHAHID)
Proprietor
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ANNEXURtr] 66A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDIT,ORS' REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph I under "Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirement,' of our Report of evendate to the financial statements of the company for the year ended March 3l,t 2021:

(D In Respect of its Fixed Assets:

(a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation offixed assets;

(b) These fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at rr:asonable intervals in accordance withregular programme of verification. According to the infoniation and (3xplanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(iD In Respect of its inventory:

According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no inventory during the year hence this clause is
not applicable to the company.

(iii) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not glanted loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties iovired in thJregister maintained under section lg9
of the Companies Act 2013.

(iv) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section lg5
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 inrespect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

(v) According to information and explanations given to us the company has not accepted any deposits during the year.

(vi) Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Sub-section (l) of Section
148 of the Companies Act20l3

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

' (a) The company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees,
state insurance, income-tax, sales -tax, service tax, duty of customs, dufy of excise, uulr. added tax, .esr'urd ury
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount is payable in respectof income tax or sales tax or wealth tax or service tax or duty of c ustoms or duty bf excise or value
added tax or cess as at March 3l , Z02l .

(viii) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a finanr:ial institution, bank, Government or
dues to debenture holders.

(ix) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
and Also company has not raised money by term loans during the year.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, we have not noticed or reported any fraud by the company
or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees during the year.

(xi) According to information and explanations.given to us, the company has not paid any managerial remuneration during
the year under review hence this clause is also not applicable to the company.

(xii) This clause of the CARO 2016 is not applicable to the Company as the Company is not a Nidhi Company.ffiB-227



(xiii) There is no related party transaction during the year with the company hence this point is not applicable to the

company.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or

private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review'

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, tlre company has not gnterld into any non-cash transactions

with directorr o. p..ronr connected with him ind the provisions of slction 192 of Companies Act, 2013 have been

complied with;

(xvi) This clause of the CARO 2016 is not applicable to the Company as the company is not required to be registered under

section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934'

For SHAHID & ASSOCIATES

Date: 08-06-2021
Place: MUZAFFARNAGAR

IJIIIN: 2LO7 O4O&AAAABT3 3 87

SHAHTD)
Proprietor

UDN:
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Report on
Act")

"ANNEXURE - B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEI\IDATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF "EAST DELHI IMPORTERS AND EXPORT]ORS PRIVATE LIMITED"

the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Sectiorr 143 of the Companies Act,20l3("the

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IBAST DELHI IMPORTERS AND
EXPORTERS PRMTE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March3l,202l in co4junction with our audit of the financial

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the intemal

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our

audit. We conduited our iudit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section

143(10) of the Co*pa.ries Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal liinancial controls, both applicable to an

audii oi lnternal Fin:ancial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Acr;ountants of India. These Standards and

the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whethir adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such confiols operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial confiols over financial

riporting included obtaining and understanding ofinternal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a

materiaiweakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk. The procedures selectid depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe ttrat the audit evidence we have obtained

is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for my /our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system

over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding tire reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statemernts for external purposes in accordance

wiih genirally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those

policles and procedures that (l) pi.t"i" to the maintenance of records that, in reasonilble detail, accurately and fairly reflect

ihe transactions and dispositionsbfthe assets ofthe company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded

as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepteO aciounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

iccordance wit-h authorizations oimanigement and dfuectors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to elror or fraud may occur and not be

detected. Also, projections if any evaluation ofthe internal financial controls over financial reporting to future_periods are

subject to the iist< ihat the internll financial control over financial reporting may be,come inadequate because of changes in

.onditionr, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial

reporting and such internil financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 3 l, 2020, based

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria establiihed by the Company r:onsidering the essential components of
internal contol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SHAIIID & ASSOCIATES

Date: 08-06-2021
Place: Muzaffarnagar

U DIN :2 1070408AAAABT3 387
SHAIIID)
Proprietor
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East Delhi Importers and Exporters Pvt. Limited
Balance Sheet as at 3Lst March202l

EOUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds

Share Capital

Reserves and Surplus

Non-Current Liabilities

Defened Tax Liabilities (Net)

Current Liabilities

Short-term Borrowings

Short-term Provisions

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Current Assets

Current Investments

Cash and Bank Balances

Sho(-term Loans and Advances

Signilicant Accounting Policies &
Notes to Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For SHAHID & ASSOCIATES

UDIN: 2 1 070408AAAABT33 87

Dated:-08-06-202 I

Place: Muzaffamagar

r
dr.r*u* *
t DTRECT.R

Note No.

)
3

As at
3u03t2021

100000.00

s9494987.52

59594987.52

17203.00

17203.00

0.00

102089.00

102089.00

_____2114272.52_

I 3s82298.00

13s82298.00

37828020.42

7829759.10

474202.00

46131981.52

#

Ai at
3U$n020

100000.00

5925 I 858.88

59351858.88

17734.00

17734.00

254655.22

32 1586.00

576241.22

59945E34.10

13673067.00

13673067.00

37828020.42

765602s.68

788721.00

46272767,10

s994s834.10

7

8

9

l0

&2","P *5avtt/
ADITI PASARI

DIRECTOR.

Charlered Accountants

5

6
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East Delhi Importers and Exporters pvt. Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 3lst Mar,ch 2021

A! rt
NoteNo 31rc3n02t

REVENUES

Other Income

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Employee Benefi ts Expenses

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortization
Other Expenses

Total Expenses

ProfiU (Iass) before Exceptional and Extraordinary items and Tax
Exceptional Items

Profit/ (Iass) before Extraordinary items and Tax
Extraordinary Items

ProIit before Tax

Tax Expenses:

Current Tax

Defered Tax
ProfiU (Loss) for the period from continuing Operations

Profit/ (loss) from Discontinuing Operations
Tax Expenses of Discontinuing Operations

Profit/ (Loss) for the period

Significant Accounting policies &
Notes to Financial Statements

As per our report ofeven date attached

UDINI 21070408AAAABT3387

Dated:-08-06-202 I

Place: Mu"affamagar

t2

13

t4
l5

ll 1135388.44

113s388.44

-

As rt
3U0Enuo

2378781.00- 
23?8?E1"00

828000.00

95934.60

100297.00

1 19393.00

1143624.60

123s156.40

0.00

1235156.40

0.00

1235156,.40

321586.00

(446.00)
914016.40

0.00

0.00

914016.40

450000.00

2509s.80

90769.00

238317.00

804181.80

337206.64

0.00

331206,.64

0.00

3312M.64

88609.00

(_531.00)

243128,64

0.00

0.00

243128.64

IESII KUMAR Y:y*
DIRECTOR.
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Note:1

ACCOUNTING POLIGIES & NOTES ON AGCOUNTS

A. Significant Accounting poticies

1. Basis of Preparation
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant disclosure requirements of thetompanies Act, 2013
under historical cost convention and on the basis ofgoing concern.
Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwisJ are consistent and are in consonance with generally
accepted accounting principles followed by the company.

2. Fixed Assets & Depreciation:
Fixed Assets are valued at acquisition cost including directly attributable cost of bringing them to their respective
working conditions for the intended use.
Depreciation on fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on Written Down Value Method as
specified in Part C of Schedule II of Companies Act 2013.

3. lnventory Valuation
There is no Stock in trade in the Company at the end of the financial year hence no valuation of Stock has been
made.
The Companyhas not made any production during the financial year hence no Raw Material, Stores & Spares,

Chemicals has been consumed.

4. Revenue Recognition
The Company follows mercantile system of Accounting where all the Income & Expenditure items having material
bearing on the financial statements are recognized on accrual basis.

5. Retirement Benefits
Provident Fund and Gratuity Act is not applicable to the company at present.

6. Cash Flow Statement:
Cash Flow Statement are not required to be prepared because the company is a small company within the meaning
of section 2(di) of the Companies Act 2013.

7. Provisions for Current & Deferred Tax:
Provision for Current Tax is made on Normal basis during the year.
Deferred tax resulting from timing difference between book and taxable profit is accounted for using the
Tax Rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

l. Previous year figures have been re-grouped, re-casted and re-arranged wherever considered necessary.

2. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Current Assets and Loans and Advances have a value of realization in the
ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they have been stated in the Balance sheet and
appropriate provision have been made in respect of all known liabilities.

3. Figures have been rounded offto nearest rupees.

4. The Additional information as required under Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable as the
Company is not engaged in any of the activities referred therein.
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East Delhi Importers and Exporters pvt. Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

A.

Share Crpital:
Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and paid-up Share Capital
Authorized:

10,000 Equity Share ofRs. l0/- each

Issued, Subscribed and paid-up:

10,000 (Previous year 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up

Total

B. Reconciliation of Shares and at the end

As at

3U03t2021

100000.00

100000.00

are given below:

As rt
3Um,nmo

100000.00

100000.00

-

As at3U0312020

Numbers of Percentrge

held of

7000000.00

s225 I 858.88

59251858.88

51537E42.48

914016.40

5245 I 858.88

200000.00

s22518s8.6E

202U21

Numbers

C. Detailofshareholderholdingmorethatr5perc€ntsharsofahecompanyasonreportingdstearegivenbelow:

As st3UO3l2O2l
S.no. Nameofshareholder Numbers of Percentage

held

3. Reserves and Surplus:

General Reserve

Surplus i.e. balance in Statement ofprofit and Loss _ (b)

2079_20

Amount Numbers

Total

Additions and deductions since the last Balance sheet under each head ofReserve are as under

7200000.00

s2294987.s2

s9494987.52

Additions

522s 1 858.88

243t28.64

52494987.52

200000.00

52294987.52

(a).

As at
3U0f,n0lg

As at

3u03t2020
General Resewe

(b) Allocations and appropriations in Surplus i.e. balance in Statement ofprofit and Loss are as under:
Opening Balance

Add: Profit for the period

Less: Transfer to General Reserve

Closing Balance

Shares outstanding at ttre beffing of the year lflmo
0

0

100000

0

0

10000

0

0

Equity Shares Issued during the year - (a)
100000

0

0
LesS: Equity Shares bought back/ redeemed during the year

Shares outstanding at the end ofthe

200000.00
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4 Deferred Tax Liabititier (Net)
Deferred Tax Liabi[tG oiliiiii of
Depreciation and Amo(ization Expenses
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

5 Short-termBorrowinqs

Secured

From Banks

Short-term Provisions

Provision for Cunent Tax
Expenses Payables

7 Tangible Assets

Summary ofcost and net

'Iotal

Above Loan is secured by way offirst charge against Fixed Deposit held in Gulshan Mercantile urban co-operative Bank Ltd

17203.00

17203.00

88609.00

13480.00

102089.00

17734.00

17734.00

321586.00

0.00

321s86.00

Amount

amount ofeach class of assets tre

land
Building

12,717,605

80

801933.00

(a) Recpnciliation ofthe gross and net carrying amounts ofassets at the beginning and period ending30/09/2020are as under:

As at
Cost

Land

Building

Previous year

Accumulated Deoreciation
land
Building

Previous Year

Current Investments:

965020 Equity Shares ofGulshan Polyols Limited 37828020.42

37828020.42

9 Cash and Bank Balances:

Cash and Bank Balances consist ofthe following:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand

Balance with Banks:
-Current Accounts

Other Balances

Balance with Banks;

Fixed Deposits maturing within 12 months

l0 Short-term toans andAdvancs
(Secured, Considered Good)
Advance Curent Tax & T.D.S
A.y.202t-22

A.y .2020-21

4.Y.20t9-20

A.Y. 201l-12

31rc3n020 Additions Disposak 3ilffln}2t
12,717,605 D,717,60s
1,757,395 1.7s7 -39s

14,475,000 

-,475,000

14,475,000

3Uc8n020

12717605.00

95s462.00

13673067.00

As at

As at As at
3110312020 Additions Deducrions 3UO3n02t

pg1,e33 eo76e r*;*s01,93 g27L2.(n

701,636 1N297 - fl01933.00

240,2?8.60

663264.50

6926216.00

6926216.00

7829759.10

2l l08l 00

263,121.00

474r0r.N

37828020.42

37828020.42

s76120.60

634463.52

1210584.12

6445441.56

6445441.56

76ffi25.6E

240,580.00

285020.00

263t21.00

788721.N
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12

l3

l4

l5

I I Other Income:

Interest Income

On Others

Dividend

On Income Tax Refmd

Employee Benefi ts Expenses:

Salaries

Finance Costs:

Interest & Bank Charges

Denreciation and Amortization Exoenses:
Depreciation and Aportization Expenses:

Other Expenses:

Adminstrative Exoenses

Rates & Taxes

Advertisement Expenses

Communication Expenses

Legal and Professional Charges

Office Expenses

Travelling Exp.

Auditors' Remuneration - (a)

TOTAL

Datedr-08-06-202 I

Place: Muzaffamagar

UDIN: 2 1070408AAAA8T3387

V-^+^h*r atut-7/' u

ADITIPAsfrI
Director I

537855.44

s79012.00

I 852 1.00

113s388.44

450000.00

4s0000.00

25095.80

25095.80

90769.00

90769.00

25256 00

4200.00

19980.00

5 I 040.00

7088 1.00

53480.00

13480.00

238317.00

I 1800.00

1680.00

13480.00

2378781.00

0.00

2378787.N

828000.00

828000.00

95934.60

95934.60

100297.00

100297.00

0.00

0.00

27913.00

78000.00

0.00

13480.00

119393.00

I 1800.00

1680.00

13480.00

Details of Auditors'Remuneration are as follows
Statutory Auditors:

Audit Fees

Reimbursement of expenses

,l-,,/v
/{
(-I.r*rro^

Director

(a).

As per separate report ofeven date

For SHAHID & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accoutants
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PRE-SCHEME CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY 

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 

 

Particulars Amount (Rs.) 

Authorised Share Capital  

22,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each. 

2,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (0%) of Rs. 10/- each. 

14,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (0-10%) of Rs. 100/- each. 

Rs. 22,50,00,000 

Rs. 25,00,000 

Rs. 14,50,00,000 

Total Rs. 37,25,00,000  

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 

4,69,17,020 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each 

9,75,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (8%) of Rs. 100/- each 

Rs. 4,69,17,020 

Rs. 9,75,00,000 

Total Rs. 14,44,17,020 

 

POST-SCHEME CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY    

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 

 

Particulars Amount (Rs.) 

Authorised Share Capital  

28,06,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 1/- each.  

2,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (0%) of Rs. 10/- each. 

14,50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (0-10%) of Rs. 100/- each. 

Rs. 28,06,00,000 

Rs. 25,00,000 

Rs. 14,50,00,000 

Total Rs. 42,81,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 

4,95,59,489 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each.  

9,75,000 Redeemable Preference Shares (8%) of Rs. 100/- each. 

Rs. 4,95,59,489 

Rs. 9,75,00,000 

Total Rs. 14,70,59,489 

 

  

B-237

Annexure XVII



 

PRE-SCHEME AND POST SCHEME SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY 

(Based on shareholding data as on March 31, 2021) 

Sr. 

No. 

Name & Category of 

Shareholders 

Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme 

  Total nos. 

shares held 

Shareholdin

g as a % of 

total no. of 

shares 

Total nos. 

shares held 

Sharehold

ing as a % 

of total 

no. of 

shares 

(A) Shareholding of Promoter & 

Promoter Group 

    

1. Indian     

 (a) Individuals/Hindu Undivided 

Family  

Dr. Chandra Kumar Jain  

Mrs. Mridula Jain  

Ms. Arushi Jain  

Ms. Aditi Pasari  

Mr. Anubha Gupta  

 

 

35,46,990 

4,60,105 

3,80,545 

72,599 

1,98,132 

 

 

7.56% 

0.98% 

0.81% 

0.15% 

0.42% 

 

 

1,18,85,326 

77,15,809 

50,46,129 

50,13,751 

49,79,892 

 

 

 

23.98% 

15.57% 

10.18% 

10.12% 

10.05% 

(b) Central Government  - - - - 

(c) Bodies Corporate 

Gulshan Holdings Private Limited  

East Delhi Importers & Exporters 

Private Limited 

 

2,63,75,047 

9,65,020 

 

56.22% 

2.06% 

 

- 

- 

 

- 

- 

(d) Financial Institutions  - - - - 

(e) Any other  - - - - 

Sub Total A(1) 3,19,98,438 68.20% 3,46,40,907 69.90% 

2. Foreign     

(a) Individuals (Non- 

Residents Individuals/ 

Foreign Individuals) 

- - - - 

(b) Bodies Corporate  - - - - 

(c) Institutions - - - - 

(d) Any Others - - - - 

Sub Total A(2) - - - - 
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 Total Shareholding of Promoter 

and Promoter Group (A)= 

(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

3,19,98,438 68.20% 3,46,40,907 69.90% 

(B)  Public Shareholding     

1. a. Institutions - - - - 

b. Mutual Funds/ UTI - - - - 

c. Financial Institutions / 

Banks  

- - - - 

d. Central Government/ State 

Government(s) 

- - - - 

e. Venture Capital Funds - - - - 

f. Insurance Companies - - - - 

g. Foreign Institutional 

Investors 

- - - - 

h. Foreign Venture Capital 

Investors 

- - - - 

i. Any Other - - - - 

Sub-Total (B)(1) - - - - 

2. Non-Institutions      

(a) Bodies Corporate  7,96,876 1.70 7,96,876 1.61% 

(b) Individuals  

i. Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital up to Rs 2 

lakh 

 

ii. Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share capital in 

excess of Rs. 2 

 

 

1,09,18,394 

 

 

 

11,69,191 

 

 

23.27 

 

 

 

2.49 

 

 

1,09,18,394 

 

 

 

11,69,191 

 

 

22.03 

 

 

 

2.36% 

 

(c) Any Other  

i. Non-Resident Indian 

ii. Clearing Members  

iii. HUF 

iv. IEPF 

 

7,08,973 

78,900  

4,01,233 

5,55,975 

 

1.51 

0.17 

0.86 

1.19 

 

7,08,973 

78,900  

4,01,233 

5,55,975 

 

1.43% 

0.16% 

0.81% 

1.12% 

Sub-Total (B)(2) 1,46,29,542 31.18% 1,46,29,542 29.52% 

 Total Public Shareholding (B)= 

(B)(1)+(B)(2) 

1,46,29,542 31.18% 1,46,29,542 29.52% 

 TOTAL (A)+(B) 4,66,27,980 99.38% 1,46,29,542 29.52% 
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(C)  Non-Promoter Non-Public 

Shareholding  

    

1. Shares held by Custodians and 

against which DRs have been 

issued 

- - - - 

2.  Employee Benefit Trust (under 

SEBI (Share based Employee 

Benefit) Regulations 2014) 

2,89,040 0.62% 2,89,040 0.58% 

 Total Non-Promoter- Non Public 

Shareholding (C)= (C)(1)+(C)(2) 

2,89,040 0.62% 2,89,040 0.58% 

 GRAND TOTAL- (A) + (B) + (C)  4,69,17,020

  

100% 4,95,59,489 100% 
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Aashish Bathla & Co.
Chartered Ac@untanb

To,

The Board of Directorst
Gulshrn Iloldings Private Limit€d
9th KM Jansath Road Muzaflamagar

Uttar Pradesh 25 I 00 I , India

We, the statutory auditors of Culshan Holdings Private Limite4(hereinafter referred to as "the Company"), have

examined the proposed accounting treatment specified in clause l8 ofthe Draft Scheme of Amalgamation between

Gulshan Holdings Private Limited ("Transferor Company l") and East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private

Limited ("Transferor Company 2") with Gulshan Polyols Limited ("Transferee Company") in terms of the
provisions ofsection(s) 230 to 232 ofthe €€mpsnks.4€4,-1454 Companies Act, 2013 with reference to its compliance

withtheapplicableAccountingStandardsnotifiedunderthe@956/ComparriesAct,20l3andother
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The responsibility for the preparation ofthe Draft Scheme and its compliance with the relevant laws and Regulations,

including the applicable Accounling Standards as aforesaid, is that of the Board of Directors of the Companies

involved. Our responsibility is only to examine and report whether the Draft Scheme complies with the applicable

Accounting Standards and Other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Nothing contained in this Certificate,

nor anything said or done in the course of, or in connection with the services that are subject to this Certificate, will
extend any duty of care that we may have in our capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial statements of the

Company. We carried out our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit Reports and Certificates

for Special Purposes, issued by the Institute ofChartered Accountants oflndia.

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm that the

accounting treatment contained in the aforesaid scheme is in compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and circulars issued there under and all the applicable Accounting

Standards notified by the Central Govemment under the eempanies.4el,-19561 Companies Act, 20 I 3 .

This Certificate is issued at the request ofthe Company pursuant to the requirements of Companies Act,2013 for

onward submission to the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (Allahabad Bench). This Certificate should not

be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent'

For Aashish Bathla & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No.:-

xe
Bathla)

Proprietor

Membership No.

uDtN- 21446095

Date:- 16-03-2021

PIace:-Muzaffamagar

+SS
242, Gaiawali, Sarwat Road
MUZAFFARNAGAR (U.P)
irobile : 9808498823
E-mail: .aehl!hbatla@gmail.com

$onexuue fr24

,,.--\
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Shahid & Associates
Chartetd Accountalnfs

To,

The Board of Directors,
East Delhi Importers & Exporters private Limited
9th KM Jansath Road Muzaffarnagar
Uttar Pradesh 25100 t, India

Membership No. 070408

UDN- 21070408Ai4A/MY2473
Dateil6-03-2021
Place:- Muzaffarnagar

=-s634/49 A, South Civit Lines
Near Maruti Dharam Kanta

Arya Samai Road
MUZAFFARMGAR (U.P) - 251OOl

Phone Cum Fax 2621040
Mobite 9012200078

We,'the statutory auditors of East Delhi Importers & Exporters private Limite4 (hereinafter referred to as ,,the
Company"), have examined the proposed accounling treatment specified in clause lg of the Draft Scheme of
Amalgamation between Gulshan Holdings Private Limited ("Transferor Company l") and East o"m r.poi..s a
Exporters Private Limited (..Transferor Company 2',) with Gulshan polyols Limited (..Transferee Company,,) in
terms ofthe provisions ofsection(s) 230 to 232 ofthe €offipanix-{€H9561 companies Act, 2013 wilh reference to
its compliarce with the applicable Accounting standards notified under the €empani€s-A€t+9s6l companies Act,
2013 and Other Generally Accepted Accounting principles.

The responsibility for the preparation ofthe Draft Scheme and its compliance with the relevant laws and Regulations,
including the applicable Accounting Standards as aforesaid, is that ofthe Board of Directors ofthe companies
involved. our responsibility is only to examine and report whether the Draft Scheme complies with the applicable
Accounting Standards and Other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Nothing coniained in this Certificate,
nor anything said or done in the course of, or in connection with the services that are subject to this Cenificate, will
extend any duty ofcare that we may have in our capacity ofthe statutory auditors ofany financial statements ofthe
Company. We carried out our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit Reports and Certificates
for Special Purposes, issued by the Institute ofChartered Accountants oflndia.

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm that the
accounting treatment contained in the aforesaid scheme is in compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5 and circulars issued there under and all the applicabte Accounting
Standards notified by the central Govemment under the €empa*ies4et-,-{9561companies act, 2013.

This Certificate is issued at the request of the Company pursuant to the requirements of Companies Acr, 2013 for
onward submission to the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (Allahabad Bench). This Certificate should not
be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

For Shahid & Associates.

Chartered

Camp Office : 30 N2 Arya Samaj Road, Opp. lslamia lnter College, Muzaffarnagar (UP)
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RAJEEV SINGAL & CO.
(Chartered Account4nts)
GSTIN NO O9MPFR2931 N1 ZJ

Reg. No.:- 008692C
PAN- MPFR2931N

( Chartered Accountants )

Firm Regn No.:-

R.
Rajeev

Pnrtler

Membership No. 077834

uDrN-2 10778344AAABW939s

Datei- 13/0312021

Place:- Muzaffamagar

175, Dwarkapuri, Main Road
Opp. Shiv Mandir, 1st Floor

Muzaffarnagar(U. P. )-25 1 001
www. carajeevsinghal. com
singhatrk20 l 2@gmail.com

Off.M. +91-7599023969
Ph-0131-2970053

To-

The Board of Dircctors,
Gulshan Polyols Limitcd
9th KM Jansath Road Muzaffarnagar
Uttar Pradesh,25 I 00 t, India

we, the statutory auditors of Gulshan polyols Limited,(hereinafter refened to as "the company"), have
examined the proposed accounting treatment specified in clauselgof the Draft Scheme of
Amalgamationbetween Gulshan Holdings private Limited (.Transferor Company 1,,) and East Delhi
Importers & Exporters Private Lirllited (..Transferor Company 2") withGulshan polyols Limited
(*Transferee company") in rerms or rhe provisions of section(s) 230 to 232 of the €€frp€nies-a€G-r9561
Companies Act, 2013 with ret'erence 1o its compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards notified
undedheeonrpef,i€+A,€+956rcom pan icsA ct,20 l 3andothercenerallyAcceptedAccountingprinciples.

The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme and its compliance with the relevant laws and
Regulations, including the applicable Accounting Standards as aforesai4 is that ofthe Board of Directors of
theCompaniesinvolved.Ounesponsibililyisonll'toexamineandreportwhethertheDraftschemecomplies with the
applicable Accounting Standards and (llher Generally Accepted Accounting principles. Nothin! contained in
this Certificate' nor anyhing said or drltte in the course o1, or in connection with the serviaes that are subject
to this certificate' will extend au,r- duty of care that we may have in our capacity of the
statutoryauditorsofanyfinancialstatemelllsoliheCompany.Wecarriedoutourexaminationinaccordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit Reports and {lertificates for Special Purposes, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants oflndia,

Based on our examination and accordlng to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm that
theaccountingtreatment containedinlhgafbresaidschemeisincompliancewithsEBl(Listingobligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulatiolr!, 2015 and circurars issued ther€ under and alr the appricable
Accountingstandardsnotifiedbythecenlrurcovernmenrunder rhece*peFiesAst]gs6lcompaniesAct, 2013.
This certificate is issued at the reques! 0fth€ companypursuant to the requirements ofcompanies Act,20l3
for onward submission to the Hon,ble llgtional Company Law Tribunal (Allahabad Bench). This certificate
should not be used for any other purpor( r ilhour our prior written consent.

For Rajeev Singal & Co.
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C-1 
 

IN THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, ALLAHABAD BENCH 

CA (CAA) No. 09/ALD of 2021 

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

AND 

IN THE MATTER OF THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION BETWEEN GULSHAN HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED, EAST 

DELHI IMPORTERS & EXPORTERS PRIVATE LIMITED WITH GULSHAN POLYOLS LIMITED  

AND  

Gulshan Holdings Private Limited, a company incorporated 

under the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identity 

Number: U74899UP1985PTC128005 and its registered office at 

9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, Uttar Pradesh, 

India. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

… Transferor Company No. 1 

East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited, a company 

incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate 

Identity Number: U60231UP1997PTC129363 and its registered 

office at 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, Uttar 

Pradesh, India. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

… Transferor Company No. 2 

Gulshan Polyols Limited, a company incorporated under the 

Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate Identity Number: 

L24231UP2000PLC034918 and its registered office at 9th K.M., 

Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

… Company/Transferee Company 

FORM OF PROXY  
CIN: L24231UP2000PLC034918 
Name of the Company: Gulshan Polyols Limited 
Registered Office: 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India 
 
Name of the Secured Creditor(s): ..……….........................…………………………………………………………………..................... 
Registered Address: ………………………...……………………………………………………………......................……….............................. 
Email ID: …………………...…………………………………………………....................……………………………………………………………………… 
 
I/ We, the undersigned as an Secured creditors of Gulshan Polyols Limited ("the Transferee Company"), hereby 
appoint: 
 
i. Name: ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………...................………….................... 

Address: ……………………………………………………………………………................................................................................ 
Email ID: ……………..........................................………………………… or failing him/her 

ii. Name: ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………...................………….................... 
Address: ……………………………………………………………………………................................................................................ 
Email ID: ……………..........................................………………………… or failing him/her 

iii. Name: ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………...................………….................... 
Address: ……………………………………………………………………………................................................................................ 
Email ID: ……………..........................................………………………… 

 
as my/ our proxy, to act for me/ us at the meeting of the secured creditors of Gulshan Polyols Limited, the 
Transferee Company to be held at Solitaire INN Hotel, 6 Mile Stone, Meerut Road, National Highway 58, 
Muzaffarnagar, Uttar Pradesh-251002 on Saturday, the 18th day of September, 2021 at 2:00 P.M., for the purpose 
of considering and, if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the Scheme of Amalgamation of 
Gulshan Holdings Private Limited and East Delhi Importers & Exporters Private Limited, the transferor Companies 
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with Gulshan Polyols Limited, the transferee Company under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 
("Scheme") and at such meeting and at an adjournment or adjournments thereof, to vote, for me/ us and in my/ 
our name(s) ________________ [here, 'if for', insert 'FOR'; 'if against' insert 'AGAINST', and in the latter case, strike 
out the words below after 'the said Scheme'] the said Scheme as my/our proxy. 
 
Dated this _________ day of ___________, 2021.  
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Signature of Secured Creditor(s) 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Signature of first Proxy Holder 

 
 
 
 

Signature of second Proxy Holder 

 
 
 

 

Signature of third Proxy Holder 
 
 
  

  

Affix 
Re 1/- 
Revenue 
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NOTES:  
1. The Form of Proxy in order to be effective should be in the prescribed form, duly completed and signed or 

authenticated by the concerned person and deposited at the registered office of the Transferee Company at 
9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India, not later than 48 hours before the 
scheduled time of the meeting. 

2. In case of multiple proxies, proxy later in time shall be accepted. 
3. Please affix a revenue stamp of Re. 1/- before signing across the same. 
4. All alterations made in the Form of Proxy should be initialed. 
5. Only an secured creditor of the Transferee Company is entitled to attend and vote at the Tribunal convened 

meeting of the secured creditors ("Meeting"), either in person or by proxy or through an authorized 
representative, (in case the secured creditor is a body corporate) as the case may be. Where a body corporate 
which is an secured creditor authorises any person to act as its representative at the meeting, a copy of the 
resolution of the board of directors or other governing body of such body corporate authorizing such person to 
act as its representative at the meeting, and certified to be a true copy by a director, the manager, the secretary, 
or other authorised officer of such body corporate shall be lodged with the Transferee Company at its registered 
office not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the Meeting. 

6. Such secured creditor is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote at the Meeting instead and on behalf of 
such secured creditors and such proxy need not be an secured creditor. Proxies to be valid and effective should 
be in the prescribed Form of proxy, duly completed and signed or authenticated by the concerned person and 
should be deposited at the registered office of the Transferee Company not later than 48 hours before the 
scheduled time of the Meeting. 

7. An secured creditor/ its proxy, attending the Meeting, is requested to bring the Attendance Slip duly completed 
and signed or authenticated by the concerned person along with a copy of the deposited Form of Proxy (in case 
of a proxy). 

8. An secured creditor (in case such secured creditor is an individual) or the authorized representative of th 
secured creditor (in cash such secured creditor is a body corporate) or the proxy should carry their valid and 
legible identity proof (i.e., PAN Card/ Aadhaar Card/ Passport/ Driving License / Voter ID Card). Additionally, an 
secured creditor (in case such secured creditor is a sole proprietorship) or the proxy should carry a valid 
document evidencing the individual as the proprietor of the sole proprietorship.   
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GULSHAN POLYOLS LIMITED 
CIN: L24231UP2000PLC034918 

Registered Office: 9th K.M., Jansath Road, Muzaffanagar – 251001, Uttar Pradesh, India. 

Phone: +91 11 49999200; Fax: +91 11 49999202 

E-mail: cs@gulshanindia.com, Website: www.gulshanindia.com 

 
ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 
MEETING OF THE SECURED CREDITORS OF GULSHAN POLYOLS LIMITED ON 

SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2021 AT 1:00 P.M 
 
I hereby record my presence at the meeting of the secured creditors of Gulshan Polyols Limited, convened pursuant 
to the order dated July 14, 2021 passed by the Hon'ble Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal at Allahabad 
in Company Application (CAA) No. 09/ALD of 2021, at Solitaire INN Hotel, 6 Mile Stone, Meerut Road, National 
Highway 58, Muzaffarnagar, Uttar Pradesh-251002 on Saturday, the 18th day of September, 2021 at 2:00 P.M.  
 
Name of the Secured Creditors: …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Signature of the Secured Creditors: ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

OR 
 
Name of the Proxy Holder: ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Signature of the Proxy Holder: ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
NOTES: 
1. Secured Creditors/ authorized representatives or their proxies attending the meeting must bring this 

attendance slip to the meeting and hand over the same at the entrance of the meeting venue after completing 
and signing the same. 

2. Secured Creditors / authorized representatives or their proxies desiring to attend the meeting should bring his/ 
her copy of the notice for reference at the meeting. 

 
  

mailto:cs@gulshanindia.com,
http://www.gulshanindia.com/
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Route Map of the NCLT Convened Meeting 

 

 
 
 


